Федеральное государственное образовательное учреждение высшего образования «Московский государственный институт культуры»

Кафедра литературы и лингвистики

ПАКУЛОВА Н.В.

ПРАКТИКУМ ПО ГРАММАТИКЕ АНГЛИЙСКОГО ЯЗЫКА

УЧЕБНОЕ ПОСОБИЕ ДЛЯ ВУЗОВ КУЛЬТУРЫ И ИСКУССТВ

> Москва 2022

УДК 811.111 (075.8) ББК 81.43.21 – 92 я.7 П69

> Рекомендовано к изданию редакционно-издательским советом Московского государственного института культуры

Рецензенты:

В.П.Фомина, доцент кафедры литературы и лингвистики МГИК кандидат искусствоведения

С.А.Цветкова, доцент кафедры иностранных языков Российской международной академии туризма кандидат филологических наук

Пакулова, Наталья Васильевна.

П69 Практикум по грамматикеанглийского языка. Учебное пособие для вузов культуры и искусств / Н. В. Пакулова — Москва: МГИК, 2022. — 208 с.

ISBN 978-5-94778-621-7

Пособие предназначено для преподавателей и студентов вузов культуры и искусств. Оно может быть использовано аспирантами для подготовки к сдаче кандидатского экзамена по иностранным языкам, а также для самостоятельной работы и изучения иностранных языков специалистами культуры.

УДК 811.111 (075.8) ББК 81.43.21 – 92 я.7 П69

CONTENTS

От автора
Prepositions. 6
The Complex Subject
The Complex Object
The Gerund71
Participle I, II
The Passive Voice
Conditionals
The Active Voice
Tests
Keys to the tests
Литература

OT ABTOPA

Настоящее пособие рассчитано на широкий круг пользователей. Оно предназначено для тех, кто пытается разобраться в сложностях употребления английских грамматических времен. И для тех, кто решил повторить видовременные формы активного и пассивного залогов, употребление неличных форм английского глагола во время подготовки к ЕГЭ. Сборник будет полезен и учителям, которые найдут в нем необходимый материал для своей работы на уроках.

Пособие включает тренировочные задания и тесты, которые помогут закрепить, обобщить и систематизировать знания, умения и навыки, приобретенные в рамках базового курса, а также овладеть определенным количеством нового материала. Задания упражнений и тестов соответствуют различным уровням сложности: базовый, повышенный и высокий. Задания тестов позволяют проверить уровень сформированности знаний наиболее важных аспектов грамматики.

В данном пособии много внимания уделено такому разделу как перевод с русского языка на английский. Говоря на родном языке, каждый человек пользуется определенными психолингвистическими формулами, которые позволяют описывать действие или состояние человека, и если человек максимально быстро и грамотно научился переводить и употреблять в своей речи определенный коммуникативный набор, то это означает, что человек заговорил «по-чужому».

Все тесты снабжены ответами, что дает возможность проконтролировать правильность выполнения заданий и обратить внимание на пробелы в знании грамматики. Мы надеемся, что пособие поможет вам в постижении грамматических трудностей английского языка и позволит успешно подготовиться к сдаче экзамена.

PREPOSITIONS

Почти каждый, кто начинает учить язык, сталкивается со сложностями при использовании английских предлогов. Дело в том, что, используя английские предлоги, очень часто мы придерживаемся «русской логики» и дословно переводим их. Из-за этого допускаем очень много ошибок. Предлог — это часть речи, которая служит для связи слов в предложении и словосочетании. В английском языке выделяют 4 большие группы предлогов: 1. Предлоги места. 2. Предлоги направления. 3. Предлоги времени. 4. Предлоги причины.

ПРЕДЛОГИ МЕСТА В АНГЛИЙСКОМ ЯЗЫКЕ

Давайте рассмотрим на основные предлоги этой группы. Предлоги места отвечают на вопрос *где?* (находится объект в пространстве относительно других объектов).

Above — **над, выше.** Говорим, что что-то/кто-то находится в более высоком положении или месте, чем что-то/кто-то другой. He lives above me.

Below — **под, ниже.** Говорим, что что-то/кто-то находится в более низком месте или положении, или на более низком уровне. There is a house below the bridge.

Before — **перед.** Что-то/кто-то находится впереди кого-то/чего-то.

He walked before me.

In front of — **перед, напротив.** Что-то/кто-то находится впереди кого-то/чего-то, или лицом к лицу перед кем-то.

He parked in front of the building.

Behind — **3a, позади.** Что-то/кто-то находится сзади кого-то/чего-то.

She stood behind me.

Under — **под**. Кто-то/что-то находится на более низком уровне или накрыто чем-то.

He hid under the table.

Over — **над.** Кто-то/что-то находится выше и не прикасается к другому предмету.

A lamp hung over the table.

Between — **между**. Какой-то предмет или человек разделяет другие объекты, то есть находится между ними.

There is a bicycle between the two cars.

Among — **среди.** Говорим, что кто-то/что-то находится в окружении чего-то.

There were two foreign women among the guests.

Ву — **у, рядом, около, возле**. Очень близко к чему-то. Чаще всего используется, когда говорим, что находимся в непосредственной близости к окну, двери или краю чего-то.

I saw him standing by the window.

by — чтобы сказать как мы это делаем

send by post do smth by hand contact smb by phone, by mail, by fax pay by cheque, by credit card, by chance by mistake by accident

we met by chance.

by — чтобы сказать как кто-то путешествует

by car by train by plane by boat by bus by bike by rail by underground

Do you prefer to travel by air or by train?

Did you come hereby car or on foot?

Beside — **рядом**. Что-то/кто-то рядом, сбоку от кого-то/че-го-то.

The girl sat beside me.

Next to — **рядом, около, возле**. Очень близко к кому-то/чему-то, когда между вами нет других людей или предметов.

They stood next to their car.

Outside — **снаружи**. Что-то/кто-то находится не внутри здания, но близко к нему.

We waited outside.

At — **в**. Кто-то находится внутри чего-то с определенной целю.

They are at the hospital. Они в больнице.

Запомните следующие выражения:

at the table at the desk at the stop at the entrance at the exhibition at the railway station at the plant at work at school

at — время, когда что-то начинается или заканчивается

at the end at the beginning at the end of the month at the end of the film at the end of January at the end of the course at the end of the game at the end of the concert

I'm going away at the end of January.

At the end of the concert, there was great applause. The players shook hands at the end of the game.

In — в Кто-то/что-то находится внутри чего-то. We put the books in a box.

Запомните следующие выражения:

in bed in the country in the north in the south in the east in the west

On — **на.** Кто-то/что-то находится на поверхности чего-то. There is a book on the windowsill.

Запомните следующие выражения:

on television on the radio on the phone on strike on a diet on fire on the whole (in general) on purpose

I didn't watch the news on television, but I heard it on the radio. There are no trains today. The drivers are on strike.

I have put a lot of weight. I'll have to go on a diet.

Look! The car is on fire.

Sometimes I have problems at work, but on the whole I like my job. I'm sorry. I didn't mean to annoy you. I didn't do it on purpose.

ПРЕДЛОГИ НАПРАВЛЕНИЯ В АНГЛИЙСКОМ ЯЗЫКЕ

Предлоги направления используются, чтобы показать направление движения человека или предмета.

Across — **через**. Кто-то движется от одной стороны чего-то к другой.

He was swimming across the river.

Along — **вдоль, по.** Идти вперед в направлении длины чего-то.

Go straight along this street.

Down — **вниз**. Двигаться с высокого положения к более низкому.

We skied down the slope.

Up — вверх. Двигаться с низкого положения к более высокому. We are walking up stairs.

Round/around — **вокруг**. Двигаться по кругу, окружить что-то. They danced around a fir-tree.

Into — в. Попасть внутрь чего-то, заходить куда-то. She came into the building.

 $\mathbf{Out}(\mathbf{of})$ — из. Выходить откуда-то, двигаться изнутри наружу. He went out of a restaurant.

Through — **сквозь, через**. С одной стороны (входа) двигаться к другой стороне (выходу).

We will walk through the forest.

 ${f To}-{f k}$. Используется, чтобы сказать, куда кто-то идет, по направлению к чему движется.

They are going to the cinema.

ПРЕДЛОГИ ВРЕМЕНИ В АНГЛИЙСКОМ ЯЗЫКЕ

Предлоги времени нужны нам, чтобы указать время, когда что-то произошло/происходит/будет происходить.

For — **в течение.** Используется, чтобы сказать, как долго продолжается действие или ситуация.

She was baking the cake for an hour.

During — в течение, на протяжении. Обозначает, что действие или ситуация продолжалась от начала до конца какого-то периода времени.

They were studying during the night.

Since — с тех пор. Используем, когда говорим, что что-то происходит или происходило с определенного периода времени в прошлом.

He has known her since childhood.

 $\mathbf{B}\mathbf{y} - \mathbf{\kappa}$. Обозначает, что действие произойдет до или не позднее определенного времени или момента.

You have to send me the documents by the Friday.

by — чтобы сказать как мы делаем это

— чтобы сказать как кто-то путешествует

Until/till — **до**. Используем это слово, когда что-то происходит до определенного времени, а потом прекращается.

Let's wait until Monday.

From...to — **c...до...** Используем, когда говорим, что что-то происходило от одного периода времени до другого.

We work from nine to five.

Before — **до.** Используем, когда говорим, что что-то случилось раньше определенного действия или события.

Read instructions before use.

After — **после.** Используем, когда говорим, что что-то произошло после какого-то события или того, как кто-то сделал что-то. You should rest after the exercise.

Over — за, в течение. Используется, когда вы занимались чем-то (с перерывами) в течение какого-то периода времени.

I am going to study English over my holidays.

Ago — **назад**. Используется, чтобы показать, как давно в прошлом что-то произошло.

They got married 5 years ago.

Within — не позднее, чем; в течение. Используется, когда говорим о том, что действие должно совершиться до того, как произойдет определенный период времени. Подчеркиваем ограниченность периода.

I will answer within three days.

Up to — **до.** Говорим, что что-то происходило/происходит до определенного периода.

He has kept the secret up to now.

In — **в**. Используется с месяцами, с временем суток, с годами, с временами года, с долгими периодами времени.

We met in 2001.

 ${f At}$ — ${f B}$. Используется с часами, с определенными моментами дня, с выходными и праздниками.

She will come at 6 o'clock.

 $\mathbf{On} - \mathbf{B}$. Используется с датами, с днями неделями, со специальными датами.

He was born on October 9.

ПРЕДЛОГИ ПРИЧИНЫ И ЦЕЛИ

Предлоги причины и цели нужны нам, чтобы сказать, почему или для чего произошло какое-либо действие.

Because of — **потому что, из-за**. Используется, чтобы сказать, кто или что заставляет что-то происходить или является причиной чего-то. Чаще всего используется в разговорной речи.

He was absent because of illness.

He left because of you.

In accordance with — **в соответствии с, согласно**. Используем, когда что-то происходит согласно правилу или закону.

We have finished the work in accordance with her instructions. In accordance with the law I have prepared a contract.

On account of — вследствие, из-за. Используем, когда говорим, что что-то произошло из-за чего-то. В особенности, из-за каких-то проблем или трудностей.

We couldn't sleep on account of the noise.

The bus was delayed on account of a snowfall.

Thanks to — **благодаря, из-за**. Используем, когда что-то произошло из-за кого-то или чего-то. Чаще всего что-то хорошее.

We have tickets to the game thanks to you.

I found this apartment thanks to my friend.

Due to — **из-за, благодаря.** Используем, когда что-то произошло из-за чего-то (часто с негативным оттенком). В большинстве случаев используется в формальных, официальных случаях.

The plane was delayed due to a technical problem.

The game was postponed due to rain.

Through — **благодаря, из-за**. Используется, когда что-то происходит из-за чего-то.

I lost the picnic through sickness.

He failed his exams through not studying enough.

From — **по, из**. Используется, чтобы сказать, почему вы думаете что-то или верите во что-то. Также используется, чтобы сказать о том, что является причиной чего-то.

I guessed from her accent that she is French.

From what I've heard, the new exam will be more difficult.

 \mathbf{Of} — \mathbf{o} т, из-за, \mathbf{no} . Показывает причину, по которой произошло что-то (как правило плохое).

The economy is the cause of the crisis.

He died of a heart attack.

For — **для, за, из-за**. Используем, когда говорим, что делаем/ используем что-то для определенной цели. Также, когда что-то происходит из-за или в результате чего-либо.

I have bought him a cake for his birthday.

We could hardly see for the mist.

Перевод русского предлога через:

через час — in an hour через поле — across the field через дорогу — across the road через лес — through the wood через реку (вброд, вплавь, на лодке) — across the river через реку (по мосту, по воздуху) — over the river через забор — over the fence

перевод русского предлога по:

по улице — along (down) the river по морю — across the sea по реке — down (up) the river по городу — about the town по комнате — about the room по коридору — along the corridor по стране — about the country

VERBS + PREPOSITIONS

talk/speak to somebody

Who was that man you were talking to?

listen to

We spent the evening listening to music.

write a letter to

I wrote to the hotel complaining about the poor service we had received.

apologise to somebody

The apologized to me for what happened.

explain something to somebody

Can you explain this word to me?

describe to somebody

Let me describe to you what I saw.

phone/call somebody

Did you phone your mother yesterday?

answer somebody/something

He refused to answer my question.

ask somebody

Can I ask you a question?

thank somebody for something

He thanked me for helping him.

look/share/glance at

Why are you looking at me like that?

laugh at

I look stupid with this haircut. Everybody will laugh at me.

aim/point something at

Don't point that knife at me.

shoot/fire (a gun) at

We saw someone with a gun shooting at birds.

shout at somebody

He got very angry and started shouting at me.

shout to somebody

He shouted to me from the other side of the street.

throw something at somebody

Somebody threw an egg at the politician.

throw something to somebody

Lisa shouted "Catch" and threw the keys to me from the window.

talk/read/know about

We talked about a lot of things at the meeting.

have a discussion about something

We had a discussion about what we should do.

do something about something

If you are worried about the problem, you should do something about it.

care about somebody/something

She is very selfish. She doesn't care about other people.

care for somebody/something

1. like — Would you care for a cup of coffee? I don't care for very hot weather.

2. look after somebody — Peter is 80 and he lives alone. He needs someone to take care for.

take care of = look after

Have a nice holiday. Take care of yourself.

ask somebody for

I asked him the way to Red Square.

apply somebody for a job

I think you'd be good at this job. Why don't you apply for it?

wait for

Don't wait for me. I'll join you later.

search a person/a place/a bag for

Police are searching for the man who escaped from prison.

leave a place for another place

I haven't seen her since she left home.

look for = search for = try to find

I've lost my keys. Can you help me to look for them?

look after = take care of

He needs somebody to look after him.

dream about

I dreamt about you last night.

dream of/about being something/doing something = imagine

I wouldn't dream of doing something. I would never do it.

hear about

Did you hear about what happened.

hear of = know that somebody/something exist

Who is Ann? I have no idea. I 've never heard of her.

hear from = to receive a letter, phone call or message from somebody

Have you heard from Jane recently? Yes, she phoned a few days ago.

think about

I've thought about what you said.

think of — when we ask or give an opinion That's a good idea. Why don't I think of that?

Remind somebody about — to tell somebody not to forget I'm glad you reminded me about the meeting.

Remind somebody of — напоминать

Look at the photo of Ann. Who does she remind you of?

complain to somebody about

We complained to the manager of the restaurant about the food.

complain of a pain, etc.

Peter was complaining of a pain in his stomach.

warn somebody about a person or thing which is bad, dangerous, unusual, etc.

He warned me about the traffic.

warn somebody about/of a danger, something bad might happen later

Scientists have warned us about/of the effects of global warming.

accuse somebody of

Ann accused me of being selfish.

suspect somebody of

Some students were suspected of cheating in the exam.

approve/disapprove of

His parents disapprove of what he does.

Die of/ from an illness, etc.

What did he die of? A heart attack.

consist of

We had an enormous meal. It consisted of 7 courses.

pay somebody for

I didn't have enough money to pay for the meal.

But — pay a bill/a fine/tax/rent/ a sum of money (no preposition) I didn't have enough money to pay the rent.

thank/ forgive somebody for

I'll never forgive them for what they did.

apologise to somebody for

When I realized I was wrong, I apologized to them for my mistake.

blame somebody/something for

Everybody blamed me for the accident.

blame (a problem, etc.) on

Everybody blamed the accident on me.

suffer from an illness, etc.

The number of people suffering from heart disease has increased.

protect somebody/something from/against

Sun block protects the skin from/against the sun.

depend/rely on

What time will you be at home? I don't know. It depends on the traffic. You can rely on Jill. She always keeps her promises.

live on (money/food)

Peter's salary is very low. It isn't enough to live on.

congratulate/ compliment somebody on

I congratulated on her success in the exam.

believe in

Do believe in God?

specialize in

Helen is a lawyer. She specializes in company law.

succeed in

I hope you succeed in finding the job you want.

break into

Our house was broken into a few days ago, but nothing was stolen.

crush/drive/bump/run into

He lost control of the car and crashed into a wall.

divide/cut/split something into 2 or more parts

The book is divided into 3 parts.

translate a book, etc. from one language to/into another

Hemingway's books have been translated into many languages.

collide with

There was an accident this morning. A bus collided with a car.

fill something with

Take this saucepan and fill it with water.

provide/supply with

The school provides all its students with books.

happen to

What happened to that watch you used to have?

invite somebody to a party/ a wedding, etc.

They only invited a few people to their wedding.

prefer one thing/person to another

I prefer tea to coffee.

concentrate on

Concentrate on your work.

insist on

I wanted to go alone, but my friends insisted on coming with me.

spend (money)on

How much do you spend on food each week?

NOUNS + PREPOSITIONS

Noun + for

a cheque for (a sum of money)

They sent me a cheque for £ 100.

a demand /a need for

The company closed down because there wasn't enough demand for its product.

a reason for

The train was late, but nobody knew the reason for delay.

Noun + of

an advantage/a disadvantage of

The advantage of having a car is that you don't have to rely on public transport.

but an advantage in or to doing something

There are many advantages in being able to speak a foreign language.

a cause of

The cause of explosion is unknown.

A photograph/a picture/a map/a plan/a drawing, etc. of

If I give you a camera, can you take a photograph of me.

Noun + in

an increase/a decrease/a rise/a fall in (price, etc.)

There has been a big increase in the cost of living.

Noun + to

damage to

The accident was my fault, so I had to pay for the damage to the other car.

an invitation to (a party, a wedding, etc.)

Did you get an invitation to the party?

a solution to (a problem), a key (to a door), an answer to (a question), a reply to (a letter), a reaction to

I was surprised at her reaction to my suggestion.

an attitude to (towards)

His attitude to his job is very strange.

Noun + with/between

a relationship/a connection/ contact with

Do you have a good relationship with your parents?

a relationship/a connection/ contact/ a difference between

There are some differences between American and British English.

Adjective + preposition

nice/ kind/ good/ generous/ polite/ stupid/ silly, etc. of It was very kind of you to help me.

nice/ kind/ good/ generous/ polite/ stupid/ silly, etc. to Why were you so unfriendly to Peter?

Adjective + about/ with

angry/ annoyed/furious about something angry/ annoyed/furious with somebody for doing something It's stupid to get angry about things that don't matter. Are you annoyed with me for being late?

excited/ worried/upset/ nervous/ happy, etc. about a situation Lisa is upset about not being invited to the party.

Adjective + at/ by/ with

surprised/ shocked/ amazed/ astonished at/ by something Everybody was surprised at / by the news. I hope you weren't shocked by/ at what I said.

impressed with/ by somebody/ something I'm impressed by / with her English. It's very good.

fed up

I don't enjoy my job any more. I'm fed up with it.

bored with something

I'm bored with it.

sorry about a situation or something that happened I'm sorry about the mess.

sorry for/ about something you did

Alex is very sorry for what he said. Alex is very sorry about what he said. I'm very sorry for shouting at you yesterday. I'm very sorry about shouting.

feel/ **be sorry for somebody who is in a bad situation** I feel sorry for Matt. He's had a lot of bad luck.

afraid/ frightened/ terrified/ scared of

Don't worry. There's nothing to be afraid of. I'm scared of heights.

fond/ proud/ ashamed/ jealous/ envious of other people

Why are you always so jealous of other people?

suspicious/ critical/ tolerant of

He didn't trust me. He was suspicious of my intentions.

aware/ conscious of

Did you know he was married? No, I wasn't aware of that.

capable/incapable of

I'm sure you are capable of passing this exam.

full/short of

I'm a bit short of money. Can you lend me some? The letter was full of mistakes.

typical of

It's typical of him to keep everybody waiting.

tired/ sick of

Let's go. I'm tired of waiting.

certain/ sure of or about

I think she's arriving this evening, but I'm not sure of/ about it.

good/bad/brilliant/better/hopeless, etc. at

I'm not very good at repairing things.

married/ engaged to

Ann is married to an American.

But: Ann is married with 3 children.

similar to

Your writing is similar to mine.

different from/ to

The film was different from what I'd expected.

The film was different to what I'd expected.

interested in

Are you interested in music?

keen on

We stayed at home because Chris wasn't very keen on going out.

dependent on

I don't want to be dependent on anybody.

crowded with (people, etc.)

The streets were crowded with tourists. But — full of tourists.

famous for

Florence is famous for its art treasures.

responsible for

Who was responsible for all that noise last night?

II. УПРАЖНЕНИЯ И ТЕСТЫ

Fill in the gaps with prepositions.

- 1. This is his last chance. Don't deprive him it.
- 2. What is the reason all this secrecy?
- 3. They applauded her so loudly that no one heard the shot in the hall.
- 4. Please, explain me what's going on here.
- 5. Mr. Crystal will confine himself the general aspects of the problem.
- 6. It contradicts article 5 our agreement.
- 7. Moscow there are many monuments writers and scientists.
- 8. He complains everyone that nobody understands him.
- 9. It smells pudding.
- 10. I won't let you interfere my plans.
- 11. He doesn't qualify his post.
- 12. I cannot impose my taste you, but I dare remind you the importance of the venture. You ought to look nice.
- 13. The doctor operated his sister ulcers.
- 14. They threatened him for two years. Finally he revenged himself ... them.
- 15. Hamlet wanted to avenged his father's death.

- 16. I don't claim to be the heir the property.
- 17. I repeated you thrice that he's betrayed you.
- 18. Return her all our letters and ask her to forget my address.
- 19. Imports have risen 50%.
- 20. James was a witness the trial his former boss.
- 21. This is a good remedy a cough.
- 22. What could he buy this money.
- 23. She felt bad the moment she got the plane.
- 24. The tour the city is included the programme.
- 25. I'm quite that Jeoffrey Archer is an authority the English literature.
- 26. How long did the Roman invasion England last?
- 27. Who cured you your headaches?
- 28. my opinion he died heart failure.
- 29. You shouldn't reproach Liza being late. It's not her fault.
- 30. She always jots down the hometask the margin.
- 31. the station "Rechnoy Vokzal" you'll have to change bus 851.
- 32. The fire spread the adjacent houses.
- 33. He has always been incapable good deeds.
- 34. Of course she said it just fun. It won't be easy to convince him contrary.
- 35. She couldn't have spied him.
- 36. It's typical him to promise a lot, and when it comes to do smth he is out of sight.
- 37. I'm always your disposal. Hope to see you board the ship.
- 38. Please, look it the dictionary.
- 39. It played a cruel joke him.
- 40. It's your duty her mother.
- 41. Tomorrow I'm giving a lecture "Hamlet".
- 42. He doesn't think that you are really guilty this crime.
- 43. She made a big contribution world literature this novel.
- 44. Please, retell the story the third person.
- 45. This project is aimed the prevention AIDS.
- 46. He came late the performance and was not let

- 47. Do you have a good memory faces.
- 48. They treated him pneumonia for a month, but it turned out a cancer.
- 49. I was a disadvantage because I didn't speak French.
- 50. Yesterday we had a wonderful tour Moscow.
- 51. I'm not going to interfere their life.
- 52. We sailed the open sea.
- 53. In the newspaper 20th, March there was his obituary.
- 54. What are you going to do holiday?
- 55. The test on articles will be held Tuesday?
- 56. The letter was written his handwriting.
- 57. She does it her love to animals.
- 58. CNN they showed an interview him this problem.
- 59. A great fall ... the production of scooters will be bad news children.
- 60. the sun the temperature was plus 40 and shade it was 35.
- 61. He asked her to speak a whisper but she couldn't hardly conceal her excitement.
- 62. She fell and cried pain.
- 63. It was a great loss everyone.
- 64. He is allergic this herb.
- 65. She has been asked to write a critique his course paper.
- 66. summer the geologists went the expedition.
- 67. He wanted to show and jumped ... a bridge.
- 68. It makes no difference me whether you want it or not.
- 69. Jack doesn't seem to be good driving.
- 70. You show no enthusiasm to my plan.
- 71. Nobody likes being shouted
- 72. There is smth inexplicable that man.
- 73. I could hardly see anything a distance several miles.
- 74. My mother is sure it happened coincidence.
- 75. There were a lot of people the farm that day.
- 76. It's so hard to read your writing. Please send it the Internet tonight.
- 77. We parted the bus stop a rainy Monday evening.
- 78. This diet is harmful your health.

- 79. I judged him his deeds, not his words.
- 80. He shuddered her sight.
- 81. I think you can make an appointment telephone.
- 82. Please, call the waiter the bill.
- 83. I can see it thirty rubles kilo.
- 84. The ruble devaluated the day he came the office.
- 85. ... weekends we go the countryside.
- 86. We were going bus Warsaw Berlin when the tyre blew up.
- 87. The facelift the building was finished the appointed day.
- 88. All these inventions were feasible only the machine age.
- 89. I saw her St. Valentine's Day.
- 90. a rainy windy evening I have no desire to go there.

II. Choose the right variant.

- 1. We are ready the lesson.
- a) of; b) in; c) for: d) on; e) from.
- 2. I checked a book the library yesterday.
- a) at b) out of c) of d) for e) in
- 3. The delegation came to the city the invitation the government.
 - a) in/of b) at/of c) for/of d) at/from e) in/from
 - 4. The song is extremely popular our classmates.
 - a) in b) with c) for d) at e) from
 - 5. Nick has fallen ill and now he is hospital.
 - a) in b) for c) on d) from e) at
 - 6. It's nice you to present me such beautiful flowers.
 - a) from/ b) of/with c) from/with d) of/on e) of/-
- 7. Football has been played one form or another hundred years.
- a) for/at/from b) in/for/at c) in/for/of d) of/to/in e) by/during /of

- 8. I was England a group of students my school.
- a) in/with/from b) in/from/at c)with/in/from d) in/of/from e) by/during/of
 - 9. Their change plan affected Bill's plans.
 - a) in/before b) at/on c) from/) d) of/to e) with/in
- 10. The Department of Foreign Languages is located a new building the old one.
- a) in/before b) behind/for c)to/in front of d) on/with e) in/opposite
 - 11. My friend emigrated Spain the war finished.
 - a) to/at b) with/during c) to/before d) on/in e) —/after
 - 12. Andrew returned the shoes and took a pair boots
 - a) of/for b) for/— c) to/after d) of/instead e) about/of
 - 13. War and misery go hand hand.
 - a) by b) at c) with d) from e) in
- 14. UNESCO was founded 1946. It aims at promoting cooperation its more 150 members education, science and culture.
- a) in/for/among b) in/at/with c) in/in/among d) by/in/in e)in/by/with
 - 15. Why did he do it? He did it curiosity.
 - a) from b) for c) at d) with e) out of
 - 16. Did you finish your homework yesterday?
 - a) b) with c) at d) from e) by
 - 17. Her help was great value teaching the students.
 - a) of/without b) for/by c) at/by d) of/by e) of/with
 - 18. She insured her house loss fire.
 - a) —/of b) against/from c) for/of d)at/in e) with/in
 - 19. He was escorted a policeman either hand.
 - a) with/from b) at/at c) for/of d) by/on e) by/for
 - 20. I'm writing pencil, as I have no ink hand.
 - a) with/by b) by/on c) in/at d) to/ about e) from/of

- 21. You have finished reading this book, please hand it a friend.
- a) on/-/to b)upon/by/for c) after/on/to d)after/in/from e) before/on/to
- 22. Formed 1959, the Beatles were composed 4 musicians born in Liverpool, England.
 - a) In/of b) on/of c) in/from d) in/with e) in/on
- 23. In 1970 the Beatles split and each member pursed another musical career.
 - a) down b) up c) with d) out e) behind
 - 24. The Beatles were often approached requests to reunite.
 - a) in/on b) on c) with d) do e) of
- 25. the end of the 3^{rd} century, the Roman Army began to withdraw Britain to defend other parts of the Roman Empire.
 - a) in/on b) in/from c) on/from d) at/into e) at/from
- 26. Although Tamerlane was notorious .. his cruelty war, he was also a lover of scholarship and the Art.
 - a) for/in b) in/in c) with/on d) for/for e) from/on
- 27. John's poverty brought him contact the homes of the very poor.
 - a) into/with b) to/without c) for/with d) on/with e) into/to
- 28. Mary is very good English. She always helps her friends their homework.
 - a) in/with b) on/for c) at/with d) in/on e) for/with
- 29. If you are interested research work, you may join some scientific society.
 - a) with/— b) in/ with c) with/on d) in/— e) with/for
- 30. You must take these tablets your cough to be the safe side.
 - a) for/in b) for/on c) against/on d) against/in e) from/on
 - 31. How silly me, I must really apologize you.
 - a) to/for b) for/to c) of/to d) to/to e) with/for

- 32. On arriving the office I found out that the situation had changed better.
 - a) in/to b) to/to c) at/for d) in/at e) to/for
- 33. Grace was the daughter the lighthouse keeper and she had lived the sea as she could

remember.

- a) of/in b) of/by c) from/at d) by/at e) of/along
- 34. dinner the Hunts and Mr. Ivanov talked their plans the summer.
- a) during/of/for b) after/about/in c) at/-/in d) at/about/for e) before/of/-
 - 35. Trains and buses in this country never leave time.
 - a) for b) at c) on d) after e) by
- 36. When you finish the file, please, can you make sure that you put it back its place.
 - a) with/in b) —/at c) with/on d) over/by e) about/to
- 37. My flat-mate is going much at the moment. She is studying some important exams.
 - a) —/to b) away/at c) in/about d) out/for e) off/in
- 38. The Captain stopped and for some time they looked each other silence.
 - a) at/on b) at/in c) to/in d) in/to e) at/at
 - 39. He showed me a small room with a desk it.
 - a) to/in b) to/at c)in/with d) with/in e) at/on
 - 40. "Don't make fun me, don't laugh me".
 - a) of/at b) at/to c) to/on d) of/with e) to/in
- 41. He shook hands me and thanked me heartily for being frank him.
 - a) with/to b) for/with c) on/with d) in/in e) with/with
- 42. He saw me the gate, kissed my hand and disappeared the trees.
- a) in/-/behind b) at/at/within c) —/-/beyond d) as far as/-/behind e) for/by/towards

- 43. Women are always the side people fighting peace and better life.
- a) to/of/to/to b) on/of/for/for c) to/to/to/with d) in/of/to/—e) on/-/for/to
- 44. Yesterday we were a meeting organized organization "Greenpeace".
 - a) in/by b) at/by c) at/with d) on/by e) on/with
 - 45. Help yourself the cake! Oh, thanks, I've had enough it.
 - a) with/on b) to/of c) to/— d) on/with e) —/of
- 46. It all happened a gloomy night winter. There were no stars dark sky.
 - a) at/in/on b) on/in/in c) in/in/in d) at/on/on e) at/in/in
- 47. I'm sure Mike and Ann will get married soon. He fell love her first sight.
- a) down/to/in b) with/to/at c) in/for/on d) at/with/with e) in/with/at
 - 48. It has been well-known 3 centuries 1684 fact.
- a) for/since/in b) about/from/at c) of/with/at d)for/with/in e) within/from/to
- 49. I have always been opinion that emigration is the only thing England.
 - a) to/to b) of/for c) with/in d) by/in e) at/with
- 50.Once introduced Europe, the habit smoking spread the world.
- a) in/in/beyond b) at/for/with c) to/of/round d) around/to/over e) about/to/near
 - 51. If you come early, you will just get nervous waiting.
 - a) with b) about c) by d) behind e) in
 - 52. Ann lost weight hiking.
 - a) with b) by c) from d) about e) on
 - 53. What does it mean your dream a fire?
 - a) in b) from c) at d) about e) on

- 54. Ann married a pianist.
- a) b) to c) for d) with e) at
- 55. the eve of May Day flags are put buildings.
- a) on/of b) in/in c) on/— d) on/on e) on/of

III. Choose the right preposition.

- 1. They ran (across/opposite) the road.
- 2. We had a picnic on the hill (over/above) the town.
- 3. He put the ladder (against/up) the wall.
- 4. The snake moved quietly (through/across) the tall grass.
- 5. The mouth ran quickly (across/through) the path.
- 6. The cat walked slowly (on the top of/along) the wall.
- 7. We sat (on the top of/ along) the cliffs and watched the sea.
- 8. Someone pushed a letter (under/below) the door.
- 9. She drove (between/through) the gates.
- 10. I held the parcel (behind/past) my back.
- 11. They walked (in front of/past) the school gate.
- 12. I pushed my bike (over/above) the bridge.
- 13. The bank clerk stood (against/towards) the wall.
- 14. We waited (down/under) a tree.
- 15. I put my suitcase (on the top of/over) the wardrobe.

IY. Put in the missing prepositions.

- I didn't see you the club last night. Where were you? Did you stay home?
- Yes, I thought it was time to stay for a change and besides, I didn't feel very well. I just lay the bath reading for ages. I decided I wasn't going to get the bath until I'd finish the book. But then Rosie turned the doorstep so I had to get to see her.
 - So are you feeling enough to come out later on?
 - I think so.
- Well, I'm going round Helen's at 5.00 and we are going to take the train Highbury Richmond by 6.00. Then we can

walk the station that nice café the riverbank. And if we see Charles there, he might invite us his boat.

- Oh, that would be nice.
- Did he tell you about Kate pushing him last week?
- No. So, he fell the boat, did he?
- Yes, and straight the river. He was soaked, and pretty cold too.

Y. Fill in the prepositions.

- 1. The dog ran the tree five or six times.
- 2. We flew slowly the suburbs of Paris.
- 3. I moved the baby the fire.
- 4. The policeman went the crowd and arrested a young man.
- 5. If you put some money here, the machine will start.
- 6. They had nowhere to stay, so they slept the bridge.
- 7. The town hall is the library and the museum.
- 8. We watched the soldiers as they walked our house on the way to the ship.
- 9. They ran out of the dressing- room the football pitch.
- 10. London is the south-east of England.
- 11. The dog stood the door and waited.
- 12. They walked hand-in-hand the side of the canal.
- 13. I held the rucksack my back.
- 14. The cat jumped my arms and ran away.
- 15. I threw the stone the sea.
- 16. The bottles fell the lorry and rolled the hill.
- 17. It was too dark to see, so he walked slowly, holding his arms him.
- 18. I put a chair the door to stop anyone come in.
- 19. We crawled a hole in the fence.
- 20. What have you got your hand?
- 21. She was standing the front door.
- 22. I put the matches the table.
- 23. She got the bus and ran the train.
- 24. 24. The baby's going to fall the table.
- 25. The bread's the cupboard.

- 26. I walked the church and waited the bus the bus stop.
- 27. He was lying the floor.
- 28. She dived the sea.
- 29. They climbed the roof, and looked down us.
- 30. We walked the end of the road.

YI. Complete the sentences with prepositions where necessary. If no preposition is necessary, leave the space empty.

- a) I'm sorry we weren't here May! There aren't so many events this month, but there's a fishing boat race next Sunday. Friday we're going riding. Do you remember? I had some riding lessons last summer. I'd like to be here October, when there's a big tennis tournament. They have the tournament every October. Yesterday we went to a sport centre the morning. We started playing table tennis 10 o'clock, had lunch 12 o'clock, and the afternoon we played basketball and then swam. the evening we went to a disco, and I got to bed 2 o'clock. After breakfast this morning we hired bikes and biked round Brighton. We're having a rest now, but this evening we're going a concert, which begins 8.30.
- b) "Right! Your plane leaves 14.00. You should check 1,5 hours departure time, so you need to be the airport 12.30. You can wait the departure lounge check-in-time to departure time. You'll probably wait there about 13.50. Now, about getting the airport. There's an airport bus that leaves the terminal 11.00. You can catch that. I know there's always a lot of traffic going the airport the morning, about 8.00 about 10.00. However, you'll not be going that period , so you'll be OK."
- c) Last summer the end of July, I went Nottingham to visit a friend who was university there. I arrived the afternoon and went bus to my friend's house which isthe suburbs the town, 123, Park Manor Road. My friend wasn't home, so I waited until she got back

5 o'clock. the evening we went out to have a drink the oldest pub England, which was built 13th century.

- d) Last year Easter I went England for a short holiday. I arrived London Friday 11 o'clock the evening. I went the hotel taxi, which got me there about an hour. I was so tired by then that I went straight bed. When I woke the morning I remembered that I had made an appointment to meet my friend 10.30. I thought I could never get ready time, but the end I had reached the café10.15. My friend arrived time. 1 o'clock we went to a restaurant for lunch and the afternoon we went the museum.
- e) Hightown Zoo opens 9 o'clock the morning. Saturdays and Sundays it opens 10.30. It's a good idea to come there summer because the Zoo gets very full. The best time to visit it is the afternoon because you can see the animals being fed. This Zoo first opened Easter 1903. But most the buildings were built 19th century. People can visit this Zoo time, summer or winter. It's only closed Christmas and 1st January.
- f) Mr. Bell wanted to go somewhere warm and sunny Easter. April 25th he flew Greece early the morning. He arrives Athens airport 6 o'clock and drove his friend's house. He reached the village 2 o'clock the afternoon. Sunday he ate a wonderful traditional lunch. the evening he went out his friend and met a lot new people. They returnedhome..... midnight and went bed. He flew back home England April, 29th.

YII. Choose the right preposition.

- 1. The owls come out night.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 2. We were in the cinema last week.
- a) on b) at c) in d) —
- 3. We are going to the Black Sea this August.
- a) on b) at c) in d) —

- 4. Christmas is the 25th of December.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 5. My granny will come the New Year's Day.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 6. She left us late night.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 7. We sometimes watch TV the evening.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 8. The first spaceship was invented the 19th century.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 9. It's rainy autumn.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 10. weekend Ann is very busy.
- a) On b) At c) In
- 11. I'm going London next week.
- a) to b) in c) at
- 12. He sat comfortably an armchair.
- a) on b) in c) at
- 13. My father sat a chair and watched TV.
- a) on b) in c) at
- 14. Our plane flew \dots the sea.
- a) along b) across c) around
- 15. He is holding an umbrella his hand.
- a) in b) on c) by
- 16. We met my friend Athens.
- a) at b) in c) to
- 17. We were waiting for him Petersburg airport.
- a) at b) in c) on
- 18. They were standing bus-stop.
- a) on b) in c) at

- 19. They returned home a taxi.
- a) on b) by c) in
- 20. We prefer to travel ship.
- a) on b) by c) in
- 21. A boy has fallen the bicycle.
- a) of b) off c) from
- 22. She lives the second floor.
- a) on b) in c) at
- 23. Many animals are danger.
- a) at b) on c) in
- 24. Last year I was in Finland holidays.
- a) on b) in c) at
- 25. We landed London at midnight.
- a) to b) in c) at
- 26. They will come the end of July.
- a) on b) in c) at
- 27. I went Devenport to visit my friend.
- a) at b) in c) to
- 28. My sister plays piano quite well.
- a) b) in c) on
- 29. Turn right the corner.
- a) on b) in c) at
- 30. The Zoo opens 9 o'clock.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 31. I will speak him.
- a) to b) with c) —
- 32. He speaks English quite well.
- a) on b) in c) —
- 33. My brother is leaving Moscow Petersburg.
- a) b) to c) for

- 34. I am sorry being late.
- a) to b) for c) —
- 35. Do you have any books Russian Art?
- a) on b) at c) in
- 36. I hope I'll hear him soon.
- a) of b) from c) —
- 37. I had an interesting talk teacher.
- a) to b) with c) by
- 38. Will you go the country on Sunday?
- a) in b) into c) to
- 39. John is York.
- a) in b) from c) of
- 40. The stamps are the drawer.
- a) on b) to c) in
- 41. Go the blackboard.
- a) from b) up c) to
- 42. My new dress is madesilk.
- a) from b) of c) out of
- 43. Do you like to listen classical music?
- a) to b) c) on
- 44. I heard the news the radio.
- a) in b) on c) by
- 45. I was busy and didn't listen the radio.
- a) to b) on c) for
- 46. My sister arrived London on Monday.
- a) to b) in c) at
- 47. York is a town the river Ouse.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 48. I have tennis classes Mondays.
- a) in b) on c) at

- 49. We went to Scotland a week.
- a) for b) in c) at
- 50. The film starts 7.30 p.m.
- a) on b) in c) at
- 51. The conference will start November, 23rd.
- a) at b) in c) on
- 52. I go to my granny train.
- a) in b) on c) by
- 53. I like to travel foot.
- a) on b) my c) in
- 54. To come on time he takes 6 o'clock train.
- a) by b) c) in
- 55. We were business in Mexico.
- a) with b) for c) on
- 56. We'll go to the USA plane.
- a) by b) on c) in
- 57. Where would you like to go weekend.
- a) on b) for c) in
- 58. What's the time your watch?
- a) at b) on c) by
- 59. last night we went to see my aunt.
- a) On b) c) At
- 60. We always go to the country summer.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 61. My sister goes shopping Friday evening.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 62. Dan's birthday is April, 2nd.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 63. I usually get up 7.30 a.m.
- a) on b) at c) in

- 64. My lessons start eight thirty.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 65. It often snows winter.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 66. We get a lot of presents Christmas.
- a) on b) at c) in d) —
- 67. The train starts midnight.
- a) on b) at c) in

YIII. Put in one of the following: at, on, in, during, for, since, by, until.

- 1. Jack has gone away. He'll be back a week.
- 2. We're having a party Saturday. Can you come?
- 3. I've got an interview next week. It's 9.30 Tuesday morning.
- 4. Sue isn't usually here weekends. She goes away.
- 5. The train service is very good. The trains are nearly always
- 6. It was a confusing situation. Many things were happening
 The same time.
- 7. I couldn't decide whether or not to buy the sweater. the end I decided to leave it.
- 8. The road is busy all the time, even night.
- 9. I met a lot of nice people my stay in New York.
- 10. I saw Helen Friday, but I haven't seen her then.
- 11. Brian has been doing the same job five years.
- 12. Liza's birthday is the end of March. I'm not sure exactly which day it is.
- 13. We have some friends staying with us the moment. They're staying Friday.
- 14. If you 're interested in applying for the job, your application must be received Friday.
- 15. I'm just going out. I won't be long I'll be back ten minutes.

IX. Put in the missing preposition.

- 1. I'd love to be able to visit every country the world.
- 2. Jessica White is my favourite author. Have you read anything her?
- 3. "Is there a bank near here?" "Yes, there's one the end of this road."
- 4. Tim is away at the moment. He's holiday.
- 5. We live the country, a long way from the nearest town.
- 6. I've got a stain my jacket. I'll have to have it cleaned.
- 7. We went a party Linda's house on Saturday.
- 8. Boston is the east coast of the United States.
- 9. Look at the leaves that tree. They are a beautiful colour.
- 10. "Have you ever been Tokyo?" "No, I have never been Japan."
- 11. Mozart died Vienna in 1791 the age of 35.
- 12. "Are you this photograph?" "Yes, that's me, the left."
- 13. We went the theatre last night. We had seats the front row.
- 14. "Where's the light switch?" "It's the wall the door."
- 15. It was late when we arrived the hotel.
- 16. I couldn't decide what to eat. There was nothing the menu that I liked.
- 17. We live a tower block. Our flat is the fifteenth floor.
- 18. What did you think of the film?
- 19. Some parts were a bit stupid, but the whole I enjoyed it.
- 20. "When you paid the hotel bill, did you pay cash?" "No, I paid credit card."
- 21. "How did you get here? bus?" "No, car."
- 22. I wonder what's television this evening. Have got a newspaper?
- 23. Yes, the TV programmes are the back page.
- 24. Helen works for a telecommunications company. She works the customer services department.
- 25. Anna spent two years working London before returning Italy.
- 26. "Did you enjoy your trip the beach?" "Yes, it was great."

- 27. Next summer we're going a trip to Canada.
- 28. The plan has been changed, but nobody seems to know the reason this.
- 29. Don't ask me to decide. I'm not very good making decisions.
- 30. Some people say that Sue is unfriendly, but she's always very nice me.
- 31. What do you think is the best solution the problem?
- 32. There has been a big increase the price of land recently.
- 33. He lives a rather lonely life. He doesn't have much contact other people.
- 34. Michael got married a woman he met when he was studying at college.
- 35. He's very brave. He's not afraid anything.
- 36. I'm surprised the amount of traffic today. I didn't think it would be so busy.
- 37. Thank you for lending me a guidebook. It was full useful information.
- 38. Please come in and sit down. I'm sorry the mess.

X. Complete the sentence with a preposition where necessary. If no preposition is necessary, leave the space empty.

- 1. She works quite hard. You can't accuse her being lazy.
- 2. Who's going to look your children while you're at work?
- 3. The problem is becoming serious. We have to discuss it.
- 4. I prefer this chair the other one. It's more comfortable.
- 5. I must phone the office to tell them I won't be at work today.
- 6. The river divides the city two parts.
- 7. "What do you think new boss?" "She's all right, I suppose."
- 8. Can somebody please explain me what I have to do?
- 9. I said hello to her, but she didn't answer me.
- 10. The problem is becoming serious. We have to do something it.
- 11. "Do you like staying at hotels?" "It depends the hotel."
- 12. "Have you ever been to Borla?" "No, I've never heard it. Where is it?"

- 13. You remind me somebody I knew a long time ago. You look just like her.
- 14. This is wonderful news! I can't believe it.
- 15. George is not an idealist! he believes being practical.
- 16. What's funny? What are you laughing
- 17. What have you done with all this money you had? What did you spend it?
- 18. If Kevin asks you money, don't give him any.
- 19. I apologized Sarah keeping her waiting so long.
- 20. Liza was very helpful. I thanked her everything she'd done.

XI. Put in at, in, on.

- 1. I'm going away the end of the month.
- 2. It took me a long time to find a job, the end I got a job in a hotel.
- 3. Are you going away the beginning of August or the end.
- 4. I couldn't decide what to buy Ann for her birthday. I didn't buy her anything the end.
- 5. We waited ages for a taxi. We gave up the end and walked home.
- 6. I'll be moving to a new address the end of September.
- 7. We had a few problems at first, but the end everything was OK.
- 8. I'm going away the end of this week.
- 9. "I didn't know what to do." "Yes, you were in a difficult position. What did you do the end?"
- 10. The players shook hands end of the game.
- 11. To my surprise, I was offered the job \dots end of the interview.
- 12. I usually get paid the end of the month.
- 13. The bus was late this morning, but it's usually time.
- 14. Why are you never time? You always keep everybody waiting.
- 15. I nearly missed my flight this morning. I got to the airport just time.
- 16. The film was supposed to start at 8.30, but it didn't begin time.

- 17. the end of the concert, there was great applause.
- 18. He got more and more angry. the end he just walked out of the room.
- 19. first we didn't get on well, but the end we became good friends.
- 20. Pete couldn't decide where to go on holiday. He didn't go anywhere the end.
- 21. Don't meet the station. I can get a taxi.
- 22. Ann is studying chemistry university.
- 23. Pete's mother is hospital.
- 24. Were there many people party?
- 25. The meeting took place the company's head office in Frankfurt.
- 26. He was the hairdresser's yesterday.
- 27. I wasn't in when you phoned. I was my sister's house.
- 28. Shall we travel your car or mine?
- 29. Paul lives London. He's a student London University.
- 30. I don't know where my umbrella is. Perhaps I left it the bus.
- 31. Our flight was delayed. We had to wait the airport for five hours.
- 32. I play basketball the sports centre Friday evenings.
- 33. I'd like to watch a film. What's on the cinema this week?
- 34. There are fifty rooms the hotel.
- 35. It was a slow train. It stopped every station.
- 36. We went to the theatre last night. We had seats the front row.
- 37. I couldn't hear the teacher. She spoke quietly and I was sitting the back of the class.
- 38. I wrote the date the back of the photograph.
- 39. We stopped a small village the way to London.
- 40. The television is the corner of the room.
- 41. There is a post box the corner of the street.
- 42. Have you seen this picture today's paper.
- 43. James isn't up yet. He's still bed.
- 44. In Britain we drive the left-hand side.
- 45. The garden is the back of the house.

XII. Translate these sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Фильм был не очень интересным. Я уснул во время фильма.
- 2. Мы встретили много людей в то время, когда мы были в отпуске.
- 3. Поторопись! К тому времени как мы доберемся до театра, спектакль уже начнется.
- 4. Петр вернется к понедельнику.
- 5. Я увижу ее в пятницу.
- 6. Они прибыли вчера в 5.
- 7. Что ты будешь делать в выходные?
- 8. На Новый год все люди дарят друг другу подарки.
- 9. Этот курс начинается 20 января.
- 10. Я собираюсь уехать в конце января.
- 11. Мы пришли на вокзал как раз вовремя.
- 12. В конце концов они подписали договор.
- 13. Наш дом в конце этой улицы.
- 14. На двери была записка.
- 15. На автобусной остановке было много народа.
- 16. Никто не живет на этом острове.
- 17. Штаб-квартира этой компании находится в Лондоне.
- 18. Если ты поедешь сюда автобусом, выйди на остановке после светофора.
- 19. Анна работает в отделе продаж.
- 20. Кто-то стоит у двери.
- 21. Он повернул налево на светофоре и поехал прямо.
- 22. Я не люблю класть сахар в кофе.
- 23. Телевизор находится в углу комнаты.
- 24. Вы читали новости в сегодняшней газете?
- 25. Она еще не встала. Она в кровати.
- 26. Лондон расположен на реке Темза.
- 27. Подпишитесь в конце страницы.
- 28. Кто та женщина на фото?
- 29. Наша квартира на 5 этаже в этом здании.
- 30. Давай сядем на первый ряд.
- 31. Было плохо видно, потому что мы сидели на последнем ряду.

- 32. Не встречай меня на вокзале, я доберусь на такси.
- 33. Поезд останавливается в Ярославле?
- 34. Я видела Петра на концерте вчера.
- 35. Занятие проходит всегда в переговорной.
- 36. Наш самолет приземлился в аэропорту Шереметьево.
- 37. Я люблю плавать в море.
- 38. Мама Ани в больнице.
- 39. Я буду на работе весь день.
- 40. Давай встретимся у входа в отель.
- 41. В автобусе было много народа.
- 42. Он приехал на такси.
- 43. Он учится в университете.
- 44. Вы когда-нибудь были в Риме?
- 45. Добро пожаловать в нашу страну.
- 46. Иди домой. Уже поздно.
- 47. Она села в автобус и я ее никогда больше не видел.
- 48. В возрасте 16 лет она закончила школу.
- 49. Мне придется посидеть на диете.
- 50. Он был в командировке на прошлой неделе.
- 51. Она родилась в Москве.
- 52. Он всю жизнь живет в Москве.
- 53. Они собираются в Китай этим летом.
- 54. В какое время прибывает поезд из Лондона?
- 55. Не выходи в дождь. Подожди пока он прекратится.
- 56. Мне жаль, но ее сейчас нет. Перезвоните через 10 минут.
- 57. Наш самолет летит со скоростью 800 км, в час.
- 58. Сколько стоит одноместный номер в вашем отеле? А завтрак включен?
- 59. Я слушала интересную программу по радио вчера.
- 60. Иногда на работе у меня проблемы, но в целом, мне нравится моя работа.
- 61. Извини, я открыла твое письмо по ошибке.
- 62. Он расплатился кредитной картой.
- 63. Его зарплата выросла на 15%.
- 64. Самый дорогой вид путешествия самолет.
- 65. Люди не могут не восхищаться картинами Рембрандта.
- 66. Я предпочитаю рассчитываться наличными.

- 67. Я собираюсь в отпуск на следующей неделе.
- 68. Я с нетерпением жду отпуска.
- 69. В выходные мы поедем в деревню.
- 70. Я встретила Катю по пути домой.
- 71. Идите по дороге, затем поверните налево у магазина.
- 72. В магазине было полно людей.
- 73. В конце игры игроки пожали друг другу руки.
- 74. Вы работаете в субботу утром?
- 75. Я не люблю ехать на машине ночью.
- 76. Они поженились в прошлом июне.
- 77. Я научилась водить машину за 4 недели.
- 78. К тому времени как я добралась на вечеринку, большинство из гостей уже ушло.
- 79. Петр уехал, его не будет до пятницы.
- 80. Вчера мы смотрели телевизор 2 часа.

THE COMPLEX SUBJECT

Complex Subject в переводе значит 'сложное подлежащее'. Сложное оно не потому, что его сложно изучить (совсем не сложно), а потому что оно сложено из двух частей: существительное\ местоимение + инфинитив. Кроме того, между двумя частями подлежащего вклинено сказуемое, что необычно для английского языка.

Сложное подлежащее (Complex Subject) состоит из существительного\местоимения + инфинитива. Местоимение здесь в именительном падеже (he, she, we, they), а не в объектном (him, her, us, them), как в обороте Complex Object (сложное дополнение).

Сказуемое выражено глаголом в пассивном залоге, исключение — глаголы appear, seem, happen, prove, turn out.

Сказуемое может быть выражено не только глаголом, но и сочетанием "to be + прилагательное": be likely, be unlikely и др.

Глагол (сказуемое) теоретически может быть в любом времени, но чаще — в настоящем (is unlikely, seems, are said).

В качестве инфинитива очень часто используется инфинитив глагола to be (собственно, в форме "to be").

Инфинитив может быть в любой из шести форм, но чаще в простой форме (Simple Infinitive) в активном или пассивном залоге.

	Active	Passive
Indefinite(Simple)	to write	to be written
Continuous	to be writing	_
Perfect	to have written	to have been written
Perfect Continuous	to have been writing	_

Варианты оборота Complex Subject

Варианты предложений с Complex Subject можно разделить на несколько групп в зависимости от того, какой глагол используется в качестве сказуемого.

1. ГЛАГОЛЫ ЗНАНИЯ И РЕЧИ

know — знать, say — говорить, think — думать, state — заявлять, report — сообщать, announce — сообщать.

You are said to play chess very well.

He is said to live abroad.

New Orleans is known to be a fabulous city.

He is reported to have a serious decease.

The plan is announced not to be reliable.

2. ГЛАГОЛЫ, ВЫРАЖАЮЩИЕ ПРЕДПОЛОЖЕНИЕ, ОЖИДАНИЕ

expect — ожидать, believe — полагать, верить, consider — считать, suppose — полагать.

Your students are expected to pass the exam.

That photo is believed to be an evidence.

The bank is believed to be robbed by its employee.

The species are considered to co-exist.

3. ГЛАГОЛЫ ВОСПРИЯТИЯ

hear — слышать, see — видеть, notice — замечать.

My cat was seen to chase a dog.

The stag was heard to run away.

The player was noticed to cheat.

The ghost was seen to walk around the castle.

4. СЛОВОСОЧЕТАНИЯ С ПРИЛАГАТЕЛЬНЫМИ

Сложное подлежащее используется с сочетаниями "to be + прилагательное", такими как:

be likely — вероятно, be unlikely — маловероятно, be certain — определенно, несомненной, be sure — обязательно, наверняка.

Bobby is likely to lose the match.

Aliens are unlikely to make contact with us.

The company is certain to make more money next year.

Lily is unlikely to win the party.

This car is sure to be expensive.

Make (be) sure + инфинитив

Make sure можно перевести как "убедись в чем-то" или "обязательно сделай что-то".

Make sure to take a plenty of water.

Be sure to turn off the stove before you leave.

В этом обороте может использоваться придаточное предложение (подчеркнуто) вместо инфинитива:

Make sure that nobody is watching.

Make sure that you tried everything.

5. COMPLEX SUBJECT И ГЛАГОЛЫ В АКТИВНОМ ЗАЛОГЕ

В большинстве случаев сказуемое выражено глаголом в пассивном залоге, исключение — глаголы:

seem — казаться, appear — казаться, выглядеть, появляться,

turn out — оказываться. prove — оказываться,

happen — случаться, оказываться,

Эти глаголы используются в активном залоге.

The dress seems to be expensive.

She seems to be a nice person.

The study appears to show a good result.

A boy happened to witness the robbery.

Their fears proved to be founded.

The player turned out to be a cheater.

I. Translate the following sentences from English into Russian.

- 1. Moscow is known to be one of the largest cities in the world.
- 2. The performance is expected to be a great success.
- 3. He is supposed to have finished the translation of the book.
- 4. She is unlikely to improve the situation.
- 5. He is known to be composing a new opera.
- 6. This novel is likely to be published in May.
- 7. This problem is sure to be solved.
- 8. The task turned out to be very difficult.
- 9. Everybody seemed to like him.
- 10. The actors are said to have arrived.
- 11. The travellers are expected to have been sailing for a week.
- 12. The ship is said to be sailing on Monday.
- 13. The members are understood to have agreed to come by 9.
- 14. The experiment is said to have been completed successfully.
- 15. The expedition is thought to have reached Angara.
- 16. She was said to have written a brilliant play.
- 17. The student is known to have been studying English for three years.
- 18. This fruit is known to be grown in Africa.
- 19. She seemed to be speaking to herself.
- 20. He seems to have been translating something for hours.
- 21. Nobody appears to have mentioned her name.
- 22. He doesn't seem to have forgotten her promise.
- 23. They seemed to be tired.
- 24. They are likely to have accepted her offer.
- 25. He is unlikely to have accepted her invitation.
- 26. He is sure to ring me up in the morning.
- 27. The matter is likely to be discussed today.
- 28. She is sure to return soon.
- 29. Nobody appears to have noticed his mistakes.
- 30. The experiment was announced to have been finished.
- 31. He was seen to swim across the river.
- 32. Somebody was heard to talk in the hall.
- 33. Snow is not expected to fall in November.
- 34. China is known to be the most populated country.

- 35. The harvest is supposed to be gathered in time.
- 36. She is supposed to have been working for a week.
- 37. He is unlikely to have hidden my magazines under the table.
- 38. The machine is likely to be fixed by our workers.
- 39. The girl was often heard to have sung this song.
- 40. The boy seemed to be sleeping.
- 41. The article seemed to be written by an expert.
- 42. The situation is believed to be changed.
- 43. The student appears to know the subject well.
- 44. This credit is likely to be given.
- 45. The artist is said to have finished this work.
- 46. This place is believed to have been built in the 18th century.
- 47. The archeologists are reported to have found very interesting things.
- 48. We appear to know little about it.
- 49. Many tourists appeared to know English.
- 50. He is believed to be writing a good article.
- 51. She is likely to succeed.
- 52. He seemed to have noticed something.
- 53. A girl with long straight hair appeared to be attracting everybody's attention.
- 54. They seem to be planning a new attack.
- 55. It was bound to happen.
- 56. The children are sure to have been fighting again.
- 57. The secret was believed to have been lost.
- 58. I'm not going to change my mind because 12 stupid men happened to make a mistake.
- 59. The cargo doesn't seem to have been damaged by the storm.
- 60. The invitation is considered to be of great importance.
- 61. The negotiations are likely to continue until Saturday.
- 62. Lake Baikal is said to be the deepest lake in the world.

II. Choose the right variant.

- 1. He is sure in time.
- a) comes b) to come c) came d) coming

- 2. We were supposed with us till Monday.
- a) stayed b) stay c) to stay d) had stayed
- 3. She was supposed here in the evening.
- a) to be b) be c) being d) been
- 4. He is said the whole truth about it.
- a) to know b) to have known c) being known d) knew
- 5. It is expected the performance a success.
- a) be b) to be c) being d) is
- 6. She is supposed to him.
- a) to engage b) to be engaged c) engaged d) engaging
- 7. The state of his health is considered normal.
- a) is b) was c) to be d) has been
- 8. I happened there.
- a) am b) was c) to be d) have been
- 9. They are likely her offer.
- a) to accept b) to have accepted c) accept d) be accepted
- 10. The question is likely today.
- a) to be discussed b) to discuss c) be discussing d) is discussing

III. Finish the sentences.

- 1. He is getting used to his new job. He appears
- 2. Kate makes friends easily. Kate tends
- 3. He has finished the report. He claims
- 4. It's raining over there. It seems
- 5. She is not on a diet.
- 6. They have sailed round the world. They claim
- 7. She is feelling better. She seems He was a qualified economist. He proved
- 8. You may miss the train unless you hurry. You are likely
- 9. The interview with the young artist was rather interesting. The interview with the young artist turned out

IY. Open the brackets, using the correct form of the Infinitive.

- 1. He seems (to read) since morning.
- 2. She seemed (to work) at his problem since he came here.
- 3. He appears (to know) French well. He is said (to spend) his youth in Paris.
- 4. The enemy was reported (to overthrow) the defence and (to advance) towards the city.
- 5. You seem (to look) for trouble.
- 6. They seemed (to quarrel). I could hear their angry voices.
- 7. They are supposed (to work) at the problem for the last 2 months.
- 8. Her ring was believed (to lose) until she happened (to find) it while cleaning the house.
- 9. They seemed (to wait) for ages.
- 10. She smiled and waved her hand. She seemed (to recognise) me.
- 11. Even if he is out, you needn't worry. He is sure (to leave) the key under the door-mat.
- 12. You won't be likely (to miss) the train if you start right away.
- 13. At that time I happened (to work) at my first novel.
- 14. She lost her head and seemed (to forget) the little English she knew.
- 15. A young woman is supposed (to write) this book.
- 16. You needn't mention it again. He is not likely (to forget) it.
- 17. He is believed (to teach) by his father.
- 18. You needn't tell me this. I happened (to give) all these details by mother.
- 19. She is expected (to operate) on today.
- 20. Just look at his hands. He is sure (to work) in the garage.
- 21. He seems (to be satisfied) with the results.
- 22. It seemed it would take not less time than a page (to put) it into words.
- 23. The book is likely (to publish) and (to appear) on sale soon. It is sure (to sell) well out in no time.
- 24. The man appears (to know) practically all European languages; he is said (to learn) them while travelling.

- 25. The committee is said (to revise) the programme and (work out) a plan of its realization.
- 26. The man seemed (to study) me and I felt uneasy in his presence.
- 27. The book was believed (to lose) until the librarian happened (to find) it during the inventory.
- 28. We seem (to fly) over the sea for quite a time and there is yet no land to see.
- 29. We don't seem (to acquaint), at least I can't remember having ever met him.
- 30. He is supposed (to live) here for most of his life.

Y. Paraphrase the following sentences using the Complex Subject.

- 1. It happened that they met that very day.
- 2. It proved that there were some broken cups in the case.
- 3. It seems that the play has made a deep impression on him.
- 4. It proved that he was a very experienced worker.
- 5. It appears that the house was built in the 18th century.
- 6. It happened that there was a doctor there at that time.
- 7. It appears that there are different opinions on his subject.
- 8. It seems that there is a great difference between these two samples.
- 9. It happened that he was at home at that time.
- 10. It is known that he has a large collection of pictures.
- 11. It may be said that the new theatre is the most beautiful building in the town.
- 12. It was reported that the ship had arrived in Odessa.
- 13. It can't be considered that the results of the experiments are bad.
- 14. It is expected that many people will attend the meeting.
- 15. It is believed that there is hope of reaching an agreement.
- 16. It is said that the expedition has reached Nakhodka.
- 17. It is considered that the mine is the best in the district.
- 18. It can be expected that the weather will improve soon.
- 19. It can't be expected this football team will win.
- 20. It is said that there are many difficulties in solving this problem.

- 21. It appears unlikely that the experiment will give good results.
- 22. It is likely that he has accepted their offer.
- 23. It is certain that they will come soon.
- 24. It appears likely that he will recover soon.
- 25. It is likely that there will be a heated discussion on this matter.
- 26. It is unlikely that the meeting will be postponed.
- 27. It is very likely that his article will be published in the newspaper.
- 28. It is certain that they will be here on Monday.
- 29. It is likely that there will be a good wheat this year.
- 30. It wasn't likely that the telegramme would reach them in time.
- 31. It seemed unlikely that the price of these raw materials would rise.
- 32. It is likely that the conference will be held in Moscow.
- 33. It is likely that the goods were shipped on Monday.
- 34. It seems likely that an agreement will be reached in the near future.
- 35. It seems likely that there will be a storm on the sea.
- 36. It seemed that she sensed the purpose of his question.
- 37. It appeared that George was talking to Mr. Brown.
- 38. It doesn't seem that he understands this letter.
- 39. It is believed that Jack had arrived in New York.
- 40. It happened that he was present at the congress.
- 41. It turned out that the way to his house was not long.
- 42. It seems that you don't believe me.
- 43. It happened that the doctor was at home.
- 44. It appears that they have known all about this event.
- 45. It seems that she is writing a new novel.
- 46. It turned out that the weather forecast was correct.
- 47. It seems that he doesn't recognize this problem.
- 48. If we go to the forest, we will lose our way.
- 49. It is said that the actors have arrived.
- 50. It is supposed that the experiment was completed last week.
- 51. It is expected that the travellers have been sailing for a week.
- 52. It is considered that he is the best dancer of the theatre.
- 53. It is believed that the situation will change.
- 54. It is said that the ship is sailing on Friday.

- 55. It is believed that she has written a good report.
- 56. It is believed that he is writing a new book.
- 57. It seems that the article is written by an expert.
- 58. It is believed that she is a woman of forty.
- 59. It is supposed that the girl is at school.
- 60. It is supposed that he wants to leave the town.
- 61. It is understood that all the members have agreed to come at 10 o'clock.
- 62. It was announced that the dancers were arriving next week.
- 63. It is said that the weather in Europe was exceedingly hot last summer.
- 64. It turned out that my prediction was correct.
- 65. It happened that I was present at the opening session.
- 66. The children seem that they have been playing since childhood.
- 67. He seems that he has read all the books in the library.
- 68. It seems that you know all about it.
- 69. It appeared that he was losing his patience.
- 70. It turned out that we had known each other for ages.

VI. Make a new sentence using the verb in brackets.

- 1. You've lost weight. (seem)
- 2. Tom is worried about something. (appear)
- 3. You know a lot of people. (seem)
- 4. My English is getting better. (seem)
- 5. That car has broken down. (appear)
- 6. David forgets things. (tend)
- 7. They have solved the problem. (claim) \dots .

YII. Translate these sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Вальтер Скотт считается создателем исторического романа.
- 2. Сообщают, что экспедиция достигла места назначения.
- 3. Он, по-видимому, хорошо знает английский язык.
- 4. Я случайно знаю его номер телефона.

- 5. Он оказался хорошим спортсменом.
- 6. Шум, казалось, все приближался.
- 7. Он, кажется, пишет новую статью.
- 8. Кажется, что он работает над статьей уже 2 недели.
- 9. Его статья, несомненно, будет напечатана.
- 10. Я случайно встретил его в Москве.
- 11. Обязательно прочитайте эту книгу. Она вам, несомненно, понравится.
- 12. Известно, что Юрий Гагарин первый человек, который полетел в космос.
- 13. Объявили, что террорист подорвался на собственной бомбе.
- 14. Объявили, что президент России будет выступать перед своим народом сегодня вечером.
- 15. Предполагают, что он хороший актер.
- 16. Говорили, что он знает всю правду об этом.
- 17. Ожидали, что он сдаст этот трудный экзамен.
- 18. Предполагали, что студенты придут вовремя и примут участие в соревнованиях.
- 19. Она считается самой богатой женщиной в мире.
- 20. Известно, что много книг публикуются в нашей стране каждый год.
- 21. Считается, что его изобретение имеет огромную важность для страны.
- 22. Люди считают, что климат здесь очень здоровый.
- 23. Говорят, что московское метро самое красивое в мире.
- 24. Говорят, что эта книга популярна как у молодежи, так и у взрослого населения.
- 25. Эта работа, кажется, отнимет много времени.
- 26. Оказалось, что он не слышал, что ему сказали.
- 27. Оказалось, что мое предположение было правильным.
- 28. Оказалось, что они все-таки заблудились.
- 29. Станок оказался в отличном состоянии.
- 30. Сообщили, что корабль пропал во время шторма.
- 31. Оказалось, что она хорошая актриса.
- 32. Похоже, что он выиграет приз.
- 33. Он обязательно придет завтра.

- 34. Если я спрошу его, то он обязательно все расскажет об этом.
- 35. Вероятно, что эта статья появится в следующем номере.
- 36. Не похоже, что она изменит свое мнение.
- 37. Они обязательно придут к пониманию.
- 38. Петя оказался храбрым мальчиком.
- 39. Я случайно встретил его на выставке.
- 40. Говорят, что он работает над своей книгой уже несколько лет.
- 41. Предполагают, что урожай зерна будет богатым в этом году.
- 42. Оказалось, что в этом доме никто не жил долгое время.
- 43. Аню знали, как честную и трудолюбивую девушку.
- 44. Говорили, что он уже уехал в Лондон.
- 45. Думали, что он все об этом знает.
- 46. Полагают, что он невиновен в этом преступлении.
- 47. Ожидается, что выставка французских художников 20 века откроется к концу следующей недели.
- 48. Говорили, что он один из самых выдающихся ученых 20 века.
- 49. Сообщают, что число безработных увеличивается с каждым годом.
- 50. Если мы будем продолжать спорить, то мы обязательно поссоримся.
- 51. Вероятно, он приедет утром.
- 52. Вероятно, эти картины будут проданы в будущем году.
- 53. Вероятно, новый магазин будет открыт в июле.
- 54. Вероятно, мы встретим их там.
- 55. Он, вероятно, будет дома в это время.
- 56. Вполне вероятно, этот кредит будет предоставлен.
- 57. Ожидают, что самолет прибудет в 6 часов.
- 58. Требуют, чтобы рабочие собрались в 5 часов.
- 59. Предполагают, что это открытие имеет большое значение для медицины.
- 60. Сообщают, что в результате железнодорожной катастрофы погибло 6 человек и ранено 3.
- 61. Полагают, что корабль был уничтожен противником.

- 62. Считают, что он лучший специалист в этой области.
- 63. Считают, что сейчас хорошее время для сбора урожая.
- 64. Оказалось, что мы уже встречались.
- 65. Я случайно знаю их адрес.
- 66. Похоже, что она не изменит свое решение.
- 67. Полагают, что этот дворец построен в 15 веке.
- 68. Считают, что климат здесь очень здоровый.
- 69. Говорят, что он знает 6 языков.
- 70. Они обязательно придут к пониманию.

THE COMPLEX OBJECT

Конструкция Complex Object — сложное дополнение, несмотря на свое пугающее название, на самом деле довольно проста. Рассмотрим следующие предложения:

Я хочу, чтобы ты сходил в магазин.

Я хотел бы, чтобы ты поиграл с ребенком.

Я видел, что он перешел дорогу

В русском языке такие фразы строятся при помощи придаточного предложения. В английском языке такие предложения образуются при помощи специальной конструкции — Complex Object — сложного дополнения.

Сложное дополнение может состоять из прямого дополнения + инфинитив с частицей to или без to / ing-овая форма глагола, что зависит от глагола сказуемого.

Структура сложного дополнения

Поэтому наши примеры будут выглядеть на английском языке следующим образом:

I want you to go to the shop

I would like you to play with the child

I saw him cross the street

Все эти сложные дополнения переводятся на русский язык придаточными дополнительными предложениями, начинающимися с союзов как, чтобы, что Complex object + инфинитив с частицей to.

Конструкция Complex object + инфинитив с частицей to употребляется после глаголов:

Mother wants me to get good marks at school.

We know him to speak Spanish well.

Would you like me to help you with Math?

The teacher **expected** the students to hand in the tests at once.

I'd like you to smile.

I would prefer you to return home by taxi. It's late.

Примечание: со следующими глаголами также употребляется конструкция 'object + infinitive':

advise, allow, beg, cause, command, compel, encourage, expect, forbid, force, get, hate, help, instruct, intend, invite, leave, love, mean, need, oblige, order, permit, prefer, recommend, remind, request, teach, tempt, trouble, want, warn, wish

Конструкция Complex object + инфинитив без частицы to употребляется после глаголов **make** — заставлять и **let** — позволять, разрешать

Don't make me drink milk, I hate it!

In my childhood my parents made me learn to play the piano.

Let the children play in the park, the weather is wonderful.

Don't let her go there alone, she may get lost.

Complex object после глаголов восприятия употребляется либо инфинитив без частицы to, либо ing-овая форма глагола

Разница между использованием инфинитива (do) и ing-овой формы глагола (doing) в следующем: если объект начал и закончил действие, то есть, действие полностью завершено, то употребляется инфинитив без частицы to (do), если объект был в процессе действия и действие не закончено, то употребляется ing- форма (doing)

Я видел, как он открыл окно — действие завершено: окно открыто. В русском языке использован глагол совершенного вида: открыл — что сделал? Поэтому на английский это предложение будет переведено при помощи инфинитива без частицы to: I saw him open the window

Я видел, как он открывал окно — то есть, я видел, как происходил сам процесс: окно открывалось. Здесь использован глагол несовершенного вида: открывал — что делал? Поэтому в английском языке здесь будет использована ing-овая форма глагола: I saw him opening the window.

We saw her crossing the river.

I felt somebody touch my shoulder.

I didn't notice him put the letter on the table.

At the zoo we often watched monkeys playing in their cage.

I often hear him playing the violin in his room.

Конструкция «to have something done» обозначает, что действие, выраженное глаголом сказуемым + причастие прошедшего

времени (V3), совершает не само лицо, а кто-то другой по просьбе или приказу действующего лица.

I want to have my hair cut. — Я хочу подстричься (то есть, я не сам себя буду стричь, это будет делать по моей просьбе парикмахер)

Father had his car repaired yesterday. — Папа починил машину (то есть, ему в мастерской починил ее механик)

You should have this carpet cleaned. — Тебе нужно почистить ковер (отдать его в чистку)

She had her children looked after in the evening when she went out. — 3a ее детьми присматривали вечером, когда она ушла.

Where do you usually have your dress made? — Где тебе обычно шьют платья? have-smth-done

I. Translate the following sentences from English into Russian.

- 1. Everybody expected her to marry Nick.
- 2. I would like them to come as soon as possible.
- 3. I expect you to join us.
- 4. I hate playing the piano.
- 5. She wants you to bring the book back tomorrow.
- 6. We expect them to enjoy the performance.
- 7. Soon they made him talk.
- 8. Who made you cry?
- 9. Don't make me tell the truth.
- 10. They let me come to a decision.
- 11. Let me know when everything will be ready.
- 12. Let her ring up tomorrow evening.
- 13. He didn't let me pay for dinner.
- 14. I want you to wait me here.
- 15. I expected the student to answer al the questions.
- 16. I saw them walking together in the park.
- 17. I didn't sleep and heard somebody come into my room.
- 18. Make her learn these words at last.
- 19. Let children go for a walk.
- 20. I saw Ann packing the suitcases.

II. Put the verb in the correct form.

- 1. What made you (to think) so?
- 2. Don't let us (to get worried).
- 3. He was made (to obey the rules).
- 4. He wanted (to post the letters) at once.
- 5. Would you like (the luggage, to carry) upstairs?
- 6. I want (a bedroom, to prepare) for my guest.
- 7. The traveller entered the inn and ordered (dinner, to prepare).
- 8. If you want (things, do) well, do it yourself.
- 9. She gave him some papers and said that the client wanted (they, to sign).
- 10. She didn't want (her child, to take) to hospital.
- 11. I want (he, help) me.
- 12. The teacher wanted (the pupils, learn) the rule.
- 13. Mother made (I, drink) warm milk.
- 14. I hate (she, cry).
- 15. I saw (he, enter).
- 16. I want (the work, do).
- 17. I heard (she, speak).
- 18. I saw (he, drop) his bag.
- 19. I expect (he, come).
- 20. I know (he, be) a great scientist.

III. Choose the right answer.

- 1. What made you your mind?
- a) change b) to change c) changed d) changing
- 2. Mother didn't let the child TV.
- a) to watch b) watching c) watched d) watch
- 3. I couldn't hear him his voice.
- a) rise b) rose c) raise d) raised
- 4. I am going to the hairdresser's
- a) To have my hair cut b) have my hair cut c) cutting my hair d) cut my hair

- 5. I would like
- a) to have my car repaired b) to have repaired my car c) my car repairing d) my car repair
 - 6. We saw the cat from the tree.
 - a) jumping b) to jump c) to have jumped d) were jumping
 - 7. He is still trying to make me my mind.
 - a) Change b) to change c) changed d) changing
 - 8. We couldn't make back.
 - a) him to come b) him come c) he come d) he to come
 - 9. Do you want the letter tomorrow or just now/
 - a) to write b) wrote c) to be written d) is written
 - 10. We saw the paper.
 - a) them signing b) they signing c) them to sign d) they to sign
 - 11. He watched the postman the letters.
 - a) to distribute b) distributing c) distributor d) distribution
 - 12. She made
- a) him apologise b) he apologise c) he to apologise d) him apologising

IY. Write the sentences using the Complex Object.

- 1. The Smith want (we, visit) them next month.
- 2. The Smith want (we, visit) them next month.
- 3. Do you want (she, post) the letter for you.
- 4. What does the teacher expect (the pupils, do) during the lesson?
- 5. The man wouldn't like (his son, become) a teacher.
- 6. When do you expect (they, arrive)?
- 7. Alice didn't expect (the exams, start) in April.
- 8. Don't make (I, repeat) that again.
- 9. The teacher let (the class, go) home early.
- 10. She wanted (her husband, borrow) some money to buy a car.

- 11. I know (he, be) a very experienced driver.
- 12. Nobody noticed (we, leave) the room.
- 13. Tim didn't want (Richard, be, invite) to the party.
- 14. She made (her daughter, do the chores).
- 15. What made (you, believe) him?
- 16. Let (Mary, explain) you everything.

Y. Use the Complex Object with or without to.

- 1. The mother made her son tell the truth.
- 2. Let me pay for the meal.
- 3. Lisa doesn't want Pete come back.
- 4. Martha didn't expect Peter ask such an embarrassing question.
- 5. They would like us take part in the competition.
- 6. Glasses make him look older.
- 7. My lawyer advised me not tell anything to the police.
- 8. Having a car enables you travel round more easily.
- 9. Don't let him punish the child.
- 10. I've never been to England but I'd like to go there.

YI. Make up sentences.

- 1. her/ to/ the text/ the teacher/ wanted/ translate/ pupils.
- 2. recommend/for/ my/ holidays/ you/ me/ where/ would/ to/ go.
- 3. her/ pupils/ the lessons/ doesn't/ the teacher/ miss/ want/ to/
- 4. always/ me/ my/ parents/ study/ encourage/ hard/ to/ at/ school/
- 5. invited/ for/ a/ few/ days/ Jane's/ to/ with/ them/ her/ stay/ friends/

YII. Rephrase the following sentences.

- 1. You mustn't be late for work. I don't want
- 2. Peter must tidy his room. I want

- 3. She mustn't go to the disco. I don't want
- 4. They must go to school tomorrow. I want
- 5. Ann mustn't make so much noise. I don't want
- 6. You mustn't make a mess. I don't want
- 7. He must mend his bike. I want

YIII. Complete the sentences, using the following verbs in the correct form.

climb come crawl cry explode ride run say sing slam sleep tell wait for play tennis have dinner play the guitar burn run

- 1. Listen to the birds!
- 2. I didn't hear you
- 3. We listened to the old man his story from beginning to end.
- 4. Listen! Can you hear a baby?
- 5. I looked out of the window and saw Pete his bike along the road.
- 6. I thought I heard somebody "Hi", so I looked around.
- 7. We watched two men across the garden and through an open window into the house.
- 8. Everybody heard the bomb \dots . It was a tremendous noise.
- 9. Oh, I can feel something up my leg! It must be an insect.
- 10. I heard somebody the door in the middle of the night. It woke me up.
- 11. When we got home, we found a cat on the kitchen table.
- 12. We saw Kate a bus.
- 13. We heard John and Ann
- 14. We could see Clare
- 15. We could listen Bill
- 16. We saw Linda
- 17. We could feel the smell

IX. Complete these questions. Use do you want me to? or would you like me to? with these verbs: come lend repeat show shut wait

- Do you want to go alone, or?
 Do you have enough money, or do you want?
 Shall I leave the window open, or would you?
 Do you know how to use the machine, or would you?
 Did you hear what I said, or do you?
- 6. Can I go now, or do you?

X. Complete each second sentence so that the meaning is similar to the first sentence.

- 1. My father said I could use his car. My father allowed
- 2. I was surprised that it rained. I didn't expect
- 3. Don't stop him doing what he wants. Let
- 4. Tim looks older when he wears glasses. Tim's glasses make
- 5. I think you should know the truth. I want
- 6. Don't let me forget to phone my sister. Remind
- 7. At first I didn't want to apply for the Sarah persuaded job, but Sarah persuaded me.
- 8. My lawyer said I shouldn't say My lawyer advised anything to the police.
- 9. I was told that I shouldn't believe I was warned everything he says.
- 10. If you've got a car, you are able Having a car enables to get around more easily.

II. Complete the situation using have something done.

- 1. Sue is at the hairdresser's at the moment. She
- 2. Ann's watch has been broken, so she took it to a watchmaker. Now it is working.
- 3. Can I see the holiday photograph you took. I'm afraid not,
- 4. What are the workers doing in the garden? Oh, I

XI. Put the verb into the correct form: infinitive (do/ make/ eat, etc.) or to + infinitive.

- 1. They don't allow people in front of the building. (park)
- 2. I've never been to Iceland, but I'd like there. (go)
- 3. I'm in a difficult position. What do you advise me? (do)
- 4. The film was very said. It made me (cry)
- 5. Diane's parents always encouraged her hard at school. (study)
- 6. She said the letter was personal and wouldn't let me it. (read)
- 7. We are not allowed personal phone calls at work. (make)
- 8. "I don't think Alex likes me." "What makes you that?" (think)

XII. Translate the following sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Я хочу, чтобы вы, наконец, меня поняли.
- 2. Мы наблюдали, как дети играли в саду.
- 3. Она слышала, что они вернулись поздно.
- 4. Они не хотели, чтобы я делал эту работу один.
- 5. Никто не заметил, как он ушел.
- 6. Позвольте мне помочь вам.
- 7. Он позволил мне звонить ему в любое время.
- 8. Я не ожидал, что он вернется так скоро.
- 9. Я почувствовал, что кто-то на меня внимательно смотрит.
- 10. Что заставило вас сказать это?
- 11. Я видел, что он подошел к ней и что-то сказал.
- 12. Мать заставила маленького сына сделать уроки перед тем, как идти гулять.
- 13. Я слышал, как он что-то объяснял ей.
- 14. Все родители хотят, чтобы их дети были сильными и здоровыми.
- 15. Мы не ожидали, что он опоздает на лекцию.
- 16. Она знала, что он жестокий и черствый человек.
- 17. Он почувствовал, что рука его матери дрожит.

- 18. Она услышала, что кто-то шепотом зовет ее.
- 19. Мы ожидали, что товары будут доставлены через 2 недели.
- 20. Плохая погода заставила нас вернуться домой.
- 21. Вам надо отгладить и почистить костюм.
- 22. Мне надо сфотографироваться.
- 23. Вам не починят кран до понедельника.
- 24. Где вам шьют платья?
- 25. Где вам сшили это платье?
- 26. Она сшила себе новое пальто.
- 27. Мне нужно сделать прическу.
- 28. Ей выкрасили кухню в светло-зеленый цвет.
- 29. Я рассчитываю, что письмо придет завтра.
- 30. Я знаю, что она талантливая певица.
- 31. Он ожидал, что они ответят сразу.
- 32. Мы рассчитываем, что погода изменится.
- 33. Она не любит, когда мы приходим поздно.
- 34. Она терпеть не может, когда я опаздываю.
- 35. Дождь заставил нас вернуться домой.
- 36. Я заметила, как он дрожал.
- 37. Я заметила, что он дрожит.
- 38. Он услышал, что девочка поет.
- 39. Я услышал, как он открыл дверь.
- 40. Я услышал, что он открывает дверь.
- 41. Мы видели, как она выходит из дома.
- 42. Отец видел, как Аня что-то пишет.
- 43. Я хочу, чтобы эту статью напечатали в газете.
- 44. Учитель заметил, что ученики разговаривают.
- 45. Мать следила, как ее маленький сын чистит зубы.
- 46. Вы уже подстриглись?
- 47. Где вы обычно стрижетесь?
- 48. Мама хотела, чтобы я полила цветы.
- 49. Я знаю, что ваш друг актер.
- 50. Я заставлю его принести книгу завтра.
- 51. Он видел, как дети бегут к реке.
- 52. Я бы хотела, чтобы вы провели лето в деревне.
- 53. Мы ожидали, что делегация приедет в конце недели.
- 54. Я хочу, чтобы диктант был написан хорошо.

- 55. Мы часто слышали, как они спорят.
- 56. Вчера я сфотографировался.
- 57. Я хочу сшить новое платье.
- 58. Я заставлю тебя хорошо учиться.
- 59. Мы любим приходить сюда и наблюдать, как играют дети.
- 60. Мама хочет, чтобы ты не вмешивался не в свое дело.
- 61. Что заставило передумать моего дядю?
- 62. Я хочу, чтобы эти книги были возвращены.
- 63. Мы видели, как он входил в офис.
- 64. Если вы хотите, чтобы я помогла ему, дайте мне знать.
- 65. Мой друг хочет, чтобы я к нему пришел.
- 66. Мама заставила его надеть пальто.
- 67. Это заставило меня подумать, как исправить ошибку.
- 68. Я не люблю, что ты остаешься после уроков.
- 69. Я хочу, чтобы ты это сделала сама.
- 70. Он видел. Что она вышла из дома.
- 71. Я знаю, что он очень опытный врач.
- 72. Мы ожидаем, что договор будет подписан в ближайшем будущем.
- 73. Я ожидаю, что меня пригласят туда.
- 74. Я считаю, что он прав.
- 75. Когда вы ожидаете, что эти товары прибудут?
- 76. Никто не ожидал, что это случится.
- 77. Я увидел, что в коробке ничего не было.
- 78. Я увидел, что текст очень трудный, и опасался, что не смогу его перевести.
- 79. Я хотел бы, чтобы вы объяснили мне эту задачу.
- 80. Хочет ли он, чтобы ему помогли?
- 81. Я не люблю, когда мне напоминают несколько раз об одном и том же.
- 82. Никто не ожидал, что это случится.
- 83. Что вы хотите, чтобы я сделал для вас?
- 84. Мой сын просил повести его в зоопарк.
- 85. Я увидел, что стекло разбито.
- 86. Никто не слышал, как он сказал это.
- 87. Я увидел, что письмо не было подписано.
- 88. Он не ожидал, что его пошлют в Лондон.

- 89. Вы слышали, как он вчера выступал на собрании?
- 90. Я видел, что такси остановилось у двери.
- 91. Хотите я дам вам свой словарь?
- 92. Я должна сегодня подстричься.
- 93. Я слышала, как он открывает дверь.
- 94. Я видела, как он взял ваш журнал.
- 95. Где вы обычно фотографируетесь?
- 96. Я видела, как дети бегут к реке.
- 97. Я рассчитываю, что он сегодня придет.
- 98. Я бы не хотел, чтобы вы потеряли мою книгу.
- 99. Я знаю его как хорошего специалиста.
- 100. Не заставляйте меня пить это лекарство.

THE GERUND

Герундий (Gerund) — это неличная форма глагола, которая выражает название действия и сочетает в себе признаки глагола и существительного. Соответственно, на русский язык герундий обычно переводится существительным или глаголом (чаще неопределенной формой глагола). Формы, подобной английскому герундию, в русском языке нет.

My favourite occupation is reading. — Мое любимое занятие — чтение.

He kept working, although he felt ill. — Он продолжал работать, хотя почувствовал себя плохо.

Образование герундия

Герундий, как и причастие настоящего времени, образуется путем прибавления к основе глагола в неопределенной форме окончания -ing:

to read — reading to work — working to run — running

Формы герундия

	Active	Passive
Indefinite(Simple)	writing	being written
Perfect	having written	having been written

Особенности прибавления окончания -ing

Отрицательная форма образуется при помощи частицы not, которая ставится перед герундием:

He enjoys not working.

The best thing for you is not smoking.

Запомните, что герундий обладает свойствами глагола и существительного.

Перевод герундия на русский язык

Так как формы, аналогичной герундию, в русском языке нет, то переводить герундий можно по-разному. Обратите внимание на данные ниже предложения и их перевод на русский язык.

Reading helps you learn English. — Чтение помогает вам изучать английский язык.

She enjoys driving a car. — Ей доставляет удовольствие водить машину.

He entered the room without saying «hello». — Он вошел в комнату, не сказав «привет».

Do you remember taking your final exam? — Вы помните, как вы сдавали выпускной экзамен?

Thank you for coming. — Спасибо, что пришли.

Простая форма герундия (Indefinite or Simple Gerund) обозначает действие, которое происходит одновременно с действием глагола-сказуемого:

He likes telling fairy tales.

He likes being told fairy tales.

Перфектная форма герундия (Perfect Gerund) обозначает действие, которое предшествует действию глагола-сказуемого:

He is proud of having spoken to this famous person.

He is proud of having been spoken to.

Употребление герундия

Поскольку герундий обладает свойствами существительного и глагола, то он может употребляться в роли любого члена предложения (кроме простого сказуемого).

ГЕРУНДИЙ В РОЛИ ПОДЛЕЖАЩЕГО

В роли подлежащего герундий употребляется без предлога, на русский язык чаще всего переводится либо существительным, либо инфинитивом.

Smoking causes lung cancer.

Hunting tigers is dangerous.

ГЕРУНДИЙ КАК ЧАСТЬ СОСТАВНОГО СКАЗУЕМОГО

Как часть составного именного сказуемого герундий следует за глаголом-связкой to be (am, is, are, was, were и т. д.).

Но при этом подлежащее обозначает предмет, который не может сам осуществлять действие, передаваемое герундием. В противном случае это уже не герундий, а глагол в форме Present Continuous.)

Обратите внимание на предложения, где герундий является частью составного сказуемого:

One of his duties is attending lectures. My hobby is reading.

ГЕРУНДИЙ ПОСЛЕ ГЛАГОЛОВ В РОЛИ ПРЯМОГО ДОПОЛНЕНИЯ

В роли прямого дополнения (без предлога) после одних глаголов может употребляться только герундий, после других — только инфинитив, а после некоторых допускается употребление и инфинитива, и герундия.

Глаголы, после которых употребляется только герундий

admit — признавать advise — советовать avoid — избегать burst out — разразиться delay — задерживать deny — отрицать dislike — не нравиться enjoy — получать удовольствие finish — закончить escape — вырваться, избавиться forgive — прощать give up — отказываться, бросать keep on — продолжать mention — упоминать mind — возражать — только в вопросах и отрицаниях miss — скучать put off — отложить), postpone — откладывать recommend — рекомендовать suggest — предлагать understand — понимать

I dislike waiting for buses.
She avoided talking to her boss.
We've finished preparing for the holiday.
I don't mind coming early.
She burst out crying.
When will you give up smoking?
He kept on asking for money.
I can't put off doing this translation.

Герундий после выражений can't help, can't stand, to be worth, it's no use:

can't help — не могу не, нельзя не She couldn't help falling in love with him. can't stand — не могу терпеть I can't stand his smoking in the room. to be worth — стоить чего-либо This place is worth visiting. it's no use — бесполезно It's no use trying to escape.

С глаголом *go* герундий используется в подобных сочетаниях:

go fishing — ходить на рыбалку go dancing — ходить танцевать go shopping — ходить за покупками go swimming — заниматься плаванием go walking — ходить на прогулку

Глаголы, после которых употребляется как герундий, так и инфинитив

Глаголы, после которых следует как герундий, так и инфинитив. Разница в значениях незначительная или совсем отсутствует: begin (начинать), can't bear (не выносить, не терпеть), can't stand (не терпеть), continue (продолжать), hate — ненавидеть, like (нравиться, любить), love (любить), prefer (предпочитать), propose (предлагать), start (начинать).

I like travelling.= I like to travel. She began reading. = She began to read.

Глаголы, после которых может употребляться как герундий, так и инфинитив, но с существенной разницей в значениях: forget (забывать), regret (сожалеть), remember (помнить, вспоминать), stop (прекращать, останавливаться), try (пытаться), quit (прекращать, бросать).

They stopped talking. — Они перестали говорить.

They stopped to talk. — Они остановились, чтобы поговорить.

Герундий после глаголов с предлогами

В роли косвенного дополнения герундий может употребляться после многих глаголов и прилагательных с фиксированными предлогами. Перечислим самые распространенные.

ассиse of — обвинять в agree to — соглашаться с blame for — винить за complain of — жаловаться на consist in — заключаться в count on /upon — рассчитывать на congratulate on — поздравлять с depend on — зависеть от dream of — мечтать о feel like — хотеть, собираться hear of — слышать о consist on — настаивать на, keep from — удерживать от look forward to — с нетерпением ждать, предвкушать look like — выглядеть как object to — возражать против persist in — упорно продолжать praise for —хвалить за prevent from — предотвращать от rely on — полагаться на result in — приводить к speak of — говорить о succeed in — преуспевать в suspect of — подозревать в thank for — благодарить за think of — думать о.

He has always dreamt of visiting other countries.

I don't feel like seeing him.

I 'm looking forward to going on holiday.

She suspected him of deceiving her.

I object to his borrowing money from you.

to be + прилагательное / причастие + герундий

be afraid of — бояться чего-либо be ashamed of — стыдиться чего-либо be engaged in — быть занятым чем-либо be fond of — любить что-либо, увлекаться be good at — быть способным к be interested in — интересоваться чем-либо be pleased at — быть довольным be proud of — гордиться чем-либо be responsible for — быть ответственным за be sorry for — сожалеть о чем-либо be surprised at — удивляться чему-либо be tired of — уставать от чего-либо be used to — привыкать к

I'm tired of waiting.

She is fond of reading.

I'm sorry for coming late.

ГЕРУНДИЙ В РОЛИ ОПРЕДЕЛЕНИЯ

В роли определения герундий обычно стоит после определяемого слова (существительного) с различными предлогами: чаще с of, реже с for, at, about, to, in.

idea of — идея о thought of — мысль о hope of — надежда на reason for — причина для

I don't like his manner of speaking.

I have a reason for going abroad.

В качестве определения герундий может стоять и перед определяемым словом. В этом случае он передает назначение предмета, выраженного существительным: a writing table — письменный стол (стол для письма).

Обратите внимание, что в словосочетании a writing man — пишущий человек, writing — это причастие настоящего времени, так как обозначает действие, совершаемое существительным.

ГЕРУНДИЙ В РОЛИ ОБСТОЯТЕЛЬСТВА

В роли обстоятельства перед герундием всегда используются предлоги, например, такие как in, on, before, after, without, by, about, at, to, of, for, through, besides, instead of .

We arrived in Madrid after driving all night.

Can you sneeze without opening your mouth?

I. Translate the following sentences from English into Russian.

- 1. Have you finished eating?
- 2. The child doesn't like washing.
- 3. His car needs repairing.
- 4. Let's go fishing.
- 5. He could work all day not feeling tired.
- 6. He disliked being disturbed after dinner.
- 7. Do you like reading?
- 8. He gave up smoking last year.
- 9. He couldn't admit living at such expensive hotel.

- 10. The man kept on glancing at his watch.
- 11. I didn't mind giving him this magazine though I was sure he could keep it for a long time.
- 12. I remember hearing something about it.
- 13. I insisted writing him tomorrow.
- 14. He didn't put off visiting the patient as the case seemed urgent.
- 15. He regrets telling us this very unpleasant news.
- 16. The man started running, seeing that he had been noticed
- 17. Whatever you propose doing must be done quickly.
- 18. When they heard this strange noise they stopped talking.
- 19. You keep on interrupting when I'm talking.
- 20. Bad weather prevented from our going for a walk.

II. Choose the right answer.

- 1. The rain didn't prevent him from to the theatre.
- a) going b) to go c) to have gone d) being gone
- 2. David left London without anybody about it.
- a) to tell b) told c) had told d) telling
- 3. Would you like a taxi for you?
- a) me getting b) my getting c) me get d) me to get
- 4. It goes without
- a) saying b) to say c) said d) having said
- 5. Have you finished
- a) to write b) writing c) written d) wrote
- 6. She was fond of
- a) to read b) read c) reading d) having read
- 7. Avoid mistakes if you can.
- a) making b) make c) to make d) made
- 8. I'm really looking forward to to London.
- a) go b) to go c) going d) went
- 9. I dislike noisy cities.
- a) visiting b) to visit c) visited d) visit

- 10. He likes fairy tales.
- a) telling b) being told c) to tell d) told
- 11. The place is worth
- a) visiting b) visit c) to visit d) to have visited
- 12. On the news, she turned pale.
- a) being told b) have told c) tell d) to tell
- 13. She hates
- a) being ignored b) ignoring c) having ignored d) to ignore
- 14. Can you remember the before?
- a) having seen b) to see c) to have seen d) seeing
- 15. She has always dreamt of round the world.
- a) to travel b) travelling c) travel d) have travelled
- 16. Would you mind again in a day or two?
- a) coming b) to come c) come d) came
- 17. He stopped two years ago.
- a) having smoked b) to smoke c) smoking d) smoke
- 18. Please, forgive my
- a) interfering b) to interfere c) interfere d) to have interfered
- 19. I avoided to them about that matter.
- a) speaking b) to speak c) spoke d) have spoken
- 20. She hates up early, but she has to.
- a) getting b) to get c) got d) to have got
- 21. She loves on TV shows.
- a) to appear b) appearing c) appeared d) to have appeared
- 22. After by the teacher, the papers were returned to the students.
 - a) correcting b) to correct c) to be corrected d) being corrected

III. Open the brackets and put the verb in the correct form.

1. Why do you avoid (to speak) to me?

- 2. She tried to avoid (to speak) to?
- 3. The doctor insisted on (to send) the sick man to hospital.
- 4. Do you mind (to examine) by a heart specialist?
- 5. He showed no sign of (to surprise).
- 6. He had a strange habit of (to interfere) in people's business.
- 7. I was angry at (to interrupt) every other moment.
- 8. He is good at (to repair) cars.
- 9. He was very glad of (to help) in his difficulties.
- 10. On (allow) to leave the room, the children ran out and began (to play).
- 11. 11. The results of the experiment should be checked before (to publish).
- 12. The watch needs (to repair).
- 13. He seemed sorry for (to be) inattentive to his son.
- 14. He had no talent for (to dance).
- 15. The job is worth (to take).
- 16. This dress wants (to wash).
- 17. Excuse me for (to break) your cup.
- 18. The cat was afraid of (to punish) and hid itself under the sofa.
- 19. I don't remember ever (to meet) your sister.
- 20. I don't remember (to ask) this question by anybody.
- 21. His father dislikes (to waste) time on such trifles.
- 22. I had no hope of (to get) an answer before the end of the month.
- 23. He talked without (to stop).
- 24. (to take) a cold shower in the morning is very healthy.
- 25. Thank you for (to come).

IY. Translate the following sentences from English into Russian.

- 1. The storm prevented the ship from reaching the port in time.
- 2. Do you have the means of helping him now?
- 3. He didn't like being read to.
- 4. Be careful in crossing the street.
- 5. This prevented the telegramme from being sent off.
- 6. She was quite disappointed at not seeing them there again.

- 7. Swimming against the current was difficult and dangerous.
- 8. What is worth doing at all is worth doing well.
- 9. He enjoyed sleeping in the open air.
- 10. After sleeping for about an hour he was awakened by a loud noise.
- 11. I disliked borrowing things from people.
- 12. There is a probability of Ivanov's being sent to Paris.
- 13. Our meeting him there was a surprise.
- 14. She wrote the letter without my knowing it.
- 15. There is no excuse for his doing such a thing.
- 16. Their leaving before the end of the meeting attracted attention.
- 17. We thought of watching the film after dinner.
- 18. He talked without stopping.
- 19. Some people can walk for hours without being tired.
- 20. It goes without saying.
- 21. Let's go boating.
- 22. Thank you for coming.
- 23. Have you finished reading the book?
- 24. I can't stand visiting noisy cities.
- 25. She has always dreamt of travelling round the world.

Y. Match the halves that go together.

- 1. She is interested
- 2. You should give up
- 3. We really enjoy
- 4. I'm looking forward
- 5. She pretended
- 6. Ann is good
- 7. I couldn't help
- 8. She avoids
- 9. He is used

- a) drinking alcohol.
- b) being ill.
- c) to seeing my daughter.
- d) laughing at her.
- e) to living in a dirty house.
- f) talking to drunk people.
- g) swimming in the sea.
- h) in surfing the Internet.
- i) at riding a horse.

YI. Complete each sentence using a preposition + one of the following verbs in the correct form.

carry cause escape go interrupt live see solve spend walk

- 1. Do you feel like out this evening?
- 2. It took us a long time, but we finally succeeded the problem.
- 3. I've always dreamt in a small house by the sea.
- 4. The driver of the other car accused me the accident.
- 5. There's a fence around the lawn to stop people the grass.
- 6. Excuse me you, but may I ask you something?
- 7. Where are you thinking your holidays this year?
- 8. The guards weren't able to prevent the prisoner
- 9. My bag wasn't very heavy, but Dan insisted it for me.
- 10. It's a pity Paul can't come to the party. I was really looking forward him.

YII. Complete the sentences with a suitable word.

- 1. We ran ten kilometres without
- 2. He left the hotel without the bill.
- 3. It's a nice morning. How about?
- 4. We are able to translate the letter into English without a dictionary.
- 5. Before to bed, I like to have a hot drink.
- 6. It was a long journey, I was very tired after on a train for 30 hours.
- 7. I was annoyed because the decision was made without anybody me.
- 8. After the same job for ten years, I felt I needed a change.
- 9. We lost our way because we went straight on instead of left.
- 10. I like these photographs you took. You are good at photographs.

YIII. Write sentences about yourself. Say whether you like or don't like these activities. Choose one of these verbs for each sentence.

like don't like love hate enjoy don't mind

- 1.(fly) I
- 2. (play cards) I
- 3. (be alone) I
- 4. (go to museums) I
- 5. (cook) I

IX. Complete the sentences.

- 1. Our neighbours apologized for so much noise.
- 2. I feel lazy, I don't feel like any work.
- 3. I wanted to go out alone, but John insisted on with me.
- 4. I'm fed up with my job. I'm thinking of something else.
- 5. I hope you get in touch with me soon. I'm looking forward to from you.
- 6. The weather was extremely bad and this prevented us from out.
- 7. The who has been arrested is suspected of a false passport.
- 8. I think you should apologise to Ann for \dots so rude to her.
- 9. Some parents don't approve of their children a lot of television.]
- 10. I'm sorry I can't come to your party, but thank you very much for me.

X. Write a sentence with need(s) + one of the following verbs.

clean cut empty paint tighten

- 1. The jacket is dirty. It
- 2. The room isn't very nice. It
- 3. The grass is very long. It
- 4. The screws are loose. They
- 5. The bin is full. It

XI. Complete the second sentence so that it means the same as the first.

- 1. Why is it useful to have a car? What are the advantages of?
- 2. I don't intend to apply for the job. I have no intention of
- 3. Helen has a good memory for names. Helen is good at
- 4. Mark won't pass the exam. He has no chance. Mark has no chance of
- 5. Did you get into trouble because you were late? Did you get into trouble for
- 6. We didn't eat at home. We went to a restaurant instead. Instead of
- 7. We got into the exhibition. We didn't have to queue. We got into the exhibition without
- 8. Our team played well, but we lost the game. Our team lost the game despite

XII. Translate the following sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Шум в соседней комнате мешал мне думать.
- 2. Он настаивал на том, что он прав.
- 3. Он с нетерпением ждал встречи с братом.
- 4. Мне что-то не хочется делать это сегодня.
- 5. Он отрицал, что разбил чашку.
- 6. Перестань кричать. Не нервничай.
- 7. Вы не возражаете, если я приду позже?
- 8. Она боялась, что ее накажут.
- 9. Прекратите разговаривать.
- 10. Она не могла не чувствовать, что он ей солгал.
- 11. Им в конце концов удалось разгадать эту тайну.
- 12. Я не могу больше откладывать визит к врачу.
- 13. Он не мог не думать об этом все время.
- 14. Вы не возражаете, если я открою окно? Здесь душно.

- 15. Цены продолжают расти.
- 16. Я с нетерпением жду ответа от сына.
- 17. Дождь только что перестал.
- 18. Он расплакался.
- 19. Я не могу не любоваться этой картиной.
- 20. Он одобряет мою упорную работу.
- 21. Перестань дразнить кошку.
- 22. Вы не настроены сегодня вечером поиграть в теннис?
- 23. Я настаиваю на том, чтобы сказать правду.
- 24. Мы оставили мысль о поездке за границу.
- 25. Что помешало вам прийти на вечеринку?
- 26. Он бросил играть в футбол в прошлом году.
- 27. Он отрицал, что взял деньги.
- 28. Мы поздравили их с тем, что они выиграли эту трудную игру.
- 29. Вы не возражаете, если я приглашу своего друга?
- 30. Он имел обыкновение избегать говорить с начальством.
- 31. Мама возражает против того, что он много читает в постели.
- 32. Им пришлось отклонить свою поездку в Германию.
- 33. Шум за окном мешал ему спать.
- 34. Я не могла вам не сказать об этом.
- 35. Дети боялись заблудиться в лесу.
- 36. Она не одобряла, что он так много курит.
- 37. Я с нетерпением жду, что она снова приедет к нам.
- 38. Она настаивала, чтобы им позвонить.
- 39. Мне доставляет удовольствие слушать классическую музыку.
- 40. Кто мешает вам исполнять ваши обязанности должным образом?
- 41. Его подозревали, что он взял взятку.
- 42. Продолжайте играть.
- 43. Она не могла не восхищаться этой старинной церковью в городе.
- 44. Он боялся разбудить ее.
- 45. Она подозревала, что он ее обманул.
- 46. Он не одобрял, что она пьет так много кофе.

- 47. Не могли бы вы дать мне эту книгу, когда вы закончите ее читать?
- 48. Извини, что оставила тебя в такой трудный момент.
- 49. Это место стоит посетить.
- 50. Она всегда мечтала жить у моря.
- 51. Спектакль стоит посмотреть.
- 52. Он рассмеялся.
- 53. Он поздравил друга со сдачей экзамена.
- 54. Я не была в отпуске 5 лет. Я с нетерпением жду отпуска.
- 55. Продолжайте читать.
- 56. Вы не возражаете, если я открою окно?
- 57. Мне что-то не хочется сегодня играть в теннис.
- 58. Он больше не может откладывать визит к врачу.
- 59. Она отрицала, что взяла мой учебник.
- 60. Плиту нужно отремонтировать.
- 61. Он избегал встречи со мною.

PARTICIPLE I, II

Причастие в английском языке представляет собой неличную форму глагола, которая соответствует в русском языке причастию и деепричастию. В английском языке нет отдельной формы, соответствующей русскому деепричастию.

Look at the girl standing at the window. — Посмотрите на девушку, стоящую у окна.

He sat in an arm-chair watching TV. — Он сидел в кресле, смотря телепередачу.

Английское причастие, как и причастие в русском языке, обладает свойствами прилагательного, наречия и глагола. Как и прилагательное, причастие выполняет в предложении функцию определения к существительному.

A broken cup lay on the floor. — Разбитая чашка лежала на полу.

Как и наречие, английское причастие, подобно русскому деепричастию, выполняет функцию обстоятельства, определяющего действие, выраженное сказуемым.

They passed me talking loudly. — Они прошли мимо, громко разговаривая.

Глагольные свойства причастия выражаются в том, что оно может иметь прямое дополнение и может определяться наречием.

Entering the room he found all the pupils present. — Войдя в комнату, он увидел, что все учащиеся присутствуют.

He liked to rest in the evening walking slowly in the park. — Он любил отдыхать вечером, медленно прогуливаясь в парке.

Причастие в английском языке может быть различных видов.

ПРИЧАСТИЕ І В АНГЛИЙСКОМ ЯЗЫКЕ

Причастие настоящего времени (The Present Participle) чаще всего обозначает действие, происходящее одновременно с действием, выраженным глаголом в личной форме.

Looking out of the window I saw some of my classmates. — Выглянув в окно, я увидел своих одноклассников.

Причастие настоящего времени образуется от первой основной формы глагола при помощи -ing, и по форме оно совпадает с отглагольными существительными и герундием.

В отличие от отглагольного существительного с суффиксом -ing причастие настоящего времени не употребляется с предлогом и не может определяться притяжательным местоимением или существительным в притяжательной форме.

ПРИЧАСТИЕ II В АНГЛИЙСКОМ ЯЗЫКЕ

Причастие прошедшего времени (The Past Participle) обозначает законченное действие.

Have you heard anything about the child lost in the forest? — Вы слышали что-либо о ребенке, потерявшемся в лесу?

Причастие прошедшего времени представляет собой третью основную форму глагола: watched, made, done, built, put.

У правильных глаголов оно образуется от первой основной формы глагола с помощью окончания -ed и по форме совпадает с Past Indefinite.

Видо-временная форма Past Indefinite отличается от причастия прошедшего времени своей функцией — она выступает в предложении как простое глагольное сказуемое.

ФУНКЦИИ ПРИЧАСТИЯ В АНГЛИЙСКОМ ЯЗЫКЕ

Причастие обладает свойствами прилагательного и наречия. При переводе на русский язык английские причастия передаются причастием или деепричастием или же придаточным предложением.

Причастие может служить в предложении:

1) определением:

Watches made in Jupan are very popular in many countries. — Часы, сделанные в Японии, очень популярны во многих странах.

2) именной частью составного сказуемого:

Victor was missing from the last lesson.— Виктор отсутствовал на последнем уроке.

3) обстоятельством:

When crossing the street, first look to the left, then to the right. — Переходя улицу, вначале посмотрите налево, потом направо.

Not knowing what to do they wrote a letter to their professor asking for information. — Не зная, что делать, они написали письмо своему профессору, запрашивая информацию.

Причастие в сочетании с существительным или местоимением может образовывать причастные обороты, выполняющие роль сложного дополнения.

Причастный оборот «Объектный падеж с причастием настоящего времени» (Objective with the Present Participle) представляет собой сочетание существительного или местоимения в объектном падеже с причастием настоящего времени. Этот оборот употребляется после глаголов: to feel, to find, to hear, to listen, to look, to notice, to see, to watch.

I hear the bell ringing in the next room. — Я слышу, как звенит звонок в соседней комнате.

She watched the children playing in the yard. — Она смотрела, как дети играют во дворе.

Этот оборот аналогичен обороту «Объектный падеж с инфинитивом» (Objective with the Infinitive), но причастный оборот показывает действие в процессе его совершения, а инфинитивный оборот только указывает на действие.

I saw some children crossing the street. — Я видел, как дети переходили улицу. I saw the children cross the street. — Я видел, что дети переходили улицу.

Объектный падеж с причастием прошедшего времени

Этот причастный оборот (Objective with the Past Participle) представляет собой сочетание существительного или местоимения в объектном падеже с причастием прошедшего времени. Этот оборот употребляется после глаголов: to have, to get, to want, to wish, to watch, to hear, to see, to find.

You must have your hair cut. — Вы должны подстричься.

I want it done now. — Я хочу, чтобы это сделали сейчас.

Этот оборот с глаголом to have (to get) означает, что действие совершается не самим подлежащим, а другим лицом для него или за него.

I had my photo taken. — Я сфотографировался (в значении: меня сфотографировали).

I must have my shoes cleaned. — Я должен почистить туфли (это сделают для меня).

I. Make one sentence from two using the Participle I.

- 1. He was jumping down the stair. He broke his leg.
- 2. Tom was watching the film. He fell asleep.
- 3. The pupils opened their textbooks. The looked for the answers.
- 4. Ann was training to be a designer. She lived in Rome for three years.
- 5. They are vegetarians. They don't eat meat.
- 6. Mary was tidying her room. She found old letters.
- 7. He handed in his test. He had written all the exercises.
- 8. I sent him a message. I had tried phoning him many times.
- 9. She moved to Canada. We had sold our house.
- 10. His head was aching at night. He had studied all day.
- 11. He knew all the goals by heart. He had watched this match several times.

II. Find the correct variant.

- 1. Having tried the case the judge left the court.
- а) Рассмотрев дело, судья ушел из суда.
- b) Рассматривая дело, судья ушел из суда.
- с) Рассматривающий дело судья ушел из суда.
- 2. The case being tried by the court is of great value.
- а) Дело, рассматриваемое судом, имеет большое значение.
- b) Дело, рассмотренное судом, имело большое значение.
- с) Дело, которое суд будет рассматривать, имеет большое значение.
- 3. The Bill having been discussed by the whole population was adopted.
 - а) Закон, обсуждаемый всем населением был принят.
 - b) Закон, обсуждаемый населением будет принят.
 - с) Принятый закон будет обсужден населением.

- 4. Having won the victory over fascist Germany our country began to fight against Japan.
- а) Одержав победу над фашистской Германией, наша страна начала бороться против Японии.
- b) Одержавшая победу над фашистской Германией, наша страна начала бороться против Японии.
- с) После победы над Фашистской Германией, наша страна начала бороться против Японии.
- 5. Taking part in scientific conferences helps the students to master theory.
- а) Участвовашим в научных конференциях помогли студентам
- b) Участвующим в научных конференциях студенты помогают..... .
- с) Участие в научных конференциях помогает студентам овладеть теорией.

III. Choose the most appropriate answer.

- 1. We saw a lot chairs in the basement.
- a) breaking b) broken c) having broken
- 2. You look What's the matter?
- a) worried b) being worried c) worrying
- 3. The man with Mrs. Smith is her son's teacher. If I'm not mistaken.
 - a) talked b) talking c) being talked
- 4. The second question at the conference yesterday was very interesting.
 - a) being discussed b) having been discussed c) discussed
 - 5. When I looked out of the window, I saw her the street.
 - a) crossing b) crossed c) having crossed
- 6. I heard the children over something and went to see what it was.
 - a) being fought b) fought c) fighting

- 7. my work on the report, I locked my office and went home.
- a) finished b) having finished c) having been finished
- 8. Ann drove the car, with her head out.
- a) stuck b) being stuck c) sticking
- 9. The weather pleasantly warm, we stayed in the park all day.
- a) being b) having been c) is
- 10. Mary was writing with the light
- a) burning b) burnt c) being burnt

IY. Open the brackets and fill in with the proper participle.

- 1. He fell asleep (exhaust) by the journey.
- 2. She entered the dining room (accompany) by her husband and her father.
- 3. A snake (sleep) in the grass will bite if anyone treads upon it.
- 4. (Fill) his pockets with apples the boy was about to run away when he saw the owner of the garden with a stick in his hand.
- 5. It was a bright Sunday morning of early summer (promise) heat.
- 6. When I came home, I found the table (lay).
- 7. (Judge) by the colour of the sun it should be windy tomorrow.
- 8. (Arrive) at a big seaport, I started to look for a job.
- 9. He had received an urgent message (ask) him to phone Mrs. Brown.
- 10. He looked at groups of young girls (walk) arm in arm.
- 11. In the wood they sat down on a (fall) tree.
- 12. (See) from the hill the city looks magnificent.
- 13. (Not know) where to go he turned to a passerby.
- 14. (Lock) in her room she through a fit.
- 15. (Address) the parcel, I went out at once to post it.
- 16. She often took care of my little sister (give) me a possibility to play with other boys.
- 17. (Wash) her face in cold water, she came up to the window and shut it.
- 18. Paul sat down again, evidently (change) his mind about going.

Y. Translate the following sentences from English into Russian.

- 1. Everybody looked at the dancing girl.
- 2. The woman standing at the window is my mother.
- 3. Hearing the sounds of music, we stopped talking.
- 4. Looking out of the window she saw her father watering the flowers in the garden.
- 5. Entering the room, she turned the light on.
- 6. This is the gallery built in the 19th century.
- 7. Leaving the room, don't forget to turn the light off.
- 8. Learning English, pay attention to the word order.
- 9. The woman speaking right now is our teacher.
- 10. Be careful crossing the street.
- 11. We stopped before a shut door.
- 12. Having sent a letter, she forgot to write her name.
- 13. A teacher seeing a mistake in the dictation always corrects it.
- 14. He began translating the text taking the dictionary.
- 15. The man standing at the door is a well-known actor.
- 16. Everything written here is quite correct.
- 17. The floor washed by Ann looked very cleaned.
- 18. The exercises done by the students were very easy.
- 19. Read the translated sentences once again.
- 20. Yesterday we were at the conference organized by our students.
- 21. Do you know those boys playing football?
- 22. 22. Name the places visited by you last year?
- 23. When we came nearer, we saw two boys coming towards us.
- 24. Here is the letter received by me yesterday.
- 25. The lost book was found yesterday.
- 26. "How do you like the play?" he asked turning to us.
- 27. Going down the street, I met Ann.
- 28. 28. It wasn't easy to find the lost thing.
- 29. 29. I picked up the pen lying on the floor.
- 30. Look at the picture painted by Savrasov.
- 31. The dress bought yesterday was very beautiful.
- 32. Being very ill she couldn't go to work.
- 33. 33. The travellers lost their way soon, having been shown the wrong directions.

- 34. Being busy, he postponed his business trip.
- 35. While being examined, the boy couldn't help crying.
- 36. Running across the yard, he fell.
- 37. Going home yesterday, I kept on thinking of my friend.
- 38. Being translated into Russian, the book could be read by everybody.
- 39. Leaving the child with the nurse, she went to work.
- 40. The weather having changed, we decided to stay where we were.
- 41. There being little time left, they hired a taxi to the airport.
- 42. Being very late, we postponed our visit.
- 43. Time permitting, we shall go for a walk.
- 44. She broke one of the eggs, putting them into the basket.
- 45. Some of the questions put to the teacher yesterday were very important.
- 46. Writing the dictation, he made only one mistake.
- 47. She watched the children playing computer games.
- 48. The explorer met many wild animals travelling in Africa.
- 49. You must return the book in time, borrowing it from the library.
- 50. The boy writing on the blackboard is our best pupil.

YI. Translate the following sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Мальчик, бегущий мимо дома, вдруг остановился.
- 2. Услышав шаги, она подняла голову.
- 3. Подойдя к двери, он открыл ее.
- 4. Лежа на диване, он читал книгу.
- 5. Она положила на стол смятое письмо.
- 6. Выпив чашку чая, она почувствовала себя лучше.
- 7. Придя в театр, она увидела, что спектакль уже начался.
- 8. Просматривая журнал, она увидела свою фотографию, сделанную несколько лет тому назад.
- 9. Он вошел в комнату, оставив дверь открытой.
- 10. Она поставила передо мной тарелку жаренной рыбы.
- 11. Доброе слово, сказанное вовремя очень важно.
- 12. Принеся свои игрушки в комнату, ребенок начал играть.

- 13. Письмо, написанное плохим почерком было трудно читать.
- 14. Закончив работу, мы пошли домой.
- 15. Мы пошли пешком до станции метро, так как она была недалеко.
- 16. Доставленные товары были хорошего качества.
- 17. Он был очень занят, ремонтируя машину.
- 18. Сделав уроки дети пошли гулять.
- 19. Если погода позволит мы пойдем на каток.
- 20. Так как все было готово, она решила отдохнуть.
- 21. Так как было уже поздно, они никуда не пошли.
- 22. Так как погода была холодной, Петр спрятал руки в карманы.
- 23. Так как быстро темнело, она поспешила домой.
- 24. Когда солнце зашло, сразу стало темно.
- 25. Так как наш разговор был закончен, я пошел домой.
- 26. Когда письмо было написано, она быстро побежала на почту, чтобы отправить его.
- 27. Так как оставалось еще полчаса до отхода поезда, мы решили поужинать на вокзале.
- 28. Если погода будет благоприятной, спортсмены могут показать хорошие результаты.
- 29. Если условия позволят, я приеду к вам на лето.
- 30. Так как было тепло, дети спали на открытом воздухе.
- 31. Когда все приготовления были закончены, мы отправились в поход.
- 32. Корабль плыл медленно вдоль берегов Черного моря, сотни птиц кружились над ним.
- 33. Было очень темно, так как на небе не было ни одной звездочки.
- 34. Когда солнце село, туристы развели костер.
- 35. Так как было очень поздно, собрание было закрыто.

THE PASSIVE VOICE

В английском языке залог указывает на то, выполняет ли подлежащее действие самостоятельно (активный / действительный залог), или действие совершается над ним (пассивный / страдательный залог). Таким образом, есть два залога:

ACTIVE VOICE

PASSIVE VOICE

Если подлежащее обозначает лицо или предмет, совершающий действие, то сказуемое употребляется в форме действительного залога.

My boss gave me a bonus. — Начальник выдал мне премию.

The hurricane ruined his house. Ураган разрушил его дом (ураган сам разрушил).

Если подлежащее обозначает лицо или предмет, подвергающийся действию со стороны другого лица или предмета, сказуемое употребляется в форме страдательного залога.

I was given a bonus.

His house was ruined.

Когда употребляется страдательный залог? Есть несколько случаев:

1. Лицо / предмет, совершающее действие, неизвестно.

Our house was broken into last week.

2. Лицо / предмет, совершающее действие, не важен.

The job will be finished by Monday.

3. Лицо / предмет, совершающее действие, очевиден из контекста.

My brother was fined for driving without license.

4. когда мы заинтересованы в действии, а не в деятеле (в новостях, инструкциях, заголовках, объявлениях).

The international exhibition of sport equipment will be held next month.

5. Для описания процесса приготовления, инструкция проведения исследований.

Water is heated and added to the mixture.

6. В официальных объявлениях, в научных докладах.

Much research has been conducted on this topic.

Временные формы страдательного залога образуются при помощи вспомогательного глагола «to be» в соответствующем времени и смыслового глагола в форме причастия прошедшего времени Past Participle (третья форма глагола).

	Present	Past	Future	Future-in- the-Past
Simple	Letters are written every day.	The letter was written yesterday.	The letter will be written tomorrow.	He said that the letter would be written the next day.
Continuous	The letter is being written now.	The letter was being written at 5 o'clock yesterday.	_	_
Perfect	The letter has just been written.	The letter had been written by 5 o'clock yesterday.	The letter will have been written by 5 o'clock tomorrow.	He said that the letter would have been written by 5 o'clock the next day.
Perfect Continuous	_	_	_	_

Выбор временных форм пассивного залога осуществляется на основании тех же правил, что и соответствующих форм активного залога. Наречия времени могут служить маркерами при выборе необходимой формы.

Обратите внимание, что в пассивном залоге отсутствует группа времен Perfect Continuous, нет здесь и формы Future Continuous.

Иногда в предложении есть 2 дополнения, соответственно мы можем сделать несколько вариантов предложений в страдательном залоге.

My brother gave me a dictionary. (Два дополнения — me и a dictionary)

I was given a dictionary.

A dictionary was given to me.

Предпочтительным является первый вариант, в котором подлежащее выражено одушевленным местоимением, но оба варианта допустимы.

Употребление предлогов by, with в Passive Voice

Предлоги by и with употребляются при необходимости упоминания лица или предмета, осуществляющего действие, а также предмета, являющегося инструментом действия или материалом, с помощью которого действие производится

Предлог by используется, чтобы сказать, что или кто выполнил действие.

The cake was cooked by my Granny.

Предлог *with* употребляется для того, чтобы рассказать какой инструмент или материал был использован.

The bread was cur with a knife.

Мы уже знаем, что в Passive Voice можно и вовсе не употреблять предлоги by и with, так как упоминание действующего лица и тем более материала или инструмента необязательно.

Однако в вопросительных конструкциях в пассивном залоге, начинающихся с who (кем?) и иногда с what (чем?) всегда присутствует предлог by.

Who was the Mona Lisa painted by? What was the flood caused by?

Обратите внимание, что возможна и такая форма постановки вопроса, когда предлог стоит на первом месте, что более характерно для официального стиля.

By whom was Australia discovered? By what was the flood caused?

Модальные глаголы в пассивном залоге.

Если в состав сказуемого в активном залоге входят модальные глаголы или их эквиваленты, то в страдательном залоге это сказуемое будет выглядеть следующим образом:

модальный глагол + be + Past Participle

We must finish work in May. This book can be bought in any

bookshop.

You can buy this book in any bookshop. Our work must be finished in May.

Обратите внимание, что после глаголов hear, help, make (в значении «заставлять»), see в страдательных оборотах следует инфинитив с частицей to.

I was made to wash the dishes. Molly will be helped to finish her project.

I. Rewrite these sentences. Instead of using somebody, they, people, etc., write a passive sentence.

- 1. Somebody cleans the rooms every day. —
- 2. They cancelled all flights because of fog. —
- 3. People don't use this road much. —
- 4. Somebody accused me of stealing money. —
- 5. How do people learn languages? —
- 6. Somebody warned us not to go out alone. —
- 7. They have postponed the meeting. —
- 8. Somebody is using the computer now.
- 9. I didn't realize that somebody was recording the conversation. —
- 10. When we got to the stadium, we found that they have cancelled the game. —
- 11. They are building a new ring road round the city. -
- 12. They have built a new cinema near our house. —
- 13. They didn't give me the information I needed. —
- 14. They asked me some difficult questions at the interview. —
- 15. Ann's colleagues gave her a present when she retired. —
- 16. Nobody told me about the meeting. —
- 17. How much will they pay you for your work? —
- 18. I think they should have offered Tom the job. —
- 19. Has anybody shown you what to do? —
- 20. We didn't tell her what happened. —

II. Write sentences using the Passive Voice.

- 1. Ask about glass. (how/make?)
- 2. Ask about Television. (when/invent?)

- 3. Ask about mountains. (how/form?)
- 4. Ask about silver. (what/use for?)
- 5. Ask about Mars (the planet). (when/discover?)

III. Complete the sentences using one of these verbs in the correct form:

cause damage hold write invite make overtake translate surround

- 1. Many accidents by dangerous driving.
- 2. Cheese from milk.
- 3. The roof of the building in a storm a few days ago.
- 4. You to the party. Why didn't you come?
- 5. A cinema is a place where films
- 6. In the Russian Federation, elections for president every six years.
- 7. Originally the book in Spanish, and a few years ago it into English.
- 8. Although we were driving quite fast, we by a lot of other cars.
- 9. You can't see the house from the road. It by trees.

IY. Put the verb into the correct form, Present Simple or Past Simple, active or passive.

- 1. It's a big factory. Five hundred people (employ) there.
- 2. Water (cover) most of the earth's surface.
- 3. How much of the earth's surface (cover) by water.
- 4. The park gates (lock) at 8 p.m.
- 5. The letter (post) a week ago and it (arrive) yesterday.
- 6. (somebody/clean) this room yesterday?
- 7. The boat hit a rock and (sink) quickly. Fortunately everybody (rescue).
- 8. Pete's parents (die) when he was very young. He and his sister (bring up) by their grandparents.
- 9. While I was on holiday, my camera (steal) from my hotel room.

- 10. Why (Ann/sack) from her job? What did he do wrong?
- 11. Where (these photographs/take)?
- 12. Sometimes it's quite noisy living here, but it's not a problem for me. I (not bother) by it.
- 13. There is somebody behind us. (I think/we/follow).
- 14. My car disappeared. (somebody/take).
- 15. Ann can't use her office now. (it/redecorate).
- 16. My umbrella has disappeared. (somebody/take).
- 17. The photocopier broke down yesterday, but now it is OK. (it/work/again; it/repair).
- 18. 18. Sam gets a higher salary now. (he/promote).
- 19. The man next door disappeared six months ago. (he/not/see/since then).

Y. Complete the sentences using being + the following in the correct form.

give invite keep knock down stick treat

- 1. Pete hates waiting.
- 2. We went to the party without
- 3. I like giving presents and I also like
- 4. It's a busy road and I don't like crossing it. I'm afraid of
- 5. I'm an adult. I don't like like a child.
- 6. You can't do anything about in a traffic jam.

YI. Translate the following sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Ему показали как пройти к метро.
- 2. Комнату убрали и проветрили сегодня.
- 3. Когда это было сделано?
- 4. Контрольные работы были просмотрены и исправлены к следующему уроку.
- 5. Об этом человеке никогда не говорят.
- 6. За доктором только что послали.
- 7. Когда я пришла домой, ужин уже был приготовлен.
- 8. Мост строят.

- 9. Эту книгу продают везде.
- 10. Когда я пришла домой вчера, обед готовили.
- 11. Нас встретят на вокзале?
- 12. Много домов строят в нашем городе каждый год.
- 13. Мне рассказали очень интересную историю вчера.
- 14. Эту книгу часто спрашивают.
- 15. Разве картошку вчера не купили?
- 16. Два года назад ее послали учиться в университет.
- 17. Нас всегда приглашают на его день рождения.
- 18. Много интересных фильмов показали по телевидению на прошлой неделе.
- 19. Об этой книге много говорят.
- 20. На выставке нам показали много картин.
- 21. Ей вручили это письмо вчера.
- 22. Меня об этом всегда спрашивают.
- 23. Их обязательно пригласят на годовщину.
- 24. Эту программу не будут транслировать в течение месяца.
- 25. Тома продвинут по службе?
- 26. Меня представят твоему другу завтра, не так ли?
- 27. Маша сказала, что ее багаж доставят на вокзал через 3 часа.
- 28. Издатель подтвердил, что новый выпуск журнала будет издан чуруз 2 недели.
- 29. Покупатель решил, что стол купит завтра.
- 30. Секретарь пообещала, что ответ будет отправлен нам скоро.
- 31. Они согласились, что плату за жилье заплатят в следующем месяце.
- 32. Сообщили, что он уже вернулся из путешествия.
- 33. Этой стране предоставили новый кредит.
- 34. Соглашение наконец-то было достигнуто.
- 35. Письма оставили на столе.
- 36. Ответ будет отправлен завтра.
- 37. Когда читали этот рассказ, кто-то постучал в дверь.
- 38. Эту книгу должна прочитать вся группа.
- 39. Петрову велели объяснить, почему он пропустил столько занятий.

- 40. Эти документы уже просмотрены и подписаны. Их можно отправлять.
- 41. Статья будет переведена завтра к 5.
- 42. Нашу квартиру сейчас ремонтируют.
- 43. В магазинах довольно часто крадут вещи и продукты.
- 44. Номера в гостиницах убирают каждый день.
- 45. Спокойствие в городе нарушается пьяными и хулиганами.
- 46. Хлеб обычно режут ножом.
- 47. Его никогда не приглашают на вечеринки.
- 48. Столы обычно делают из дерева.
- 49. Этот стол сделан моим папой.
- 50. Яблоки всегда продают на рынке.
- 51. Мне всегда обещают.
- 52. Их часто обманывают.
- 53. Его сейчас обслуживают.
- 54. Вам всегда платят вовремя?
- 55. О нем часто упоминается в газете.
- 56. Мою дочь часто спрашивают в школе.
- 57. Их часто показывают по телевидению.
- 58. Их редко оставляют дома одних.
- 59. Им каждый год обещают повышение зарплаты.
- 60. 60.Нас обучают иностранным языкам 2 раза в неделю.
- 61. Мне предложили поехать работать заграницу.
- 62. Экзаменационные работы обычно пишут в конце семестра.
- 63. Три тысячи человек наняты этой компанией.
- 64. Дорожно-транспортные происшествия бывают часто вызваны небрежным вождением.
- 65. Новые правила обычно объясняются в начале урока.
- 66. Мне никогда не платят зарплату наличными, мне переводят деньги на карточку.
- 67. Ему обычно рассказывают потрясающие истории.
- 68. Ей часто предлагают помощь.
- 69. Мне часто советуют как поступить в любой ситуации.
- 70. Ему все завидуют.
- 71. Мы всегда рады, когда нас прощают.

- 72. Мне обычно отказывают в получении прибыли.
- 73. На лекциях ему часто задают трудные вопросы.
- 74. Маленьким детям часто рассказывают сказки на ночь.
- 75. Вам предлагается хорошо оплачиваемая работа.
- 76. Хорошее мясо обычно покупают на рынке.
- 77. Мне вовремя платят заплату.
- 78. Такие трудные вопросы довольно часто задают студентам на экзамене.
- 79. Ваше мороженое делается из настоящего молока?
- 80. Детям объясняют правила каждый день.
- 81. Ей каждый день диктуют письма.
- 82. Хорошо оплачиваемую работу предлагают не так часто.
- 83. Ей редко пишут письма.
- 84. Вам повторяют эти правила каждый день.
- 85. Мне заявляют, что я здесь лишняя.
- 86. Детям часто покупают красивые вещи.
- 87. Ему посоветовали обратиться к врачу.
- 88. Ее рекомендуют как хорошего врача.
- 89. Вам представили ее мужа?
- 90. На английское произношение всегда обращают внимание.
- 91. Что-то важное сейчас объявляют по радио.
- 92. В этой семье хорошо заботятся о детях.
- 93. За врачом часто посылают.
- 94. Нужного автобуса ждут часами.
- 95. Классическую музыку не всегда слушают с удовольствием.
- 96. На молодежь обычно смотрят с непониманием.
- 97. Ее часто ищут перед началом занятия.
- 98. Ее сейчас ищут.
- 99. Газеты просматривают каждый день.
- 100. Ей всегда доверяют.
- 101. О них часто упоминают.
- 102. Над ним иногда смеются.
- 103. Нас сейчас показывают по телевидению.
- 104. Улыбнитесь! Вас фотографируют.
- 105. Я свободна: меня сейчас не ждут.
- 106. Вас ждут сейчас?
- 107. Его сейчас кормят отвратительной молочной кашей.

- 108. Речь президента сейчас транслируют по всем каналам.
- 109. В зале сейчас убирают.
- 110. За мной кто-то идет.
- 111. Обо мне говорят с воскресенья.
- 112. Этот дом уже строится 5 лет?
- 113. Комнату убирают с 8 утра.
- 114. нам ничего не сообщают о них с Нового года.
- 115. Сериал уже показывают несколько месяцев.
- 116. Мне вчера предложили работу.
- 117. Мой муж родился в Москве.
- 118. Деньги были украдены несколько дней тому назад.
- 119. Его еще не знали несколько дней тому назад.
- 120. В прошлом году за эту работу хорошо платили.
- 121. Меня вчера осматривал врач, когда в комнату вошла бабушка.
- 122. Экзаменационные работы проверялись вчера с 3 до 6.
- 123. Это предложение обсуждалось вчера с 12 до 2.
- 124. В нашей стране всегда награждают выдающихся людей.
- 125. Здание было разрушено только что.
- 126. Меня только что заметили.
- 127. В этой постели никогда не спали.
- 128. В этом доме никогда не жили.
- 129. Это новейшее оборудование используется впервые.
- 130. О пострадавших уже позаботились.
- 131. На меня редко обращают внимание.
- 132. Работа была сделана к началу учебного года.
- 133. Работу сделали до того, как отключили электричество.
- 134. Меня спросили до того, как вошел директор.
- 135. Фильм показали до того, как пришла мама.
- 136. Нового учителя представили ученикам до того, как началось занятие.
- 137. Нас разбудили до рассвета.
- 138. Еду пробовали до того, как она была предложена.
- 139. Ему угрожали до того, как он начал заниматься дзюдо.
- 140. Вы оскорбляете меня с того момента, когда я вошел.
- 141. Меня спрашивали несколько минут, когда вошла директор.

- 142. Новый продукт рекламировали по телевидению уже несколько месяцев.
- 143. Его подозревали в совершении преступления уже несколько лет, прежде чем было предъявлено обвинение.
- 144. Их тренировали несколько месяцев до того, как им разрешили выступить на соревнованиях.
- 145. Эту книгу с восторгом читали до того, как начали критиковать.
- 146. В этом доме не жили 2 года до того, как он был куплен.
- 147. Меня завтра спросят?
- 148. Вас навестят через 2 недели.
- 149. Вас никогда не простят.
- 150. Вам здесь не посоветуют ничего плохого.
- 151. Работы будут проверены через несколько минут.
- 152. В сентябре ей купят новую машину.
- 153. Через несколько лет этот политик будет забыт.
- 154. Ее накормят через 5 минут.
- 155. На следующей неделе их сфотографируют.
- 156. Завтра все проблемы будут решены.
- 157. Нас сейчас сравнивают.
- 158. Эти две картины удалось сравнить.
- 159. Меня спросят к концу урока.
- 160. Моя книга будет опубликована к концу ноября.
- 161. Комнату уберут до прихода гостей.
- 162. Выводы комиссии будут опубликованы.
- 163. Исследования будут приостановлены.
- 164. Белое вино пьют, когда едят рыбу.
- 165. Нас иногда слушают равнодушно.
- 166. Вас будут искать несколько дней.
- 167. Эти документы будут храниться дома.
- 168. Елку будут украшать сегодня.
- 169. Нам напомнят правила поведения.
- 170. Без вас будут скучать.
- 171. Спортсменов будут награждать вечером после окончания соревнований.
- 172. Утренние газеты будут разносить с 7 до 8 завтра.
- 173. Эту пьесу будут играть на сцене, когда вы войдете.

- 174. Этот вопрос будет обсуждаться завтра ровно в 10.
- 175. Ей поднимут зарплату.
- 176. Дом очень старый. Он был построен в 17 веке.
- 177. Ночью нас разбудил шум на улице.

CONDITIONALS

Условные предложения (Conditional Sentences) в английском языке разделены на разные типы, и у каждого из них есть свои правила образования и употребления.

Условные предложения состоят из двух частей: самого условия и следствия выполнения этого условия. В следствии сообщается действие, которое должно произойти, если будет выполнено условие. Определить, какое значение у каждой части, можно и по формальному признаку: условие чаще всего начинается со слов if, when, as soon as, before, after, till, until.

Две части предложения могут следовать в любом порядке: вначале можно сказать условие, затем следствие или наоборот. На смысл сообщения порядок следования не влияет. Однако здесь проявляется синтаксическое правило: порядок влияет на постановку запятой в предложении. Если условие стоит на первом месте в предложении, то оно отделяется запятой. Если же вначале стоит следствие, то запятая не нужна.

If I see Gordon tomorrow, I will tell him about it — Если я увижу Гордона завтра, я расскажу ему об этом.

I will tell Gordon about it if I see him tomorrow — Я расскажу об этом Гордону, если увижу его завтра.

Часть с if condition является подчиненным предложением, поэтому вопросы в таких конструкциях задаются к основной части предложения, то есть к следствию.

Will you tell Gordon about it if you see him tomorrow?

В английском языке можно выделить 5 типов условных предложений. Они отличаются по характеру условий в предложении и соотнесенности события с действительностью и образуются с помощью разных грамматических правил.

Zero Conditional — Нулевой тип условного предложения

First Conditional — Первый тип

Second Conditional — Второй тип

Third Conditional — Третий тип

Mixed Conditional — Смешанный тип

Выбор одного из этих типов определяется двумя параметрами. Во-первых, говорящему нужно определить, реально ли

осуществление ситуации, или же выполнение условия возможно только в нереальном мире. Во-вторых, определить время для каждой части предложения. В условных предложениях время в условии и следствии не зависят друг от друга и каждое определяется по смыслу ситуации.

Например, когда речь идет о реальном условии, о порядке вещей в мире, то для конструкций достаточно простых глагольных времен. Когда предложение относится к нереальным ситуациям, которые не происходят в жизни, в конструкциях появляется сослагательное наклонение. При этом нереальное событие может относиться к настоящему и будущему или к прошлому.

ZERO CONDITIONAL

Начнем обзор условных предложений с Zero Conditional. В таких конструкциях появление if минимально влияет на грамматическую форму глагола.

Конструкции нулевого типа условных предложений появляются в контекстах, когда сообщение указывает на общие истины или признанное положение вещей. Типичное употребление этих предложений — инструкции, руководства, описания законов.

Чаще всего глагол здесь ставится в простое настоящее время в обеих частях предложения.

If you take the ice out of the refrigerator, it melts. — Если достать лед из холодильника, он тает.

If you click on this icon, the dialogue box appears. — Если вы нажмете на этот значок, появляется диалоговое окно.

If I wake up at 6 oʻclock, I feel awful. — Если я просыпаюсь в 6 утра, то чувствую себя ужасно.

Типичная форма глагола для Zero Conditional — Present Conditional. Однако здесь может появляться не только Present Simple: для описания предписаний или установленного порядка вещей могут использоваться другие настоящие времена. Выбор конкретной формы глагола определяется тем, какую стадию события хочет выделить говорящий. Например, когда необходимо подчеркнуть процесс совершения действия, появляется форма Continuous:

If you are driving a car, you need to be very attentive — Если ведешь машину, нужно быть очень внимательным.

Когда речь идет о результате, появляется форма Perfect:

If you have heard an alarm, you should leave the place immediately — Если вы услышали сигнал тревоги, следует немедленно покинуть помещение.

В основной части Zero Conditional часто используются модальные глаголы: can (мочь, иметь возможность) / may (мочь, иметь разрешение) / should (следует) / must (должен). Модальные глаголы описывают действие, которое осуществляется с определенной долей вероятности.

Когда мы задаем вопрос к предложениям типа Zero Conditional, нужно обратить внимание, какой глагол используется в основной части. Если там стоит to be или модальные глаголы, то необходимо перенести его на первое место в предложении. Если же используются другие формы, то нужно добавить вспомогательный глагол do / does в начало вопроса, а смысловой поставить в инфинитив.

Does the ice melt if I take it out of the refrigerator? Should I leave the place immediately if I have heard an alarm?

Поскольку нулевое условное часто используется как советы или руководства, глагол в основной части может стоять в повелительном наклонении. Вышеуказанные примеры Conditional Zero можно переформулировать с использованием глагола в повелительном наклонении:

If you are driving a car, be very attentive.

If you have heard an alarm, leave the place immediately.

Обязательность Zero Conditional

FIRST CONDITIONAL

В предложениях с First Conditional роль условия оказывается более явной. В нем заключается предположение о ходе событий, и если оно выполняется, тогда возможно осуществление действия из основной части предложения.

Конструкция первого типа относится к будущему времени: если произойдет условие, тогда произойдет следствие. При этом

вероятность осуществления события оказывается высокой. Именно к такому типу предложений относится пример:

If I see Gordon tomorrow, I will tell him about it.

Образование First Conditional включает в себя настоящее и будущее время. После if ставится Present, а в части следствия — Future. Обратите внимание, что после if не используется глагол в будущем времени, несмотря на то, что по смыслу условие описывает событие, которое только может произойти. На русский язык обе части предложения чаще всего переводятся будущим временем, и это часто сбивает с толку изучающих английский. Нужно запомнить, что в английском Future ставится только в часть следствия.

I will pass the exam if I work hard.

Суть использования условных предложений первого типа — сообщить о вероятном ходе событий, однако оставляя неуверенность в том, что ситуация обязательно произойдет.

Если мы попробуем поставить союз when в знакомый нам пример, то изменится значение фразы. Со словом when предложение приобретает оттенок уверенности говорящего в том, что событие произойдет.

When I see Gordon, I will tell him about it — Когда я увижу Гордона, то расскажу ему об этом.

Несмотря на то, что Present Simple в условной части предложения — наиболее частое время для правила First Conditional, здесь возможны и другие формы настоящего времени. Например Present Continuous:

If she is sleeping, I will wake her up.

Во всех типах условных предложений часто используются модальные глаголы. Они заменяют will в основной части предложения. Примеры First Conditional с модальными глаголами:

сап — может (имеет возможность):

If we hurry up, we can catch the last train.

тау — может (разрешено):

If you finish all your work today, you may have a day off tomorrow.

should — должен (следует):

If she wants to get this job, she should be ready to work hard.

must — должен:

If it rains, you must stay at home.

Как и в нулевом типе условного предложения, здесь возможно употребление повелительного наклонения в основной части. В таких примерах правило First Conditional совпадает с типом Zero Conditional, и различие в смысле выводится из контекста.

If you see her, send my regards.

SECOND CONDITIONAL

Второй тип условных предложений в английском языке описывает нереальные ситуации в настоящем или будущем времени, вероятность которых очень мала.

Для таких конструкций характерна специальная глагольная форма — сослагательное наклонение. Оно может относиться как к прошлому, так и к настоящему или будущему. В Second Conditional выражается значение настоящего и будущего времени.

В сослагательном наклонении речь идет о нереальных ситуациях, которые относятся к плану наших ожиданий, представлений, желаний. Если правило Zero and First Conditional относилось к реальным событиям, то этот тип предложений характеризует нереальный мир. В русском языке такое значение выражается частицей «бы».

If I had a thousand years to live, I would become an expert in many spheres.

Этот пример — типичное условные предложение Conditional II с нереальной ситуацией. Она находится в плане наших мечтаний или ожиданий, но не в плане реальности: человек не может прожить тысячу лет.

Хотя по смыслу предложения второго типа условий относятся к плану настоящего или будущего времени, правило Second Conditional предписывает ставить глагол в прошедшем времени. Употребление форм прошедшего характерно и для русского языка:

If I lived in Italy, I wouldn't try to spend every holiday at the seaside.

Для Second Conditional правило образования совмещает прошедшее время в условии и сослагательное наклонение в следствии. В условной части глагол ставится в Past Simple, а в части следствия появляется глагол would, после которого следует смысловой глагол в инфинитиве без частицы to. Особенностью этих предложений является то, что прошедшее время глагола to be в условии ставится в форме were вне зависимости от числа и лица подлежащего.

If I were a king, I would live in this palace.

We would be friends if Carol were a little more optimistic.

Часто условие описывает событие, которое равносильно и для будущего, и для прошедшего, поскольку речь идет о воображаемом мире. В русском языке в таких предложениях уместна форма «будь»: If I were a king — Будь я королем.

В отличие от типов Zero и First, Second Conditional в английском подразумевает, что осуществление условия маловероятно. Различие между такими ситуациями можно продемонстрировать на примере из первого типа условных предложений, если изменить глагольные формы в высказывании:

If I saw Gordon, I would tell him about it.

В таком примере говорящий утверждает, что ситуация очень маловероятна, и встреча относится, скорее, к нереальному плану.

If I saw mister President on the street, I wouldn't know what to think.

Типичная ситуация, в которой возникает второе условное — когда мы хотим передать, как поступили бы на месте другого человека. Стать другим человеком мы никак не можем, поэтому выбор нереального условного предложения однозначен. Часто такая формулировка используется в качестве совета:

If I were you, I wouldn't behave like this.

В предложениях второго типа форму would могут заменять различные модальные глаголы, однако их формы несколько отличаются от ранее разобранных. Посмотрим на примеры Second Conditional с модальными глаголами:

could — может:

I could become a star if I were more lucky.

might — может: If we had more money, we might stop work.

should — следует: If I had time, I should go to the gym. must — должен: I must be in school at this time of day if I were a child.

THIRD CONDITIONAL

Конструкция третьего условного также относится к нереальному плану. Однако в отличие от второго типа, речь здесь идет о прошедшем времени. Часто такие предложения используются, чтобы передать сожаление о совершенных или несовершенных поступках или для критики произошедших событий.

If I had known it in advance, I wouldn't have said such things.

Если в случае со вторым типом conditions в английском языке речь идет только о предполагаемых событиях, то из конструкции третьего условного предложения мы узнаем, что в реальности события развивались не так, как они подаются в предложении.

Основная часть предложения образуется с помощью конструкции would have done.

If I had called him that day, we would have solved this problem = If I'd called him that day, we'd have solved this problem.

Построить предложения Third Conditional в английском можно в форме инверсии, то есть при помощи обратного порядка слов. Для этого в условии опускается союз if, а глагол had ставится на первую позицию в предложении:

Had I called him that day, we would have solved this problem.

Модальные глаголы в Third Conditional имеют ту же форму, что и в предложениях второго типа и заменяют в основной части фразы глагол would. В качестве примеров можно рассмотреть уже знакомые нам предложения, поставленные в третий тип условий:

could — может (имеет возможность):

If we had hurried up, we could have caught the last train.

might — может (разрешено):

If you had finished all your work, you may have had a day off today.

should — должен (следует):

If she had wanted to get this job, she should have been ready to work hard.

must — должен:

If it had rained, you must have stayed at home.

MIXED CONDITIONAL

Смешанный тип совмещает в себе разные типы условных предложений. Однако в таких конструкциях участвуют не все типы conditionals $0\ 1\ 2\ 3$, а только второй и третий.

В Mixed Conditional одна из частей — условие или следствие — относится к прошлому. Смешанный тип условных предложений можно разбить на два вида:

- сочетание Second Conditional в условии и Third Conditional в следствии.
- сочетание Second Conditional в следствии и Third Conditional в условии.

Приведем примеры для каждого случая.

If + Second Conditional / Third Conditional

If I were clever enough, I wouldn't have done this.

В Third Conditional стоит основная часть предложения, не соответствующая реальному прошлому (I wouldn't have done this — «Я бы этого не сделал»), а условие характеризуется ситуацией, справедливой и для настоящего (If I were clever enough — «Будь я умнее», Second Conditional).

If + Third Conditional / Second Conditional

If I had won that lottery, I would now live in France.

В этом предложении основная часть относится к настоящему времени (I would now live in France, но условие его осуществления определяется несостоявшимся прошлым (If I had won that lottery).

I. Put the verb into the correct form.

- 1. They would be offended if I ... to the party. (not/go)
- 2. If you took more exercise, you ... better. (feel)
- 3. If they offered me a job, I think ... it. (take)
- 4. A lot of people would be out of work if the car factory (close down)
- 5. If I sold my car, I ... much money for it. (not/ get)
- 6. (in a lift) What would happen if somebody ... that red button? (press)
- 7. I don't think there's any chance that Peter and Ann will get married. I'd be astonished if they(do)
- 8. Liz gave me this ring. She ... very upset if I lost it. (be)
- 9. They are expecting us. They would be disappointed if we (not/come)
- 10. Would Steve mind if I... his bike without asking him? (borrow)
- 11. I'm sure Sue ... if you explained the situation to her. (understand)
- 12. We would need a car if we ... in the country. (live)
- 13. If we had the choice, we ... in the country. (live)
- 14. I wouldn't mind living in England if the weather ... Better. (be)
- 15. If I were you, I (not/ wait)
- 16. You're always tired. If you ... to bed so late every night, you wouldn't be tired all the time. (not/go)
- 17. I think there are too many cars. If there ... so many cars, there ... so much pollution. (not be)
- 18. If ... his number, I would phone him. (know)
- 19. I ... that coat if I were you. (buy)
- 20. I ... you if I could, but I'm afraid I can't. (help)

II. Put the verb into the correct form.

- 1. I didn't know you were in hospital. If I ... (know), I ... (go) to see you.
- 2. Sam got to the station just in time to catch the train to the airport. If he ... (miss) the train, he ... (miss) the flight.

- 3. I'm glad that you reminded me about Ann's birthday. I ... (forget) if you ... me. (not remind)
- 4. Unfortunately I forgot my address book when I went on holiday. If I ... your address, I ... you a postcard. (send)
- 5. How was your holiday? Did have a nice time? It was OK, but we ... it more if the weather ... nicer. (enjoy / be)
- 6. I took a taxi to the hotel, but the traffic was bad. It ... quicker if I (be / walk)
- 7. I'm not tired. If I ... tired, I ... home now. (be / go)
- 8. I wasn't tired last night. If I ... tired, I ... home earlier. (be / go)
- 9. We don't see you very often because you live so far away. If you ... so far away, we ... you more often. (live/ see)
- 10. This book is too expensive, so I'm not going to buy it. I ... if it (buy / be)
- 11. We don't go out very often, we can't afford it. We ... if we (go / can afford)
- 12. I can't meet you tomorrow, I have to work late. If I ..., I (work / meet)
- 13. It's raining, so we can't have lunch outside. We ... lunch, if it (have / rain)
- 14. I don't want his advice, and that's why I'm not going to ask for it. If I ..., I ... for it. (want / ask)
- 15. I wasn't hungry, so I didn't eat anything. If I ... hungry, I ... something. (be / eat)
- 16. The accident happened because the road was icy. If the road ... icy, the accident ... (be / happen)
- 17. I didn't know that Joe had to get up early, so I didn't wake him up. If I ..., I (know/wake up)
- 18. I was able to buy a car only because Peter lent me the money. If Peter ... the money, I ... to buy a car. (lend / be able)
- 19. Ann wasn't injured in the crash because she was wearing a seat belt. If Ann ..., she ... injured in the crash. (be / be)
- 20. You didn't have any breakfast, that's why you're hungry now. If you ... breakfast, you ... hungry. (have / be)
- 21. I didn't get a taxi because I didn't have any money. If I ... money, I ... a taxi. (have / get)

III. Write sentences beginning I wish

- 1. I don't know many people and I'm lonely. I wish ...
- 2. I don't have a mobile phone and I need one. I wish ...
- 3. Helen isn't here and I want to see her. I wish ...
- 4. It's cold and I hate cold weather. I wish ...
- 5. I live in a big city and I don't like it.
- 6. I can't go to the party and I'd like to. I wish ...
- 7. I have to work tomorrow but I'd like to stay in bed. I wish ...
- 8. I don't know anything about cars and my has just broken down. I wish ...
- 9. I'm not feeling well and it's not nice. I wish ...
- 10. I've eaten too much and now you feel sick. I wish ...
- 11. There was a job advertised in the newspaper. I decided not to apply for it. Now I think that my decision was wrong. I wish ...
- 12. When I was younger, I never learned to play a musical instrument. Now I regret this. I wish ...
- 13. I've painted the wall red. Now I think that red was the wrong colour. I wish ...
- 14. I'd like to take some photographs but I didn't bring my camera. I wish ...
- 15. I have some unexpected guests. They didn't phone first to say they were coming. I'm very busy and I'm not prepared for them. I wish ...

IY. Choose the right variant.

- 1. What a pity! My husband is away. If he ... here he ... us.
- a) were; will help b) were; would help c) is; helps
- 2. If I ... early tomorrow morning, I ... jogging.
- a) will get up; go b) get up; will go c) got up; am going to go
- 3. You look tired. If I ..., I ... a holiday.
- a) be; will take b) were; would take c) have been; take
- 4. ... it be all right if I ... at about 7?
- a) would; came b) would; come c) would; would come

- 5. I ... the same if I ... you.
- a) would do; am b) will do; were c) would do; were
- 6. If I ... her, I ... to her. But I didn't see her and speak to her.
- a) saw; would speak b) had seen; would have spoken c) would have seen; spoke
 - 7. Hurry up! We ... good seats if we ... late.
 - a) don't get; will arrive b) will get; arrive c) didn't get; arrived
- 8. If I ... that you were coming, I ... you at the airport. I had a lot of time to do that.
- a) had known; would have met b) knew; would meet c) would have known; will meet

Y. Choose the right variant.

- 1. If we meet him, I ... you.
- a) introduce b) will introduce c) would introduce
- 2. Who would he talk to if he ... a very serious problem.
- a) has b) had c) had had
- 3. What would they do if they ... the last train home?
- a) miss b) would miss c) had missed
- 4. If she lost her job, she ... her own business.
- a) will start b) would start c) started
- 5. If he wanted a quiet holiday, he ... to the mountains.
- a) would go b) went c) would have gone
- 6. What will you do when you ... school?
- a) will finish b) finish c) would finish
- 7. What ... her, if it's her birthday?
- a) will you buy b) do you buy c) would you buy
- 8. What would you do, if you ... me?
- a) are b) were c) have been
- 9. If you ... Mr. Show, you would like him.
- a) would know b) will know c) knew

- 10. If he ... work in the evening, he'd have time to this film.
- a) didn't work b)hadn't worked c)doesn't work
- 11. If I had a car, I ... you a lift.
- a) will give b) would give c) would have given
- 12. If I didn't go to bed late, I ... so tired all day.
- a) would be b) will be c) wouldn't be
- 13. If I go on a diet, I ... weight.
- a) will lose b) would lose c) lose
- 14. If Ann ... hurry, she will be late.
- a) will not hurry b) doesn't hurry c) wouldn't hurry
- 15. If I hadn't missed the bus I ... late for work.
- a) would be b) wouldn't be c) wouldn't have been
- 16. If Jack ... the window, his parents wouldn't have had to pay for a new one.
 - a) had broken b) hadn't broken c) didn't break
 - 17. If Kate studied more, she ... a better student.
 - a) will be b) would be c) were
 - 18. If Jane ... hurry, she would be late.
 - a) doesn't hurry b) didn't hurry c) wouldn't hurry
 - 19. If the food hadn't been awful, we ... it.
 - a) would eat b) ate c) would have eaten
 - 20. She would have forgotten the appointment, if Jack ... her.
 - a) didn't phone b) hadn't phoned c) had phoned
 - 21. We would have reached the airport in time, if we ... a taxi.
 - a) took b) had taken c) hadn't taken
 - 22. If you can't afford it, ... it.
 - a) will not buy b) don't buy c) not buy
 - 23. If he ... so much, he will put on weight.
 - a) eats b) will eat c) would eat
 - 24. If I ... you, I would do everything well.
 - a) am b) were c) would be

- 25. If I ... him, I will give all the information to him.
- a) see b) will see c)saw
- 26. If you make so much noise, the children ... to sleep.
- a) will be able b) won't be able c) can't
- 27. If it ... sunny tomorrow, we'll go for a picnic.
- a) is b) will be c) isn't
- 28. If he hadn't climbed the ladder, he ... his leg.
- a) had broken b) would have broken c) wouldn't have broken
- 29. The plants ..., if you don't water them.
- a)will grow b) grow c) won't grow
- 30. I would buy that bag if it ... cheaper.
- a) is b) were c) would be
- 31. If Pete ... a coat, he will catch a cold.
- a) puts b) doesn't put c) won't put
- 32. If it ... on Sunday, we won't be able to play football.
- a) will rain b) rain c) rains
- 33. If you ... your soup now, it will go cold.
- a) don't have b) will not have c) not have
- 34. If I see Mike this afternoon, I ... him the news.
- a) will tell b) tell c) am telling
- 35. I ... with you if I have time.
- a) will go b) go c) went
- 36. If you ... away, please let me know.
- a) will go b) go c) are going
- 37. If you drop an egg, it
- a) will break b) breaks c) is breaking
- 38. If I read too much, I ... a headache.
- a) will get b) get c) gets
- 39. If I had \$ 2 million, I ... round the world.
- a) will go b) would go c) went
- 40. I wish John ... here now.

- a) is b) would be c) were
- 41. You were not with us yesterday. I wish you ... here yesterday.
- a) were b) would be c) had been
- 42. If the weather is fine tomorrow, we ... out.
- a) go b) will go c) would go
- 43. If he ... so much money, he will be able to choose any car he likes.
 - a) has b) had c) will have
 - 44. If he ... here, he could help us.
 - a) is b) were c) would be
 - 45. If she finished her work early, she ... home.
 - a) will go b) went c) would go
 - 46. If James had had more money, he ... a lot.
 - a) would travel b) travelled c) would have travelled
 - 47. What would you have done if you ... your key?
 - a) lost b) had lost c) would lose
 - 48. If Joan wants any information, she ... to you.
 - a) writes b) wrote c) will write
 - 49. I wish you ... quiet.
 - a) are b) were c) have been
 - 50. I wish I ... Chinese.
 - a) will speak b) could speak c) would have spoken
 - 51. If I had money, I ... a flat.
 - a) will buy b) bought c) would buy
 - 52. If the plane is late, I
 - a) won't wait b) don't wait c) didn't wait
 - 53. If it ... we'll skiing.
 - a) will snow b) snows c) would snow
 - 54. If you had asked me for her address, I ... it to you.
 - a) will give b) would give c) would have given
 - 55. If you wore your new suit, you ... smart.

- a) will look b) would look c) would have looked
- 56. If you work hard, you ... the exam.
- a) will pass b) pass c) would pass
- 57. What would you do if he ... in time?
- a) not arrive b) didn't arrive c) hadn't arrived
- 58. I wish I ... John in the pub last night.
- a) didn't meet b) hadn't met c) wouldn't have met
- 59. If he had looked out of the window, he ... what had happened.
- a) will see b) would see c) would have seen
- 60. If you invite them, they
- a) come b) will come c) would come come

YI. Translate the following sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Если в воскресенье будет дождь, то мы не сможем поиграть в футбол.
- 2. Если ты не съешь сейчас суп, то он остынет.
- 3. Если я увижу его завтра, то расскажу ему новости.
- 4. Я пойду с тобой, если будет время.
- 5. Если ты пойдешь домой, то дай мне знать.
- 6. Если будешь много играть в компьютер, то будет болеть голова
- 7. Если бы у меня было миллион долларов, я бы поехала путешествовать вокруг света.
- 8. Чтобы ты делал, если бы сейчас увидел приведение?
- 9. Я хочу, чтобы она пришла поскорее.
- 10. Как жаль, что ты вчера не был с нами.
- 11. Если погода завтра будет хорошей, то мы пойдем гулять.
- 12. Если бы у него было так много денег, он бы выбрал любую машину, которая ему понравится.
- 13. Если бы он был здесь сейчас, он бы нам помог.
- 14. Если бы она закончила работу раньше, то она бы ушла домой.
- 15. Если бы у него было больше денег, он бы уехал в Америку в прошлом году.

- 16. Чтобы ты делал вчера, если бы потерял ключ?
- 17. Если ему нужна любая информация, то она ему напишет.
- 18. Я хочу, чтобы ты был спокоен.
- 19. Как жаль, что я не умею говорить по-китайски.
- 20. Если бы у них сейчас было бы больше денег, то они бы купили бы квартиру.
- 21. Если самолет задержится, то я опоздаю на конференцию.
- 22. Если завтра будет снег, пойдем кататься на лыжах.
- 23. Если бы он вчера выглянул из окна, то увидел, что случилось.
- 24. Если ты сегодня ляжешь раньше, то будешь чувствовать лучше.
- 25. Они бы пришли сегодня, если бы ты их пригласил вчера.
- 26. Если бы ты вчера спросил их адрес, я бы тебе его дала.
- 27. Если бы сейчас у него был фотоаппарат, он бы сделал несколько снимков.
- 28. Если бы ты вчера рано ушла, то они бы расстроились.
- 29. Если бы ты сегодня надел свой новый костюм, ты бы выглядел очень красиво.
- 30. Если бы я вчера увидел грабителей, я бы позвонил в полицию.
- 31. Как бы мне хотелось не встречаться с ним вчера.
- 32. Если ты будешь упорно учить, то сдашь хорошо экзамен.
- 33. Что ты будешь сейчас делать, если она не придет?
- 34. Если мы его встретим, то я тебя представлю ему.
- 35. С кем бы ты сейчас говорил, если бы у тебя была проблема?
- 36. Что бы они делали, если бы сегодня опоздали на поезд,
- 37. Если бы она сейчас потеряла работу, она бы начала свой бизнес?
- 38. Что ты будешь делать, когда закончишь институт?
- 39. Что бы сделал, если бы был на моем месте?
- 40. Если бы у меня была машина, я бы тебя подвезла.
- 41. Если бы ты вчера успела на автобус, то не опоздала бы на работу.
- 42. Если бы я была на твоем месте, я бы все сделала аккуратнее.

- 43. Если он будет так много есть, то он скоро поправится.
- 44. Если ты будешь шуметь, то дети не смогут спать.
- 45. Я жалею, что последовал его совету.
- 46. Жаль, что у меня нечего почитать.
- 47. Как жаль, что не знал об этой вечеринке. Если бы я знал, то обязательно бы пришел.
- 48. Как жаль, что я это сказал.
- 49. Как жаль, что я не знаю что мне делать сейчас.
- 50. Как бы мне хотелось, чтобы Аня была здесь с нами сейчас.
- 51. Если бы я была на твоем месте, я бы не купила это пальто.
- 52. Что бы вы делали, если бы выиграли миллион?
- 53. Если бы я хотела спросить его совет, я бы спросила.
- 54. Как бы мне хотелось жить ближе к вам.
- 55. Если бы я сейчас была голодна, я бы что-нибудь съела.
- 56. Как жаль, что я не знала, что он болен. Если бы я три дня тому назад знала, что он болен, я бы обязательно навестила его.
- 57. Почему ты так поздно пришла вчера? Если бы у меня были деньги, то я приехала бы на такси.
- 58. Если бы я вчера его увидел, то передал бы ему твою книгу.
- 59. Если ты поторопишься, то мы успеем на поезд.
- 60. Если вы не можете позволить себе это, то не покупайте.
- 61. Я бы купила эту сумку, если бы она была бы немного дешевле.
- 62. Если бы Петя не разбил окно, то его родителям не пришлось бы платить за новое.
- 63. Если вы уроните яйцо, то оно разобьется.
- 64. Если он вернется вовремя, то навестит нас.
- 65. Если она будет чувствовать себя лучше, то придет на работу завтра.
- 66. Если у меня будет время, то я пойду в магазин.
- 67. Если вы прочтете книгу к пятнице, то мы сможем ее обсудить.
- 68. Если я закончу работу раньше, то я смогу навестить вас.
- 69. Если завтра не будет дождя, полей цветы.
- 70. Если бы он вернулся вчера, то он бы обязательно пришел бы на твой день рождения.

- 71. Если бы у меня было сегодня время, я бы тебе помог.
- 72. Если бы он не курил, то чувствовал бы намного лучше.
- 73. Петр был бы здесь сейчас, если бы знал, что нам нужна его помощь.
- 74. Мы могли бы пойти погулять, если бы сегодня не было бы дождя.
- 75. Если бы я поговорила с ней вчера, я бы все знала.
- 76. Мы бы уехали бы на прошлой неделе, если бы ты закончил работу.
- 77. Если бы у меня было время, я бы сделала эту работу.
- 78. Если бы я поговорил с ними вчера, я бы знал что делать.
- 79. Если бы вы объяснили мне это правило, я бы не сделал такой глупой ошибки.
- 80. Если бы она не была больна вчера, она бы сдала экзамен.
- 81. Если бы я был на вашем месте, я бы больше читал.
- 82. Как бы мне хотелось, чтобы он приехал.
- 83. Как жаль, что вы не видели этот фильм.
- 84. Мы обсудим этот вопрос завтра, когда вернется директор.
- 85. Если я не буду занят завтра, то смогу помочь тебе.

THE ACTIVE VOICE

PRESENT SIMPLE

Present Simple употребляется для выражения действий, событий, фактов, которые происходят обычно, постоянно, регулярно в настоящем времени. Простое время в английском языке — лучший способ рассказать собеседнику о своих привычках и предпочтениях, о том, что мы умеем делать или делаем каждый день.

Как образуется Present Simple?

Нужно убрать у глагола в инфинитиве частицу «to» и поставить глагол после подлежащего. В третьем лице единственного числа (he / she / it) к инфинитиву прибавляется окончание –s. Если глагол оканчивается на -s, -ss, -sh, -ch, -x, -o, то к нему прибавляется окончание –es.

I go to work every day.

They usually play tennis every week-

end.

She brings me coffee every morning.

He goes to work every day.

She usually plays tennis every week-

end.

In Britain most of the shops close

at 5:30.

It snows in winter.

Если глагол оканчивается на -у, а ему предшествует согласная, то к нему прибавляется окончание -es, но -у заменяется на -i .

I try. — She tries.

We fly. — He flies.

Если глагол оканчивается на -y, а ему предшествует гласная, то к нему также прибавляется окончание -s, но -y не меняется.

I play. — She plays.

I stay. — He stays.

Обстоятельства времени, наиболее часто употребляемые в Present Simple:

always — всегда; often — часто; never — никогда; sometimes — иногда; usually (generally, normally) — обычно; occasionally — изредка; regularly — регулярно; hardly ever- почти никогда; seldom (rarely) — редко.

She always drinks coffee in the They often talk about sport.

morning.

I usually wake up at 6 am. check my smartphone every

15 minutes.

He takes a shower twice a day. He comes here sometimes. He likes to be polite.

On Mondays we go to the central

park.

It takes two hours to fly from Berlin. . Cats like milk

Чтобы составить отрицательное предложение — нужно поставить вспомогательный глагол между подлежащим и глаголом, прибавив отрицательную частицу not. Вспомогательный глагол do, does- в 3 лице единственного числа.

I / We / You / They + do not (don't) + V1 She / He / It + does not (doesn't) + V1

I don't go to school every day. He doesn't drive the car.

They don't drink beer. She doesn't like the weather in London.

Отрицание также можно выразить при помощи отрицательных местоимений и наречий.

Nobody speaks Arabic. He doesn't play piano very well.

I do nothing. They don't read books..

Duck don't eat fish.

При составлении вопросительных предложений вспомогательный глагол ставится перед подлежащим и последующим глаголом. Обычно — в начало предложения.

Do I / We / You / They + V1 Does She / He / It + does not (doesn't) + V1

Do you like pizza? Do they play football? Does she learn Russian? Does he live in Spain?

Иногда в вопросительном предложении употребляются вопросительные слова и фразы, которые помогают задать более точный и корректный вопрос собеседнику.

К таким словам относятся: how long (как долго), why (почему), where (где) и другие. Как и в других временах, они ставятся в самом начале предложения перед вопросительной конструкцией Present Simple.

Where does he live in Prague? Why do you drink green tea?

Когда в предложении с Present Simple появляется вспомогательный глагол — у основного глагола пропадает окончание -s.

BAЖНО: иногда вспомогательный глагол do / does можно встретить и в утвердительных предложениях, чтобы добавить экспрессии и яркости высказыванию.

I do want to try this.

Mary does know how to cook.

Глагол to be в Present Simple

Глагол to be всегда является особенным и его употребление во времени Present Simple зависит от подлежащего. Он имеет 3 разных формы:

ат (для 1-го лица единственного числа: I)

is (для 3-го лица единственного числа: she / he / it)

are (для 1-го, 2-го и 3-го лица множественного числа: we / you / they)

I am ready. She is ready. We are ready.

Present Simple используется в описании действий, которые происходят постоянно, на регулярной основе, но не привязаны к моменту речи.

Употребление Present Simple уместно в тех случаях, когда мы хотим рассказать о нашей ежедневной рутине, достоверно известных фактах, действиях в широком смысле слова или расписании поездов.

1. Регулярные, повторяющиеся действия:

I often go to the bar.

They play music every Sunday.

2. Действие в широком смысле слова (без привязки к моменту речи):

I live in Dublin.

She speaks Chinese.

3. Факты, о которых знают все:

The Earth rotates around its axis.

Moscow is the largest city in Russia.

4. Будущие действия, которые произойдут согласно расписанию:

The airplane takes off at 4.30 am.

The train leaves at 9 pm tomorrow.

5. Рецепты и инструкции (используется вместо повелительного наклонения):

You push the red button to turn on the radio.

First you turn left and then you go down the street.

6. При перечислении каких-то действий и их определенной последовательности:

You take the bus into the city center and then you take a taxi to the restaurant.

7. Иногда время Present Simple используется в отношении прошедшего времени. Например, в заголовках газет (указывают на факт произошедшего действия) или в рассказе о событии (когда мы говорим о ком-то и его действиях).

The bus with American tourists crashes in India.

PAST SIMPLE

Past Simple употребляется для выражения действий, событий или фактов, относящихся к прошлому.

Как образуется Past Simple?

Мы используем V2 (вторая форма глагола). Вы помните, что все глаголы английского языка можно разделить на правильные и неправильные?

Список неправильных глаголов есть в конце любого словаря или справочника. А вот все остальные глаголы, которых нет в списке неправильных, называются правильными. Правильные глаголы в Past Simple приобретают окончание -ed или -d. Его мы прибавляем к основе инфинитива.

Маркеры Past Simple: слова *last, ago*, yesterday указание года (*in 1956, in 2007*).

year

Yesterday I bought a new fur coat.

My grandpa died in 2007. I bought a new fur coat yesterday.

Вопросительные и отрицательные предложения.

Чтобы составить вопрос или отрицание, нам понадобится вспомогательный глагол did. В отрицательном предложении ставится после подлежащего и добавляется отрицательная частица not.

Tom did not eat porridge. = Tom didn't eat porridge.

Mark did not come yesterday = Mark didn't come yesterday

В вопросе did будет на первом месте.

DID + подлежащее + сказуемое (инфинитив)?

Did Tom eat porridge?

Ответ на этот вопрос может быть полным, но обычно бывает кратким: — Yes, he did. / No, he didn't.

Специальные вопросы

Это вопросы, которые начинаются со специального вопросительного слова (What? Where? Who? Why? When? Whom? How? Схема специального вопроса выглядит вот так: Вопросительное слово + DID + подлежащее + сказуемое (инфинитив)? С вопросительными словами Who (кто?) и What? (что?), если мы задаем вопрос к подлежащему, такая схема не работает. Мы просто ставим who или what на место подлежащего! Сказуемое при этом остается в past simple.

Mary ate ice-cream yesterday. — Who ate ice-cream yesterday?

Если действие происходило раньше регулярно, а в настоящее время уже не происходит, используется конструкция used to + инфинитив. С помощью этого выражения мы можем обозначить привычки прошлого, которых у нас сейчас нет, либо качества и свойства, которые сейчас отсутствуют.

I used to be good at drawing, but now I cannot draw even a straight line. She used to be so pretty!

В качестве синонима used to мы можем использовать would + инфинитив — но только для обозначения действий в прошлом, а не характеристики!

My mom would bake the best cookies, when I was a child.

FUTURE SIMPLE

Future Simple Tense — это простое будущее время в английском языке.

Мы используем Future Simple, чтобы высказать предположения о будущем или о событиях, которые точно произойдут и на которые мы не можем повлиять. А также, для обещаний, угроз, предупреждений и предостережений.

Future Simple образуется при помощи одного вспомогательного глагола will. Он употребляется со всеми числами и лицами. Не важно, говорим мы о 1-м лице единственного числа (I), о 3-м лице единственного числа (She / He / It) или же обо всех лицах множественного числа (We / You / They) — во всех случаях употребляем вспомогательный глагол will.

ВАЖНО: Иногда в британском английском с подлежащими I и We употребляется глагол shall.

Несмотря на то, что сегодня в обычной речи такую конструкцию используют крайне редко — следует помнить, что трансформации глагола will в shall во времени Future Simple можно встретить в тексте. Особенно, в художественной литературе.

I shall go for a walk.

Глагол shall может использоваться в вопросительной конструкции, чтобы выразить намерение и предложение что-то сделать.

Для того, чтобы составить утвердительное предложение в Future Simple — нужно добавить глагол will (shall) после подлежащего, но перед смысловым глаголом без частицы to.

I will read an interesting book. You will buy a new dress.

He will play tennis. We will dream of better days.

Отрицательная конструкция времени Future Simple образуется при помощи добавления частицы not после вспомогательного глагола will (shall).

I / She / He / It / We / You / They + will not (shall not) + V

I will not take your bag. We will not find the hotel tomorrow.

My friend will not play guitar with us. They will not present the project this Fri-

day.

Сокращение

Will not = won't Shall not = shan't

I shan't go for a walk today. He won't clean his room till Sunday.

В вопросительной конструкции вспомогательный глагол will (shall) переносится в начало предложения, а за ним следует подлежащее и смысловой глагол без частицы to.

Will (Shall) + I / She / He / It / We / You / They + V

Shall I make the reservation? Will you buy that blue car?
Will she call me back? Will they win this match?
Where will I go next weekend? When will we buy this house?
How long will she keep your stuff? What will my sister buy for me?

Также, часто можно встретить в речи вопросительно-отрицательные предложения, которые начинаются с won't. В русском языке мы бы начали этот вопрос со слов «разве» или «неужели».

Глагол to be в Future Simple

Особый глагол to be (am / is / are) в простом будущем времени приобретает форму will be. В вопросах подлежащее как бы «разбивает собой» эту форму:

Will your boss be at the office tomorrow?

Will our team be the champions next season?

Когда используется Future Simple?

Рассмотрим основные случаи с примерами, когда в предложении будет употребляться простое будущее время:

1. Когда мы говорим о единичных или повторяющихся действиях в будущем — мы можем использовать Future Simple.

I will swim every weekend next summer.

They will go to the concert and listen to good music next Friday.

2. Предположения о будущем

В этом случае Future Simple часто употребляется с глаголами Present Simple. Например: think (думать), be sure (быть уверенным), believe (верить) и другими. Также, в предложениях часто используются наречия certainly (безусловно), perhaps (вероятно), probably (возможно) и другие.

Probably I will find a better way to resolve this issue.

I think she will get this job in the marketing department.

3. Надежда, обещания и опасения

Когда мы хотим выразить свое отношение к будущему, то мы используем Future Simple, особенно с такими словами как hope (надеяться), afraid (бояться), promise (обещать), swear (клясться) и другими.

I promise we will go to Iceland next autumn.

We hope she will be okay.

4. Прогнозы на будущее

Часто время Future Simple используется в случае описания каких-то событий в будущем, на которые мы никак не можем повлиять. Например, на погоду и естественные явления или неизбежные действия других людей.

Heavy rain will be tomorrow.

Anyway he will go away next morning.

5. Спонтанные решения

Когда мы хотим подчеркнуть спонтанность какого-то решения или особый эмоциональный момент, внезапный порыв — мы также используем время Future Simple.

I will buy this pair of shoes.

We will eat all the ice-cream in the fridge.

Маркеры времени Future Simple:

soon — скоро; later — позже; as soon as — как только; tomorrow — завтра; tonight — вечером; next year — на будущий год; next week — на следующей неделе; in a month — через месяц; in 2020 — в 2020 году; in three days -через три дня.

ВАЖНО: если известен точный промежуток времени в будущем, когда будет происходить действие — используются конструкции Present Continuous или Future Continuous.

I'll call you back later. Parents will lend you some money.

She will be twenty-one years old next Mary will cook delicious dinner tonight

year.

I will not drink this bottle of wine. She won't tell anyone.

They won't bring their own chairs. This letter will not be sent.

Will your parents visit us this weekend? What will you choose?

Won't you play football with me? What will you drink tonight?

PRESENT CONTINUOUS

Present Continuous — это настоящее длительное время в английском языке, его основное значение — длительное действие, происходящее в настоящий момент.

1. Обозначение того, что происходит или не происходит сейчас, в данный момент (now, at the moment).

I'm not watching TV at the moment. I'm sitting now.

I'm using the Internet. We're talking about life.

She's not listening to me.

2. Обозначение того, что происходит сейчас в широком смысле этого слова — сегодня, в этом месяце, в этом году и так далее. Временные ситуации, которые, как мы чувствуем или знаем, не продлятся долго.

at work?

I'm living in Moscow for a few months. I'm reading a great book.

He's living with his mother until he

finds an apartment.

3. Появившиеся недавно или временные привычки, которые существовали не всегда.

My father is smoking too much. My cat's eating a lot these days.

4. Повторяющиеся, раздражающие действия, привычки с использованием always, constantly, forever:

They're forever being late. My sister is always losing her keys. I don't like him because he is always

complaining.

5. Планы на ближайшее будущее

I'm leaving at 5 am. Are you visiting your parents next week-

I am not going to the party tonight. end?

6. Изменение ситуации (обычно медленное) — little by little, gradually и т. д.

My son is getting better at playing the The weather is improving. guitar.

PAST CONTINUOUS

Past Continuous— это прошедшее длительное время, которое указывает на событие или процесс, длившийся в определенный период времени в прошлом. Причем, этот момент в прошлом обязательно должен быть указан. Это может быть как какое-то конкретное время (at 5 o'clock), так и указание на момент времени (when) или на крайний случай — подразумеваться из контекста.

I was dancing all night long.

When she called I was taking a shower.

Время Past Continuous часто можно услышать в повседневной речи носителей языка. С его помощью можно рассказать о длительных действиях в прошлом.

Past Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в прошедшем времени (was для единственного числа и were для множественного числа) и первой формы глагола с окончанием -ing (простое причастие настоящего времени).

I was crying. She was sleeping.

We were dancing. You were eating.

При образовании причастия (Ving) нужно помнить о том, в каком случае согласная или гласная на конце удваивается, когда гласная на конце заменяется на другую, и других правилах. Если буква -е на конце не произносится, то она опускается перед окончанием -ing, если произносится — просто добавляется -ing.

to write \rightarrow writing to free \rightarrow freeing

Окончание -
ie меняется на -y to lie \Rightarrow lying

Окончание -у всегда остается на месте to play \rightarrow playing, to try \rightarrow trying

Согласная на конце удваивается, если перед ней стоит ударная гласная. Согласная не удваивается, если ударная гласная стоит в другом месте или согласной предшествует долгий гласный звук

to get \rightarrow getting to remember \rightarrow remembering to cool \rightarrow cooling

Конечные буквы w и x перед -ing не удваиваются

to mix \rightarrow mixing to show \rightarrow showing

Утвердительные предложения составляются по формуле при помощи вспомогательных глаголов was / were (в зависимости от числа) и первой формы глагола.

I was cooking the dinner. She was painting a new picture.

They were watching the Star Wars. The doctor was sitting in his office.

Отрицательные предложения Past Continuous образуются при помощи добавления частицы not после вспомогательного глагола was / were но перед смысловым глаголом.

I / He / She / It / You / We / They + was/were + not + Ving

I was not drinking coffee. She was not singing a song.

They were not watching Harry Potter. Mary wasn't reading the book.

You weren't taking a shower.

Вопросительные предложения в Past Continuous образуются путем переноса вспомогательного глагола was / were в начало предложения.

Was I drinking tea? Were we driving the main road? Was Arnold reading the book? Were you eating breakfast?

Специальные уточняющие вопросы образуются во времени Past Continuous при помощи постановки в начало предложения question words (вопросительных слов). Таких, как where (где), when (когда) и других. Дальнейший порядок слов в конструкции повторяет вышеупомянутую вопросительную форму.

What were you singing at the karaoke bar this time last Friday?

Where were you staying when you went to Paris?

Существует несколько случаев, когда в предложении употребляется время Past Continuous:

1. Продолжительные действия в конкретный момент в прошлом

Обычно на это указывают особые маркеры времени. Например, *at 7 а.т.* (в семь утра), *this morning at 4:18* (этим утром в 4:18), *at midnight* (в полночь) и другие.

Помимо точного времени может быть указан просто период в прошлом, когда длилось определенное действие. Это делается при помощи выражений all day (весь день), this afternoon (сегодня днем) или просто during some time (в течение какого-то времени) и т.д.

Yesterday at 5 p.m. I was drinking tea with mom.

This time three month ago we were flying to Prague.

What were you doing during your honeymoon? — We were traveling across Japan.

2. Одновременные действия в прошлом

Если несколько действий в прошлом происходили в один момент времени — то используется Past Continuous.

We were eating pizza while we were watching a new TV series.

3. Неодобрение

Конструкция Past Continuous может использоваться в речи для выражения недовольства или неодобрения прошлых действий. Обычно используется со словами often (часто), always (всегда) или constantly (постоянно).

He was always losing our keys while on holiday.

I was often waiting for her by her door when we were dating.

4. Временная ситуация

Past Continuous используется в случае, когда речь идет о временной ситуации в прошлом, которая длилась недолго. Конкретный промежуток при этом обязательно указывается в предложении.

They were living in Norway for 4 months.

Маркеры времени Past Continuous: at the moment; while; all night long; all morning; all day long.

I was writing a letter to my granny from 4 to 4:30 pm on Sunday.

Yesterday they were playing tennis when the rain started.

Jane was sitting on the bench and was waiting for somebody.

At midnight I was driving home.

They were often being late because of their dog.

I wasn't drinking coffee when you called.

My sister wasn't washing her clothes last weekend. Was she cooking Christmas dinner at this time last year? Were they flying over the volcano during their last flight? Was Anna teaching English at the school last autumn? What were you doing at 8 p.m. last Wednesday?

FUTURE CONTINUOUS

Future Continuous — длительное будущее время в английском языке. Как и другие времена группы Continuous, оно указывает на продолжительное действие, которое происходит в определенный момент времени. В данном случае — в будущем.

Future Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола will (shall) и be с причастием настоящего времени (to be + глагол c окончанием -ing).

ВАЖНО: Вспомогательный глагол will используется со всеми подлежащими (I / He / She / It / You / We / They).

Утвердительные предложения во времени Future Continuous образуются путем добавления вспомогательного глагола will (shall), глагола be (который не изменяется) и смыслового глагола с окончанием -ing.

I shall be dancing. She will be writing. You will be thinking. It will be working.

Чтобы составить отрицание во времени Future Continuous — добавляем частицу пот после глагола will(shall), но перед be.

I will not be swimming. He will not be dancing. You will not be coming.

При образовании вопросительного предложения во времени Future Continuous вспомогательный глагол will (shall) выносится в начало предложения перед подлежащим. Will (Shall) + I / He / She / It / You / We / They + be Ving

Shall I be driving all night long? Will she be drawing? Will we be walking? Will it be working?

Специальные уточняющие вопросы образуются во времени Future Continuous с помощью question words (вопросительных слов). Например: where (где), when (когда) и других. QW ставится в начало предложения, а дальнейший порядок слов в конструкции остается таким же, как и в вопросе.

What will you be playing on your guitar next Sunday evening?

Where will they be traveling during that time?

Когда употребляется Future Continuous?

Future Continuous употребляется для выражения какого-то действия в определенный заранее известный момент в будущем. Это может быть конкретное время или день или даже год.

1. Действия в конкретный момент времени в будущем

Для этого обычно используются слова и фразы вроде at midnight (в полночь), this time next week (в это время на следующей неделе), at 5 o'clock tomorrow (завтра в пять часов) и другие.

This time next week Mary will be playing piano.

She will be waiting for me here at 9 p.m. tomorrow.

2. Иногда точный момент времени в будущем может выражаться при помощи придаточных времени (вводятся словами when, as soon as, after, until и т.д.). В таких придаточных используется Present Simple.

I will be washing the car when he leaves.

3. Несколько действий в будущем, которые будут происходить одновременно Future Continuous употребляется тогда, когда мы хотим рассказать о том, что несколько вещей будут происходить одновременно.

Tom will be slicing cheese and I will be meeting the guests.

4. Неизбежные действия

Это такие будущие события, которые точно произойдут в результате каких-либо подготовительных действий или просто естественным путём. Мы уверены, что будет так и никак иначе.

John and I made a deal. I shall be feeding his cat next week.

5. Запланированные действия

Для выражения каких-то планов на будущее чаще всего используется время Present Continuous (настоящее длительное

время), но иногда можно встретить и конструкцию с Future Continuous, смысл несколько отличается.

They will be moving to Moscow next Monday. (Future Continuous)

They are moving to Moscow next Monday. (Present Continuous)

В примере с Future Continuous говорится о том, что весь понедельник они будут заниматься переездом, акцент на действии, которое будет длиться определенное время в будущем.

При помощи Present Continuous сообщается чёткий, уверенный план на ближайшее будущее.

Sara will be flying to Tokyo next morning. (Future Continuous) Sara is flying to Tokyo next morning. (Present Continuous)

6. Вежливый вопрос

Конструкцию Future Continuous можно использовать, чтобы аккуратно и вежливо узнать у собеседника о планах на ближайшее будущее. При помощи такой формы мы можем поинтересоваться, совпадают ли намерения другого человека с нашими желаниями.

Will you be going to the kitchen later? Bring me an apple, please.

Will she be using the laptop for a long time? Let me know when she finishes.

Маркеры времени Future Continuous:

at 3 o'clock; at this time tomorrow; at that moment; meanwhile / meantime (тем временем); from...till... / from...to...; during that time; during the day; during the afternoon; all night; all day long; the whole morning; the whole year.

I shall be having a yoga class at 9 o'clock tomorrow.

They will be driving home the whole next day.

Our boss will be making an announcement about holidays later this afternoon.

John will be expecting me at 5:15.

I shan't be running in the park for a week.

The doctors will not be seeing the patients tomorrow evening.

We will not be cooking breakfast the whole morning.

The cat won't be sleeping all night long.

Will Harry be waiting for us here at 6 o'clock?

Will I be sitting near a window on the airplane?

What time will you be coming back from the restaurant?

What will John and Nina be celebrating this time tomorrow?

PRESENT PERFECT

Present Perfect Simple — это одна из сложных временных форм в английском языке. Можно выделить следующие случаи использования:

1. Когда действие «взяло старт» в прошлом и всё еще продолжается в настоящем:

My parents have known one another for a long time.

Tom has not seen his best friend for age.

2. Когда действие происходило в прошлом не один раз и всё еще актуально в настоящем:

From our garden he has brought five apples already and he wants to bring more. She has drawn wonderful pictures since childhood.

3. Когда событие произошло в прошлом, но его последствия, результат влияют на настоящее:

I have read an interesting book. It is on the shelf.

4. Когда описывается некий опыт в прошлом:

My sister has never tried to make an apple pie.

Во всех случаях употребления Present Perfect, как правило, присутствуют следующие слова-указатели времени:

never — hukorda, ever — korda-nufo, already — ywe, just — mouho, kak pas, monhoko, before — pahhome, npewde, not ... yet — $em\ddot{e}$ hem, $he\ddot{e}$ hem, hedaho, hem hem

Трудности вызывает и образование временной формы Present Perfect. Она состоит из двух частей: вспомогательного глагола to have в настоящем времени и основного глагола в 3-й форме. Вспомогательный глагол to have не переводится и является изменяемой частью составной формы глагола — have/has. Что касается основного глагола, то, если он относится к группе правильных, то к нему в 3-й форме добавляется окончание –ed:

to use — used (использовать), to close — closed (закрывать), to watch — watched (смотреть).

Если же глагол является неправильным, то форма берётся из 3-й колонки таблицы неправильных глаголов: to see — seen (смотреть), to cut — cut (резать), to understand — understood (понимать). Основной глагол несёт смысловую нагрузку, переводится, но не является изменяемой частью составного формы Present Perfect.

Иногда Present Perfect употребляется в предложениях с предлогами for and since. Предлог for (в течение) указывает на то, сколько времени действие длилось, а since (начиная с, с тех пор как) подчеркивает длительность действия, которое началось в прошлом и всё еще «ощутимо» на данный момент.

My brother has known him since school years.

В отрицательных предложениях появляется отрицательная частица not (не), который ставится между вспомогательным и основным глаголом: have/has + not + основной глагол в 3-й форме. Нередко not (не) сливается со вспомогательным глаголом, образуя краткую форму — haven't или hasn't.

В вопросительной форме ничего нового не добавляется. Изменяется сама схема. Иными словами — нарушается прямой порядок слов в предложении и вспомогательный глагол have/ has выходит на первое место: have/has + подлежащие + основной глагол в 3-й форме.

PAST PERFECT

Past Perfect используется, когда у нас есть два действия в прошлом и нам важно показать, что одно из них произошло раньше другого. Событие, которое произошло раньше, описываем с помощью Past Perfect, а второе действие — с помощью Past Simple.

She came to the office to meet him, but he had already left.

I was not hungry because I had had lunch with my colleague.

Описывая момент, к которому было завершено действие в прошлом, мы часто используем конструкции с by.

by Friday; by the end of the year; by July 11th; by 5 o'clock; by then

They had run out of money by the end of the month.

My sister had finished all her wedding preparation by the end of the spring.

Раst Perfect употребляется в предложениях с глаголами, которые связаны с мыслительными процессами: think (думать), know (знать), decide (решать), believe (верить, полагать), hope (надеяться), remember (помнить), forget (забывать) и др. Эти глаголы употребляем в Past Simple, а вторую часть предложения — в Past Perfect.

I thought you had called Eric to invite him to the party.

We hoped that he had caught the train.

He remembered that he had left his passport at home.

Past Perfect используется, когда нужно объяснить причину того, что произошло. В той части предложения, где указывается причина, используем Past Perfect, а где результат действия — Past Simple. Слова because (потому что) и as (так как) помогут связать две части предложения.

I was very upset as my son had forgotten about my birthday.

I got this job because I had prepared for the interview really well.

Past Perfect используется с глаголами состояния (например, be, have, know), когда мы говорим о том, сколько времени длилось действие до конкретного момента в прошлом. Такие предложения часто сопровождают слова since (с каких-то пор) и for (в течение какого-то периода).

He told me that his best friend had been ill since last week.

When they got married, they had known each other for 10 years.

Действия описываются в хронологическом порядке: сначала он завел машину, потом включил радио и пристегнул ремень безопасности.

He started the car, turned the radio on, but before he had fastened the seat belt.

When I got home, my son took my car.

When I got home, I found that my son had taken my car.

Если из контекста нам понятно, что одно действие произошло раньше другого, можно использовать как Past Perfect, так и Past Simple. Часто понять контекст и очередность событий помогают следующие слова-маркеры:

before, after, as soon as, first, earlier и т. д.

I didn't worry about speaking in front of so many people. I gave / had given public speeches earlier.

Before he proposed to her, he spent / had spent many hours looking for a perfect ring.

We were late because Eric spilled / had spilled the coffee and had to change.

I agreed to go to the cinema with her even though I saw / had seen that film before.

FUTURE PERFECT

Future Perfect — будущее совершенное время образуется с помощью вспомогательного глагола to have в Future Indefinite и причастия прошедшего времени (Past Participle) основного глагола.

Вопросительная форма Future Perfect имеет вид: сначала ставится вспомогательный глагол shall/will перед подлежащим, а have и причастие прошедшего времени (Past Participle) ставится в конец.

Will be have studied?

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью частицы -not, которая ставится после первого вспомогательного глагола.

I will have studied. Will I have studied? Will I have studied?

She/He/it will have studied. She/He/it will not have

studied.

Will she/he/it have studied?

С помощью Future Perfect, мы можем выразит будущее действие, которое начнётся и совершится до определенного момента в будущем. Данное время переводится будущим временем глагола совершенного вида. Момент, до которого совершится действие, может быть указан:

а) временем, к которому действие будет закончено (как правило, обстоятельством времени с предлогом by: by 9 o'clock, by Monday):

I will have repaired your TV by 6 o'clock. We will have fixed all bugs by Friday.

б) другим будущим действием, к началу которого действие в Future Perfect уже закончится:

By the time the exam begins, I will have forgotten everything.

By the time this letter reaches you I will have been here nearly a month.

I will have talked to Mark before you visit me.

PRESENT PERFECT CONTINUOUS

Present Perfect Continuous — настоящее совершенное длительное время

указывает на действие, которое началось в прошлом, продолжалось в течение некоторого времени и либо закончилось непосредственно перед разговором или все еще продолжается в момент разговора.

I have been waiting here for 2 hours!

We have been preparing for our exam since morning.

Для того, чтобы поставить глагол в форму времени Present Perfect Continuous, требуется вспомогательный глагол to be во времени Present Perfect и причастие настоящего времени (форма V-ing) смыслового глагола.

В вопросительном предложении вспомогательный глагол to have выносится на место перед подлежащим, а остальная часть сказуемого располагается после него:

I smell tobacco. Have you been smoking? Has she been using my car again?

В отрицательных предложениях за вспомогательным глаголом to have следует отрицательная частица not:

It has not been snowing here since 1993.

Случаи употребления Present Perfect Continuous:

Действие, которое началось в прошлом, продолжалось в течение некоторого времени и все еще продолжается в момент разговора:

The workers have been trying to move our wardrobe for half an hour, go help them.

Действие, которое началось в прошлом, продолжалось в течение некоторого времени и закончилось непосредственно перед разговором:

Do you like this cake? I have been baking it since morning.

PAST PERFECT CONTINUOUS

Past Perfect Continuous употребляется для описания действия, которое началось в прошлом и продолжалось до какого-то момента в прошлом. Для обозначения этого момента используется другое действие или специальные слова (by the time (к тому времени как), after (после того как), since (с тех пор как), before (перед тем как), for (в течение):

She had been crying for an hour before we came.

Past Perfect Continuous обозначает действие, которое началось и длилось определенное время в прошлом, и итог, результат этого действия ясно прослеживается в прошлом.

There was much snow everywhere. It had been snowing at night.

В случаях, когда есть потребность особо отметить длительность действия в прошлом, но сказуемое выражено глаголом состояния, Past Perfect Continuous не употребляется. Вместо этого времени используется Past Perfect (Прошедшее Совершенное):

He had loved her inner world for all his life.

В образовании утвердительной формы Past Perfect Continuous используется вспомогательный глагол to be, употребляющийся во временной форме Past Perfect (Прошедшее Совершенное) — had been, и основной глагол с окончанием –ing. Это можно представить в виде формулы «подлежащие + had been + глагол + -ing

Для выражения отрицания используется отрицательная частица not (не), которая ставится между глаголами had и been: подлежащие + had not been + глагол + -ing

В вопросах прямой порядок слов, характерный для английского предложения, нарушается. На первое место выходит

вспомогательный глагол had выходит на первое место, далее следует подлежащие, been и основной глагол: Had + подлежащие + been + глагол + -ing?

Yesterday morning I got up and looked out the window. The sun was shining but the ground was wet. It had been raining.

I was very tired when I arrived home. I had been working hard all day. Tom was leaning against the wall, out of breath. He had been running.

FUTURE PERFECT CONTINUOUS

Future Perfect Continuous в устной, да и в письменной речи, употребляется редко. Мы используем эту временную форму для обозначения протяженного действия, которое будет длится до определенного действия / момента в будущем. Описываемое действие может закончится в указанный момент, а может и продолжатся дальше.

Molly'll have been living in Kenya for six years next February.

Gregory will have been working for hours when we come.

Future Perfect Continuous часто употребляется с by-phrase:by 7pm; by Thursday; by the 11th of November; by that time

Andrew will have been washing his car by five o'clock.

Remember: Не используйте Future Perfect Continuous со статическими глаголами. В таких случаях используется Future Perfect.

Tomorrow, Molly will have been here for a week.

By 6 o'clock Greg'll have been driving for eight long hours.

Sally will have been waiting for Greg in the hall for three hours when he comes.

By 2020 Anthony'll have been living in Malta for sixteen years.

When Sindy finishes this course, she will have been learning Korean for 7 years.

Отрицательные предложения.

By the end of September, Sally won't have been working long enough to get any benefits.

In three months, Kate and Derek won't have been seeing each other for a year.

Вопросительные предложения.

When I come at 6 pm, will you have been practicing long?

Will Mark have been living in Kongo longer than he's lived anywhere else by 2025?

Английский язык при поверхностном изучении полон противоречий. Где еще, например, вы встретите такую группу времен, как Future in the Past, которая на русский язык переводится, как «будущее в прошедшем»? Казалось бы, сам здравый смысл выступает против того, чтобы уже произошедшие действия объединялись с теми ситуациями, которым еще только предстоит свершиться. Но если хорошенько разобраться в сути вопроса, то окажется, что и в русском языке будущее часто существует в контексте прошедшего времени. Рассмотрим, например, фразу: «Он сказал, что завтра не придет». В данном случае первый глагол (сказал) стоит в форме прошедшего времени, а вот второе действие (не придет) относится к будущему. С Future in the Past Simple все обстоит точно так же. Эта временная группа, в которую входят 4 времени, используется в придаточных предложениях после глагола в Past Simple (простом прошедшем времени).

He said that he would not come tomorrow. I believed you would find my letter.

В английском языке будущее в прошедшем не выделяется в отдельную группу времен. Англоязычные пособия предлагают изучать Future in the Past в контексте согласования времен. О глаголе would (форма will) речь также заходит в тех ситуациях, когда разбирается косвенная речь: I said I would give him some money (Я сказал, что дам ему немного денег). Однако в русских учебниках зачастую говорят о будущем в прошедшем как об отдельной группе времен, куда входят Future Simple in the Past, Future Perfect in the Past, Future Continuous in the Past и Future Perfect Continuous in the Past.

Все четыре вышеназванных времени используются для того, чтобы подчеркнуть, что действие, которое мы помещаем в придаточное предложение, случится позже, чем главное действие в прошлом. Например, My friend hoped that you would miss this party (Мой друг надеялся, что ты пропустишь эту вечеринку). В представленном примере глагол «надеялся» случится раньше, чем человек, о котором идет речь, пропустит или не пропустит вечеринку.

Примечательно, что Future in the Past в обязательном порядке предполагает наличие в главном предложении глагола в Past

Simple. При несоблюдении этого правила ни о каком будущем времени в прошедшем речи быть не может. Важно также упомянуть, что Future in the Past часто употребляется после глаголов говорения (say, tell) или же после глаголов чувств и знаний (hope — надеяться, believe — верить, know — знать, think — думать и т. п.).

I thought you would not visit me.

Правила образования Будущего в Прошедшем

Будущее прошедшее время в английском языке, как мы уже говорили, используется в придаточном предложении. Для его образования нам всегда нужен вспомогательный глагол would. В первом лице (я, мы) иногда также можно встретить should. Однако would все-таки предпочтительнее. Таким образом, базовая схема образования Future in the Past выглядит следующим образом:

Подлежащее + Would + смысловой глагол.

Jane said she would meet with him.

Поскольку это время употребляется исключительно в придаточных предложениях, сложно представить применение вопросительных конструкций в Future in the Past. Однако вопрос можно выразить при помощи союза if:

I asked him if he would come tomorrow.

Отрицательная конструкция в Future in the Past создается посредством добавления к вспомогательному глаголу would частицы not.

Jane said she would not meet with him.

В английской речи вспомогательный глагол would часто сокращается до буквы d, которая через апостроф (') присоединяется к местоимению:

Jane said she'd meet with him.

Отрицательная конструкция would not может сокращаться до wouldn't.

Jane said she wouldn't meet with him.

Важно также отметить, что схема образования будущего в прошедшем будет зависеть от того, с каким конкретно временем

из этой группы мы имеем дело. Представленная выше структура подойдет для Future Simple in the Past. Для других же времен, помимо would, потребуются и другие вспомогательные глаголы.

FUTURE SIMPLE IN THE PAST

Из всех времен группы будущее в прошедшем Future Simple in the Past — пожалуй, самое распространенное. Как можно догадаться по названию, это время используется для того, чтобы сообщить о простых, непродолжительных, действиях, которые относительно некоего момента в прошлом являются будущим.

My friend knew that he would be late this evening.

Для образования Future Simple in the Past нам понадобится вспомогательный глагол would. Форма же смыслового глагола останется неизменной, если речь идет об активном залоге. В пассивном залоге (случаи, когда подлежащее испытывает на себе некое действие) схема образования будущего простого в прошедшем выглядит следующим образом:

Подлежащее + would be + смысловой глагол в третьей форме (причастие прошедшего времени).

He knew that his house would be sold.

FUTURE CONTINUOUS IN THE PAST

Будущее продолженное в прошедшем — еще одно время, с которым существует пусть и небольшая, но все же вероятность столкнуться в разговорной практике. В отличие от предыдущего, простого времени, Future Continuous in the Past выражает растянутое во времени действие. Это могут быть сон, работа, написание статьи, подготовка домашнего задания и т.п. И, конечно же, это самое действие должно быть будущим по отношению к прошлому. Например:

I thought I would be reading your article at that time tomorrow.

She supposed that her child would be sleeping at 17.

Для того, чтобы получить предложение в Future Continuous in the Past, необходимы вспомогательные глаголы would и be. Со смысловым глаголом также происходят небольшие трансформации: к основе слова в данном случае необходимо добавить суффикс -ing.

Подлежащее + would be + смысловой глагол с -ing. I said I would be working all day tomorrow.

FUTURE PERFECT IN THE PAST

Future Perfect in the Past в английском языке встречается крайне редко. Это время отличается от других тем, что характеризует завершенное действие. Часто будущее совершенное в прошедшем можно опознать по предлогу by. Этот маркер указывает на время окончания действия (by Monday — к понедельнику, by 5 o'clock — к 5 часам...). При этом, как и в других временах группы Future in the Past, действие, о котором идет речь, является будущим для момента в прошлом.

We supposed that she would have published that novel by the end of January.

В представленном примере предположение, выраженное глаголом в Past Simple, произошло раньше публикации романа.

При построении фразы в Future Perfect in the Past нельзя обойтись без вспомогательного глагола would. Также нам потребуется неизменный спутник группы Перфект — глагол have. Смысловой глагол ставится в третью форму. В результате, мы получаем вот такую формулу построения предложения в будущем совершенном в прошедшем.

Подлежащее + would + have + смысловой глагол в 3-й форме. I hoped I would have finished this project by Christmas.

В этой разновидности будущего прошедшего времени в английском языке есть также форма пассивного залога, которая образуется по тому же принципу, что предложения в активном залоге. Только в пассивном залоге присутствует дополнительно вспомогательный глагол been:

Подлежащее + would + have + been + смысловой глагол в 3-й форме.

FUTURE PERFECT CONTINUOUS

Еще реже, чем Future Perfect in the Past, в английском языке встречается Future Perfect Continuous in the Past. Последнее, четвертое время из группы будущего прошедшего вы, возможно, даже в хороших британских книгах не встретите. Но чисто теоретически фразу в будущем совершенном продолженном в прошедшем вполне реально построить.

Итак, Future Perfect Continuous in the Past используется, когда нам нужно сообщить о продолжительном действии, которое в будущем будет длиться до определенной временной точки. При этом, это самое действие, опять-таки, является будущим по отношению к прошлому. Иными словами, если в прошлом мы говорим (надеемся, полагаем и т. п.), что в таком-то моменте в будущем исполнится столько-то лет (месяцев, недель), как мы будем выполнять некое длительное действие, то необходимо использовать Future Perfect Continuous in the Past.

He said that he would have been working in that company for 2 years next month.

Для образования этого сложного во всех смыслах времени потребуется вспомогательная конструкция would have been. Смысловой глагол ставится в ing-овую форму:

Подлежащее + would + have + been + смысловой глагол c окончанием ing.

I told that I would have been studying French for 3 years next year.

Понятно, что в реальной жизни, из всех времен группы будущего в прошедшем, наиболее востребовано Future Simple in the Past. Вряд ли вы или ваш собеседник в быстрой разговорной речи захотите строить громоздкие конструкции с Future Perfect in the Past или, тем более, с Future Perfect Continuous in the Past. Именно поэтому при изучении будущего в прошедшем необходимо делать ставку на его самую простую форму.

Все времена действительного залога

	Present	Past	Future	Future-in-the-Past
Simple	He writes letters every day.	He wrote a letter yesterday.	He will write a letter tomorrow.	He said that he would write a letter the next day.
Continuous	He is writing a letter now.	He was writing a letter at 5 o'clock yesterday.	He will be writing a letter at 5 o'clock tomorrow.	He said that he would be writing a letter at 5 o'clock the next day.
Perfect	He has already written a letter.	He had written a letter by 5 oclock yesterday.	He will have written a letter by 5 o'clock tomorrow.	He said that he would have written a letter by 5 o'clock the next day.
Perfect Continuous	He has been writing a letter since morning.	He had been writing a letter for 2 hours when I came. He will have been writing a letter for two hours when I come.	He will have been writing a letter for two hours when I come.	He said that he would have been writing a letter for 2 hours when I came.

1. Choose the right variant.

- 1. How much ... this sweater cost?
- a) is b) does c) do
- 2. I ... stay at home on Sundays.
- a) am not b) doesn't c) don't
- 3. Mag and her sister ... live in Rome.
- a) aren't b) don't c) doesn't
- 4. ... you ... swimming?
- a) Do you like b) Does you like c) Are you like
- 5. ... Bob ... what I want?
- a) Bob knows b) Do Bob knows c) Does Bob know
- 6. Can you help me? I The way to the market.
- a) don't know b) not know c) am not know
- 7. What's the matter? You Very happy.
- a) looks b) look c) looking
- 8. Bad news very fast.
- a) travels b) travel c) travelling
- 9. Don't give him cigarettes. He ... smoke.
- a) isn't b) don't c) doesn't
- 10. It ... in this part of the world.
- a) is often raining b) often rains c) often rain
- 11. Granny is in the kitchen. She ... a cake.
- a) makes b) is making c) making
- 12. John In the garden.
- a) still works b) still working c) is still working
- 13. Dad On Saturdays.
- a) is usually working b) usually working c) usually works
- 14. We a holiday last year.
- a) didn't have b) haven't had c) hadn't had
- 15. Don't worry about your letter. I ... it the day before yesterday.
- a) have sent b) send c) sent

- 16. I can't find my umbrella. I think somebody by mistake.
- a) took b) has taken c) have taken
- 17. My husband in the bank for 3 years from 2005 to 2008.
- a) has worked b) worked c) had worked
- 18. I saw a light in your window as I by.
- a) passed b) was passing c) passing
- 19. The children are drawing. They since they came home.
- a) have drawn b) were drawing c) have been drawing
- 20. We were late. The meeting an hour ago.
- a) started b) had started c) start
- 21. The sun ..., it ... dark, and we went home.
- a) had set, had got b) set, got c) set, get
- 22. I saw a nice kitten when I ... the basket.
- a) opened b) had opened c) open
- 23. After I ... all my letters, I went to the kitchen to make coffee.
- a) wrote b) had written c) write
- 24. I'm so happy to see you again. I ... you since I left Berks.
- a) haven't seen b) have seen c) hadn't seen
- 25. We ... along the road for two hours when we saw a house.
- a) walked b) had walked c) had been walking
- 26. This time tomorrow they ... on the train on their way to Chicago.
 - a) will sit b) sitting c) will be sitting
 - 27. If you think it over, you ... that I'm right.
 - a) will see b) are seeing c) will have seen
 - 28. Let's meet at the station at 5. OK. I ... for you there.
 - a) will wait b) will have waited c) will be waiting
 - 29. My sister ... the result of her exam on economy in three days.
 - a) will have known b) will be knowing c) will know
 - 30. She ... by the time we arrive.
 - a) will have b) will have had c) will be having

- 31. By that time they
- a) returned b) have returned c) had returned
- 32. By that time we ... to an agreement.
- a) have come b) came c) had come
- 33. When I ... to the station the train
- a) have got; left b) got; has left c) got; had left
- 34. When I ... my purse, someone ... the money out of it.
- a) found; had taken b) had found; had taken c) found, took
- 35. She ... I ... you to solve that missing luggage case.
- a) knew; has helped b) has known; have helped c) knew; had helped
- 36. When we ... home, it ... raining.
- a) left; had stopped b) had left; had stopped c) have left; has stopped
- 37. When the bell ... she ... her report.
- a) rang; had finished b) has rung; has finished c) had rung; had finished
 - 38. When she ... the letter, she ... crying.
 - a) had read; started b) has read; had started c) read; started
 - 39. It was June 2017. Ann and Michael ... married.
 - a) have just got b) had just got c) had just gotten
 - 40. She ... working for the company when she ... 20.
 - a) had started; was b) started; was c) had started; had been

II. Put the verb in brackets in the correct tense.

- 1. She (make) tea for her guests.
- 2. Yesterday he (to go) to the airport to meet his brother.
- 3. Why you (to look) at me in that way.
- 4. We (to work) at this problem for three months.
- 5. Be quiet, he (to write) a report now.
- 6. As my brother (to get) off the tram , he (fall) and (to break) his leg.
- 7. He (to sit) in a café, when I (to see) him.
- 8. My mother (to watch) TV, when I (to come) into her room.
- 9. We (to meet) her when she (to walk) home.

- 10. Her husband (to watch) TV, while she (to water) the flowers.
- 11. When I (to look) out of the window, I (to see) that it (to rain) and people (to hurry) along the street.
- 12. I never (to be) to Germany.
- 13. When you last (to see) him?
- 14. You ever (to visit) this picture gallery?
- 15. My mother just (to go) out.
- 16. She (to be) to Rome several times.
- 17. I never (to take) sugar with my coffee.
- 18. She (to study) chemistry for 3 years.
- 19. He (to study) better than his father (to do).
- 20. He (to open) his eyes, (to look) around and (to think), trying to remember what (to happen) to him.
- 21. After they (to go) at last I (to go) to bed.
- 22. Mother (to call) her tomorrow.
- 23. By the end of the next month I (to finish) reading this book.
- 24. I (to wait) for you since 12 o'clock.
- 25. I (to look) for my ring for half an hour. I'm afraid I (to lose) it somewhere on the beach.
- 26. Hurry up, John. I'm waiting for you. You (to have) a bath for an hour.
- 27. How long you (to sit) here?
- 28. I'll go and wash my eyes. I don't want my husband to see I (to cry).
- 29. I can't stand it any more. Those people (to quarrel) since breakfast.
- 30. Ann is playing the piano. She (to play) since I came.
- 31. He (to sit) here for 40 minutes when the telephone rang.
- 32. I thought she (to work) here for 5 years.
- 33. They (to sleep) for 6 hours when the noise began.
- 34. They (to sit) here for half an hour when I come.
- 35. Next July he (to live) here for 5 years.
- 36. ... I (to see) you next week? I'd like to know for certain.
- 37. ... you (to see) Jack today?
- 38. ... you (to solve) the problem yet?
- 39. I (to sleep) badly recently, doctor. What can I do about it?
- 40. I (to wait) for you for ages. Thanks heavens you are here at last.

III. Translate the following sentences from Russian into English.

- 1. Где Петр? Он ушел в кино. Подожди его. Он придет через полчаса.
- 2. Я работаю над этим докладом уже целую неделю.
- 3. Где ты был с прошлой субботы?
- 4. Я сегодня не обедала.
- 5. Я учусь кататься на велосипеде.
- 6. Как давно вы ее знаете?
- 7. Они женаты уже 20 лет.
- 8. Сколько лет вы здесь работаете?
- 9. Завтра весь день я буду писать доклад.
- 10. К счастью дождь уже перестал, когда мы вышли.
- 11. Она показала нам картину, которую сама нарисовала.
- 12. Он написал сочинение к 9 часам вчера.
- 13. Он быстро поел и ушел.
- 14. Она искала очки целый час, когда поняла, что они у нее в кармане.
- 15. Вчера я купила новые перчатки, т.к. потеряла старые.
- 16. Было понятно, что они снова сплетничают.
- 17. Когда они наконец ушли, я пошел спать.
- 18. К концу семестра мы выучим все времена.
- 19. Завтра я буду гулять в парке с 7 до 8.
- 20. Боюсь, что завтра весь день будет идти дождь.
- 21. Я только что позавтракал.
- 22. Спектакль еще не начался и мы сидим в зале и обсуждаем свои проблемы.
- 23. Дождь прекратился полчаса назад.
- 24. Она закончила работу до того, как ушла.
- 25. Завтра я буду работать весь вечер.
- 26. Возможно они скоро придут.
- 27. Она будет делать уроки завтра в 7?
- 28. Он сидит здесь уже полчаса.
- 29. Когда я пришла, ребенок спал.
- 30. Кто изобрел телефон?
- 31. Два дня назад я купила новые туфли.
- 32. Он звонит тебе третий раз за вечер.

- 33. Когда он пришел вчера домой?
- 34. Я смотрела телевизор, когда зазвонил телефон.
- 35. Дождь идет с утра.
- 36. Как долго вы читаете эту книгу?
- 37. Куда я положила мои очки? Нигде не могу их найти.
- 38. Мы давно не виделись. Как дела?
- 39. Где Анна? Она работает в саду. Она работает уже 3 часа.
- 40. Тише! Отец работает.
- 41. Я ищу тебя весь вечер.
- 42. Когда мы пришли на вокзал, то поезд уже пришел.
- 43. Ты когда-нибудь был в Лондоне? Нет, но собираюсь туда следующим летом.
- 44. Наконец-то пришел ответ от моего брата.
- 45. Уже поздно. Неужели ты еще не закончил?
- 46. Наш поезд отправляется сегодня вечером в 10.45.
- 47. Когда я вышла из дома шел сильный дождь.
- 48. Мальчики все еще играют в футбол. Они играют уже 2 часа.
- 49. Он живет здесь с детства.
- 50. Что ты делаешь сегодня вечером?
- 51. Зима пришла. Сейчас декабрь. Часто идет снег.
- 52. Что ты делал вчера в 7 вечера?
- 53. Когда мама пришла домой, брат читал книгу, которую мама купила 2 дня тому назад.
- 54. Он только что просмотрел документы, а сейчас он их подписывает.
- 55. Я стоял на автобусной остановке, когда начался дождь.
- 56. Когда я позвонил, она сказала, что он уже ушел.
- 57. Все в порядке. Я нашел выход из этой сложной ситуации.
- 58. Он вдруг вспомнил, что забыл ей позвонить.
- 59. Он еще не вернулся. Перезвоните через 10 минут, пожалуйста.
- 60. Подожди меня. Я не взяла деньги.
- 61. В чем дело? Почему мы остановились?
- 62. Вы только что прослушали прогноз погоды.
- 63. Где Катя? Она подметает пол на кухне.
- 64. У меня занимает 20 минут, чтобы добраться до работы.

- 65. Добро пожаловать в нашу страну!
- 66. Он всю жизнь живет в Москве.
- 67. Я собираюсь в отпуск на следующей неделе.
- 68. Я научилась водить машину за 4 недели.
- 69. Он встретил меня по дороге домой.
- 70. Никто не живет в этом доме.
- 71. У вас есть еще вопросы?
- 72. Доктор пришел. Он ждет тебя в соседней комнате.
- 73. Кто открыл Америку?
- 74. Кто стучит в дверь?
- 75. Мне не нравится книга, которую ты читаешь.
- 76. Он поговорил с ним вчера, не так ли?
- 77. Не входи в комнату. Ребенок спит.
- 78. Я вчера не выходила на улицу, потому что весь день шел дождь.
- 79. Где ты был вчера? Вчера в 7 я ждал тебя на вокзале.
- 80. Они, наверное, играют в теннис.
- 81. Дождь прекратился час тому назад.
- 82. Он читает уже 2 часа. Он прочитал уже 50 страниц.
- 83. Вы узнаете этого человека?
- 84. С кем вы разговаривали по телефону, когда я вошла? Я разговаривал с сестрой.
- 85. Я окончил университет, когда мне было 22.
- 86. Мы как раз говорили о нем, когда он вошел.
- 87. Он вдруг понял, что едет не в ту сторону.
- 88. Он остановился и сорвал цветок.
- 89. Он раньше был моим другом.
- 90. Раньше я регулярно ходила в театр.
- 91. Нас вчера не было дома.
- 92. Где мои книги? Они на полке.
- 93. Кто ваш отец? Он офицер.
- 94. Где мама? Она готовит ужин.
- 95. О чем они говорят.
- 96. Было очень холодно на прошлой неделе.
- 97. Она вспомнила его номер телефона.
- 98. Он сел за стол и попросил чашку чая.
- 99. Она только что пришла.

- 100. Я забыл как вас зовут.
- 101. Я никогда не слышал этой истории от моего отца.
- 102. Он был здесь в прошлом году.
- 103. Я жду тебя с 12 часов.
- 104. Где ты был все это время?
- 105. Мы не виделись целую вечность.
- 106. Он сидел здесь 40 минут, когда зазвонил телефон.
- 107. Он ушел в институт до того, как я пришел.
- 108. У меня не было времени сделать эту работу вчера.
- 109. Он звонил тебе вчера?
- 110. Она часто перебивала меня.
- 111. В 7 часов вчера господин Петров стоял у станции метро, ожидая своего друга.
- 112. Он вошел, когда я работал.
- 113. Кто сказал тебе навестить меня?
- 114. Вчера я шел в институт, когда увидел горящий дом.
- 115. Наши друзья что-то обсуждали, когда мы их прервали.
- 116. Он улыбнулся мне по-дружески, когда увидел меня.
- 117. С апреля я не покупал новых книг.
- 118. Вы уже закончили свою работу?
- 119. Она учит химию уже 3 года.
- 120. Каждый день мой муж пьет много кофе.
- 121. Моя жена еще не пришла. Она никогда не приходит домой до 5 часов.
- 122. Я не люблю бегать по утрам.
- 123. Я не могу сказать понравилась ли мне эта книга, так как я еще ее не читала.
- 124. Сегодня холодно. Погода поменялась со вчерашнего дня.
- 125. Вчера вечером он выглядел очень уставшим.
- 126. Дети бегают во дворе с утра.
- 127. Где мама? Она только что ушла. Она ушла 5 минут назад.
- 128. Когда ты видел этот фильм?
- 129. Он никогда не был в Испании.
- 130. Моя подруга очень любит конфеты. Она ест их каждый день. Когда я встретила ее вчера она опять ела конфеты.
- 131. Что ты делал вчера в 4 часа?

- 132. Кому ты только что написал письмо?
- 133. Что вы приготовили сегодня на обед?
- 134. Привет! Куда ты идешь? Я иду в кино. Пойдем со мной.
- 135. Сейчас 8 утра. Время идти на работу. Я выглянула в окно. Идет сильный дождь.
- 136. Они учат английский язык с детства.
- 137. Он сейчас бежит. Он бежит без остановок уже 10 мину.
- 138. Как долго вы меня ждете?
- 139. Студенты сдали экзамен к 3 часам сегодня.
- 140. Я рада, что ты наконец-то пришла.
- 141. В 12 часов мы уже работали 3 часа.
- 142. Я уже 5 раз говорила, что нужно выучить стихотворение.
- 143. Неужели ты не знал, что он не выучил стихотворение?
- 144. Они живут в этом доме уже 10 лет.
- 145. Где твоя сестра? Она на работе.
- 146. 29 марта мы будем сдавать экзамен по деловой переписке.
- 147. Наш урок начинается в двадцать минут девятого.
- 148. У меня много дел в среду.
- 149. Я никогда не была в Париже.
- 150. Он не писал нам с прошлого года.
- 151. За городом было чудесно.
- 152. Он придет через час.
- 153. Я встретил своего друга в аэропорту вчера.
- 154. Он вернулся на восходе солнца.
- 155. Она вбежала во двор.
- 156. Вчера он уехал в командировку.
- 157. Молодой ученый пытался доказать профессору необходимость проведения эксперимента.
- 158. Вы когда-нибудь говорили с ним по этому вопросу?
- 159. Я читаю эту книгу уже неделю.
- 160. Катя вышла из дома, села в автобус и поехала к подруге.
- 161. Они всегда приходят вовремя.
- 162. Зимой рано темнеет?
- 163. Я каждый день хожу на работу.
- 164. Вы обычно долго спите?
- 165. В котором часу вы обычно встаете?
- 166. Ему никогда не бывает скучно.

- 167. Он всегда занят по вечерам.
- 168. Она умная.
- 169. Вы голодны?
- 170. Вы мной довольны? Нет, вы слишком самоуверенны.
- 171. У вас есть время для занятий?
- 172. Ваше предложение звучит заманчиво.
- 173. Он работает здесь с прошлого года.
- 174. Она опоздала вчера.
- 175. Раньше я не боялся собак.
- 176. Он смотрел телевизор, когда родители ругались.
- 177. Ты редко пишешь родителям. Раньше ты писал чаще.
- 178. Ты такой грязный. Что ты делал?
- 179. Почему он такой раздраженный? Что ты ему сказал?
- 180. Сегодня вечером, возможно, я приду поздно.
- 181. Я завтра не работаю. Мы можем куда-нибудь сходить.
- 182. В котором часу вы встречаетесь?
- 183. Я собираюсь купить эту машину.
- 184. Поезд прибывает через полчаса.
- 185. Мы пойдем гулять, когда закончится дождь.
- 186. Я напишу письмо, если у меня будет время.
- 187. Вы уже хорошенько подумали?
- 188. Я раньше часто думала о вас.
- 189. Неужели вы еще не обдумали мое предложение?
- 190. Как долго вы будете лететь прежде, чем доберетесь до места назначения?
- 191. Раньше он ездил на работу на машине, а сейчас добирается на метро.
- 192. Я буду завтра спать весь день напролет.
- 193. Я думал о вас, когда вы позвонили.
- 194. Завтра к 3 я прочту вашу книгу.
- 195. Мы поедем на море, если станет теплее.
- 196. Я приготовлю обед, до того как уйду.
- 197. Любой человек время от времени думает о своем будущем.
- 198. Ты почувствуешь себя лучше, если примешь лекарство.
- 199. Выключи свет, перед тем как уйдешь.
- 200. Мы промокнем, если выйдем на улицу.

- 201. Я писала это упражнение уже час, когда вы пришли ко мне.
- 202. Завтра в 10 мы будем писать контрольную.
- 203. Завтра к 2 часам мы напишем контрольную.
- 204. Как долго вы будете писать контрольную работу перед тем, как сдадите ее?
- 205. Вчера я пришел домой, поужинал, просмотрел газеты и лег спать.
- 206. Прошлой зимой снег шел редко.
- 207. Посмотри в окно. Идет дождь.
- 208. Когда я вышел из дома, шел снег.
- 209. Когда чаще идут дожди? Осенью или весной? Конечно, осенью.
- 210. Темно. Я думаю, что скоро будет дождь.
- 211. Когда я подошел к окну, дождь прекратился и ярко светило солнце.
- 212. Весна. Тепло. Идет дождь.
- 213. Как только выпадет снег, мы будем кататься на лыжах.
- 214. Вам удаются языки? По- моему, да. Ведь я довольно бегло говорю по-английски и по-французски. Я журналист по профессии и, вообще, общительный человек.
- 215. Каждый год студенты зимой и летом сдают экзамены. Они всегда готовятся к экзаменам. В это время вчера они готовились к экзамену. Они готовятся к экзаменам уже 2 недели. Завтра в 10 часов я буду сдавать экзамен по истории. Перед тем как мы сдали экзамен, мы много занимались. К концу месяца мы сдадим экзамены. Не входите в аудиторию, там студенты сдают экзамен. Если она не выучит правила, она не сдаст экзамен.
- 216. Где вы каждый день обедаете? Где вы сейчас обедаете? Почему вы обедаете уже 2 часа?
- 217. Что вы делаете по вечерам? Что вы сейчас делаете? Что вы делаете здесь уже целый час? Что вы делали вчера? Что вы делали вчера в это время?
- 218. Он никогда не читает. Он сейчас читает. Он читает с утра. Он читал вчера. Он читает с утра. Он читал вчера с 3 до 7. Он читал вчера уже 3 часа, когда ты пришел.

- 219. Она спит. Она спит всего лишь несколько минут. Пожалуйста, не буди ее. Она не спала прошлой ночью.
- 220. Что вы пишите? Как давно вы это пишите? А вчера вы это писали? Вы вчера писали в это же время?
- 221. Когда мы пришли в кинотеатр, фильм уже начался. Фильм начался до того, как мы пришли в кинотеатр. Мы пришли в кинотеатр, заняли места и фильм начался.
- 222. Ты такой грязный. Что ты делал? Я такой грязный, потому что крашу забор. Я довольный, но немного уставший. Довольный, потому что покрасил забор, а уставший, потому что красил его 3 часа.
- 223. Здравствуй, Петя! Ты уже вернулся из командировки? Когда ты вернулся? Ты уже написал отчет? Сколько времени ты писал отчет? Ты вчера писал отчет в это время?
- 224. Я очень часто хожу в кино и даже на этой неделе я посмотрела 2 фильма. Вчера когда я пришла в кино, мои друзья ждали меня там уже 15 минут.
- 225. Что вы переводите? Я перевожу статью из журнала. Сколько времени вы ее переводите? Я перевожу ее уже 2 дня. Эта статья довольно трудная. Обычно я перевожу 3 статьи в неделю.
- 226. Прости, что беспокою тебя. Я только звоню, чтобы спросить, что ты делаешь сегодня вечером. Ничего особенного. Как насчет того, чтобы пойти в кино? К сожалению, я не могу. Я чувствую себя не очень хорошо.
- 227. Вчера по пути домой я встретила свою подругу Катю, с которой мы не виделись более 2 лет. Она сказала, что 2 года назад она окончила институт и теперь работает врачом. Мы разговаривали недолго, так как Катя торопилась и боялась опоздать на поезд. Она уезжала к своей сестре, которая живет недалеко от Москвы. Катя обещала вернуться через несколько дней. В среду она будет в Москве. Мы договорились встретиться в выходные, побродить по городу и поболтать.
- 228. Она раньше любила читать детективы.
- 229. Раньше в городе было 5 кинотеатров, а сейчас один.
- 230. Ты раньше часто играл в футбол?

- 231. Когда я была ребенком, у меня были длинные волосы.
- 232. Это здание раньше было кинотеатром.
- 233. Раньше на кухне был диван.
- 234. Он раньше был моим другом.
- 235. Они раньше часто ходили в театр.
- 236. Раньше она регулярно читала газеты, а сейчас нет.
- 237. Мы раньше много путешествовали.
- 238. Он раньше регулярно смотрел телевизор, а сейчас зависает в интернете.

TESTS

- 1. I have read ... books by Dickens and I am interested in the life of the writer.
- a) much b) many c) little
- 2. We wish our exams ... over.
- a) were b) are c) b
- 3. What ... you ... with my dictionary?
- a) have been doing b) are doing c) have done
- 4. Are you going to the seaside alone? I wish my friends
- a) would come b) come c) came
- 5. He smiled ... the joke.
- a) remembered b) to remember c) remembering
- 6. His parents happened
- a) to have come b) had come c) came
- 7. We ... TV and see movies.
- a) listen b) watch c) look
- 8. We ... many interesting things by the professor.
- a) were told b) told c) tell
- 9. He said: "Come here tomorrow".
- a) He said to come there the next day.
- b) He asked to come there the next day.
- c) He said to come there tomorrow.
- 10. "If I were you, I'd stop smoking," Jeff said.
- a) Jeff said that if he were him he would have stopped smoking.
- b) Jeff said that if he had been him he would have stop smoking.
- c) Jeff advised him to stop smoking.

- 11. I wonder why Laura is late. She promised she ... late.
- a) wouldn't be b) will be c) won't be
- 12. The young poet ... much about.
- a) spoke b) is spoken c) speaks
- 13. ... it all right, if I ... your phone?
- a) is, use b) was, used c) are, use
- 14. Nicky ... of giving up her job.
- a) think b) is thinking c) thought
- 15. Are you hungry? No, I ... just lunch.
- a) ate b) had had c) have had
- 16. I saw him
- a) approach b) approached c) to approach
- 17. Are they ... the cities?
- a) into b) in c) on
- 18. Both men disliked
- a) Each other b) themselves c) they
- 19. I am good ... football.
- a) with b) to c) at
- 20. That is a very easy question. ... can answer it.
- a) someone b) anybody c) everybody
- 21. I go to school ... foot, but yesterday I went to school ... bus.
- a) by, by b) on, by c) on, on
- 22. I can't bear Jack. He ... lies.
- a) always tells b) is always telling c) has always
- 23. My Dad hasn't read the newspaper yet, ...?
- a) hasn't he? b) has he c) did he
- 24. The sidewalks were crowded with people $\ \dots \$ the carnival.
- a) to watch b) watched c) watching
- 25. She watched him ... away.
- a) to go b) went c) go

- 26. ... party was super.
- a) Mark b) Marks c) Mark's
- 27. Composition ... by the students tomorrow.
- a) is being written b) will be being written c) shall be written
- 28. Clare said: "What time do banks close?"
- a) Clare said what time the banks closed.
- b) Clare wanted to know what time the banks closed.
- c) Clare wanted what time did the banks close.
- 29. He ... dancing.
- a) doesn't like b) don't like c) doesn't likes
- 30. I expect you ... us.
- a) to join b) join c) joined
- 31. The teacher may be ... questions after the lecture.
- a) asked b) ask c) asks
- 32. it ... since lunch time.
- a) has rained b) is raining c) has been raining
- 33. Jim is on holiday. He ... to Italy.
- a) is going b) has gone c) went
- 34. Who made you ...?
- a) cry b) to cry c) cried
- 35. They are very
- a) interest b) interested c) interesting
- 36. They rarely greeted
- a) them b) each other c) themselves
- 37. What did you ... there?
- a) do b) run c) seeing
- 38. Mike hoped that his friend ... him with his car.
- a) would help b) will help c) helped
- 39. Did it get cold ... night?
- a) at b) in c) on

- 40. How much of that book ... ?
- a) did you read b) read c) have you read
- 41. I can't find my key. I ... it.
- a) have lost b) lost c) had lost
- 42. If you ... in my position, what ... you do?
- a) were, would b) were, will c) are, do
- 43. When did ... learn German?
- a) your b) yours c) you
- 44. The plays in the Globe theatre ... in the open air.
- a) were being acted b) has acted c) acted
- 45. We didn't know the score, but we were sure their team ... the game.
- a) has lost b) had lost c) lost
- 46. The car is OK again now. I ... it.
- a) have repaired b) repaired c) repair
- 47. I don't know where Liza is. ... her?
- a) have you seen b) did you see c) saw
- 48. I wish Peter ... here.
- a) were b) is c) would be
- 49. ... speak many languages?
- a) Do you b) Did you c) You do
- 50. The first foreign tour ... by the Bolshoi Ballet in 1956 in London in the Covent Garden.
- a) made b) was made c) is making

- 1. I didn't have ... money with me last night, so I had to borrow
- a) nothing, some b) any, some c) no, some
- 2. Is there anything in that new magazine worth ...?
- a) to read b) reading c) is reading
- 3. The sun rises in the East. It's behind us, so we ... west.
- a) travel b) travels c) are travelling
- 4. Are you going to the seaside alone? I wish my friends
- a) would come b) come c) came
- 5. The teacher made me ... the exercise again.
- a) to do b) do c) doing
- 6. We tried ... the fire out but we were unsuccessful.
- a) putting b) to put c) put
- 7. You ... to be at work by 9 o'clock.
- a) must b) should c) are
- 8. Hyde Park \dots to the public in the 17th century.
- a) was opened b) is opened c) opens
- 9. Do you remember ... people we met in London last year?
- a) these b) those c) that
- 10. I didn't like ... stories he told.
- a) those b) this c) these
- 11. "Could you show me these jeans, please?" said the boy.
- a) The boy said to show him those jeans.
- b) The boy asked to show him those jeans.
- c) The boy asked if the salesgirl could show him these jeans.
- 12. She thinks he's ... man in the world.
- a) a smart b) a smarter c) the smartest
- 13. If your clothes ... dirty, please put them in the laundry basket.
- a) is b) are c) be

- 14. ... I speak to Jane, please?
- a) could b) must c) ought
- 15. Hurry up! We ... good seats if we ... late.
- a) don't get, arrive b) won't get, arrive c) didn't get, arrive
- 16. I saw a light in your window as I ... by.
- a) passed b) has passed c) was passing
- 17. He said: "Where is Jill going?"
- a) He asked where was Jill going.
- b) He asked where Jill was going.
- c) He asked where Jill went.
- 18. Netball is ... basketball.
- a) same b) similar to c) not the same
- 19. She likes it when Mike ... French.
- a) speaks b) speak c) spoke
- 20. Have you got ... holiday photographs?
- a) some b) a few c) any
- 21. The day before yesterday we $\, \dots \,$ to the restaurant by Pete.
- a) are invited b) were invited c) invited
- 22. Jane can't answer the call, she ... a bath.
- a) is having b) had c) has
- 23. My Dad hasn't read the newspaper yet, ...?
- a) has he b) hasn't he c) did he
- 24. I have never heard
- a) her to sing b) her sing c) she is singing
- 25. The jacket is rather dirty. It needs
- a) be cleaned b) to clean c) cleaning
- 26. No reporters ... approach the scene of the accident.
- a) might have b) were allowed c) needn't
- 27. The University of London whose main buildings are behind the British Museum ... in 1836.
- a) was founded b) founded c) was being founded

- 28. The teacher said to us: "Be quiet, please".
- a) The teacher asked us be quiet.
- b) The teacher told us to be quiet.
- c) The teacher said us to be quiet.
- 29. A ... wind is blowing.
- a) stronger b) strong c) strongest
- 30. We have many ... in our area.
- a) postmen b) postmens c) postmans
- 31. There wasn't much traffic in the street. I saw a little girl ... the road.
- a) crossed b) cross c) to cross
- 32. Will you be here next weekend?
- a) No, I won't. b) No, I don't. c) No, I am not.
- 33. You ... this composition for two hours.
- a) have been writing b) have written c) write
- 34. Two years ... he bought a car.
- a) for b) since c) ago
- 35. Sally said: "I would like to buy it".
- a) Sally said that she would like to buy it.
- b) Sally said she would have liked to buy it.
- c) Sally said that she liked to buy it.
- 36. You are the ... friend I have ever had.
- a) Badest b) worse c) worst
- 37. Do you have ... English dictionary?
- a) a b) an c) one
- 38. ... English every day in class?
- a) Does he speak b) Is she speaking c) Does he speak
- 39. If I ... you, I ... that coat.
- a) were, didn't buy b) was, wouldn't buy c) were, wouldn't buy
- 40. If I ... rich, I ... a yacht.
- a) Were, would have b) was, would buy c) would be, would have

- 41. ... English people I know drink a lot of tea.
- a) b) the c) an
- 42. I like ... people I work with.
- a) the b) c) a
- 43. ... is the study of the past.
- a) The history b) History c) The story
- 44. Some of the people ... to the party can't come.
- a) invited b) inviting c) invite
- 45. There were some children ... in the river.
- a) swam b) swim c) swimming
- 46. Sam drove ... along the narrow road.
- a) careful b) careless c) carefully
- 47. Our holiday was too short. Time passed very
- a) quicker b) quick c) quickly
- 48. I haven't seen her for
- a) such long time b) such a long time c) a such long time
- 49. I'm sorry I'm late. I got here ... I could.
- a) as fast as b) not so fast as c) so fast as
- 50. Mrs. Smith said: "Don't wear your best trousers in the garden".
- a) Mrs. Smith told Mr. Smith not to wear best trousers in the garden.
- b) Mrs. Smith told Mr. Smith not to have worn his best trousers in the garden.
- c) Mrs. Smith said Mr. Smith didn't wear his best trousers in the garden.

- 1. I have read ... books by Dickens and I am interested in the life of the writer.
- a) no b) some c) any
- 2. We wish our exams ... over.
- a) were b) are c) be
- 3. What ... you ... with my book? It's dirty.
- a) have been doing b) are doing c) have done
- 4. Are you going to the seaside alone? I wish my friends
- a) would come b) come c) came
- 5. He smiled ... the film.
- a) remembered b) to remember c) remembering
- 6. His relatives happened
- a) had come b) to have come c) came
- 7. We ... many interesting things by the professor.
- a) were told b) told c) tell
- 8. It ... last week.
- a) no rain b) didn't rain c) rains
- 9. He said: "Come here tomorrow".
- a) He said to come there the next day.
- b) He said to come here tomorrow.
- c) He asked to come there the next day.
- 10. "If I were, I'd stop smoking", Jeff said.
- a) Jeff said that if he were him he would have stopped smoking.
- b) Jeff said that if he had been him he would have stop smoking.
- c) Jeff advised him to stop smoking.
- 11. I wonder why Laura is late. She promised she ... late.
- a) wouldn't be b) will be c) won't be
- 12. The young artist ... much about.
- a) speaks b) spoke c) is spoken

- 13. ... it all right if I ... your phone?
- a) is, use b) was, used c) are, use
- 14. Pete ... of giving up his job.
- a) thought b) think c) is thinking
- 15. Are you hungry? No, I ... just breakfast.
- a) had had b) ate c) have had
- 16. I saw him
- a) approach b) to approach c) approached
- 17. Are they ... school?
- a) on b) at c) in
- 18. It took me a long time to find a job. ... the end I got a job in a hotel.
- a) at b) in c) on
- 19. ... the end of the concert, there was a great applause.
- a) with b) in c) at
- 20. That is a very easy question. ... can answer it.
- a) someone b) anybody c) everybody
- 21. I go to school $\,\dots$ foot $\,$, but yesterday I went $\,\dots$ bus.
- a) on, by b) by, by c) on, on
- 22. You ... television. You should do something more active.
- a) are always watching b) always watch c) is always watch
- 23. Was Tom there when you arrived? No, already ...
- a) had left b) has left c) left
- 24. The girl ... on the blackboard is our best pupil.
- a) written b) writing c) writes
- 25. She watched him ... away.
- a) to go b) went c) go
- 26. ... party was great.
- a) Susan b) Susans c) Susan's
- 27. Test ... by the students tomorrow.
- a) will be being written b) will write c) is being written

- 28. "Where have you put my book?" said Fred.
- a) Fred said where did you put my book.
- b) Fred asked where I had put his book.
- c) Fred asked where he had put his book.
- 29. He ... swimming.
- a) don't like b) doesn't like c) doesn't likes
- 30. I expect you ... us.
- a) join b) to join c) joined
- 31. The teacher may ... a lot of questions after the lesson.
- a) asked b) be asked c) ask
- 32. It ... since morning.
- a) has snowed b) is snowing c) has been snowing
- 33. Who made you ... ?
- a) laugh b) to laugh c) laughing
- 34. I ... to lots of places.
- a) have been b) was c) had gone
- 35. The books are very
- a) Bored b) boring c) bore
- 36. They rarely greeted
- a) them b) each other c) themselves
- 37. What did you ... there?
- a) do b) seeing c) run
- 38. Did it get cold ... night?
- a) In b) at c) on
- 39. Dad hoped that his son ... him with his car.
- a) will help b) helped c) would help
- 40. How much of that book ... ?
- a) did you read b) read c) have you read
- 41. Don't forget to send the letter. I ... it.
- a) have already send b) have already sent c) sent

- 42. If you ... in my position, what ... you do?
- a) were, would b) were, will c) are, do
- 43. Where ... learn German?
- a) did you b) do you c) are you
- 44. The letter ... at 5 o'clock yesterday.
- a) was written b) was being written c) will be written
- 45. He told me his name, but I ... it now.
- a) had forget b) have forgotten c) forgot
- 46. Our car ... now.
- a) is being repaired b) is repaired c) will repair
- 47. I don't know where Lisa is. ... her?
- a) Have you seen b) Did you see c) Saw
- 48. I wish Ann ... here.
- a) is b) were c) would be
- 49. ... speak many languages?
- a) Do you b) Did you c) You do
- 50. Linda's colleagues gave her a present when she retired. Linda $\, \dots \,$ a present.
- a) was given b) gave c) will be given

- 1. I didn't have ... money with me last night, so I had to borrow
- a) nothing, some b) any, some c) no, some
- 2. Is there anything worth ... ?
- a) to watch b) watching c) is watching
- 3. The population of the world ... very fast.
- a) is increasing b) increase c) increases
- 4. Are you going to the cinema alone? I wish my friends
- a) would come b) came c) come
- 5. The teacher made me ... the exercise again.
- a) to do b) doing c) do
- 6. We tried ... the fire out but we were unsuccessful.
- a) putting b) to put c) put
- 7. You ... to be at work by 9 o'clock.
- a) must b) should c) are
- 8. Hyde Park ... to the public in the 17th century.
- a) was opened b) is opened c) opens
- 9. Do you remember ... pictures we saw in London last year?
- a) these b) those c) that
- 10. I repaired them
- a) themselves b) myself c) ourselves
- 11. "Could you show me these jeans?" said the boy.
- a) The boy said to show him those jeans.
- b) The boy asked to show him those jeans.
- c) The boy asked if the salesgirl could show him these jeans.
- 12. She thinks he's ... man in the world.
- a) a smart b) a smarter c) the smartest
- 13. If your clothes ... dirty, please put ... in the laundry basket.
- a) is, it b) be, it c) are, them

- 14. ... I speak to Jane, please?
- a) Could b) Must c) Ought
- 15. If I ... his advice, I ... ask for it.
- a) want, ask b) wanted, would ask c) would want, asked
- 16. I saw a light in your window as I ... by.
- a) Passed b) has passed c) was passing
- 17. He said: "Why we don't we go out for a meal tonight?"
- a) He asked why didn't we go out for a meal tonight.
- b) He asked why they didn't go out for a meal that night.
- c) He asked why they hadn't gone out for a meal that night.
- 18. I saw him
- a) to read b) readed c) read
- 19. It ... since morning.
- a) rains b) is raining c) has been raining
- 20. Have you got ... wedding photographs? Sue hasn't seen them yet.
- a) some b) a few c) any
- 21. The day before yesterday we ... to the theatre by Ann.
- a) are invited b) invited c) were invited
- 22. Jane can't answer the call, she ... a bath.
- a) was having b) had c) has
- 23. You live near here, ...?
- a) did you b) do you c) don't you
- 24. I've never heard
- a) her to sing b) her sing c) she is singing
- 25. The jacket is rather dirty. It needs $\, \dots \,$.
- a) be cleaned b) to clean c) cleaning
- 26. No reporters ... approach the scene of the accident.
- a) might have b) were allowed to c) needn't
- 27. A lot of money ... in the robbery.
- a) was stolen b) were stolen c) stole

- 28. "Don't shout," I said to Jim.
- a) I said to Jim don't shout.
- b) I asked Jim not to shout.
- c) I asked Jim to shout.
- 29. She is ... player than me.
- a) a better b) better c) the best
- 30. Almost every person has 32
- a) Tooth b) teeth c) tothes
- 31. Do you know the girl ... in the garden?
- a) playing b) played c) play
- 32. Will you be here next weekend?
- a) No, I don't b) No, I am not c) No, I won't
- 33. You ... this essay for two hours and haven't finished yet.
- a) have been writing b) have written c) are writing
- 34. Two years ... he bought a house.
- a) For b) since c) ago
- 35. The doctor said to me: "Stay in bed for two days".
- a) The doctor said to me to stay in bed for two days.
- b) The doctor told me to stay in bed for two days.
- c) The doctor said to me if could stay in bed for two days.
- 36. This is the ... film I've seen.
- a) best b) better c) good
- 37. Who made you ... the coat on. It's too warm.
- a) to put b) put c) putting
- 38. ... English every day in class?
- a) Does he speak b) is he speaking c) Does speak he
- 39. If I ... you, I ... do such a thing.
- a) was, will b) were, would c) am, will
- 40. I wish I ... Spanish.
- a) would know b) will know c) knew

- 41. I like Martin and Jane. They are very nice
- a) people b) persons c) person
- 42. ... scissors ... very sharp.
- a) these, aren't b) this, isn't c) this, aren't
- 43. ... Kremlin is in Moscow.
- a) The b) A c) —
- 44. Some of the people ... to the party can't come.
- a) Invited b) inviting c) invite
- 45. There were some children ... in the river.
- a) swim b) swam c) swimming
- 46. Sam drove ... along the narrow road.
- a) Careful b) careless c) carefully
- 47. Our holiday was too short. Time passed very
- a) quicker b) quick c) quickly
- 48. I haven't seen her for ...
- a) such long time b) such a long time c) a such long time
- 49. Footballers don't wear trousers. They wear
- a) shorts b) short c) shorter
- 50. The police ... to interview two men about the robbery last week.
- a) wants b) want c) is wanting

- 1. Can I take another biscuit? Of course. Help
- a) yourself b) myself c) yourselves
- 2. What's wrong? There is ... in my eye.
- a) nothing b) something c) anything
- 3. My parents decided that we ... my birthday on Saturday.
- a) would celebrate b) will celebrate c) often celebrate
- 4. There are a lot children in your class, ...?
- a) are they b) aren't there c) are there
- 5. My car is being repaired now. It will be ready ... three hours.
- a) In b) at from
- 6. There are usually a lot parties ... New Year's Eve.
- a) on b) at c) in
- 7. The/ novel/ much/ I/ very/ liked.
- a) I very much liked the novel.
- b) I liked very much the novel.
- c) I liked the novel very much.
- 8. I know him ... a great scientist.
- a) to be b) be c) is
- 9. The boy seemed
- a) is sleeping b) to be sleeping c) sleeping
- 10. Jill ... by everybody.
- a) is liked b) likes c) liked
- 11. Medals ... in copper, silver and gold.
- a) Issue b) issued c) have been issued
- 12. "If I were you, I'd stop smoking," Jeff said.
- a) Jeff said that if he had been him he would have stop smoking.
- b) Jeff said if he were him he would have stopped smoking.
- c) Jeff advised him to stop smoking.

- 13. We went to the party without
- a) being invited b) inviting c) invited
- 14. "Don't swim too far, dear," asked Dad.
- a) Dad asked her/him not to swim too far.
- b) Dad asked him/her don't swim too far.
- c) Dad asked him/her if he/she wouldn't swim too far.
- 15. The ... the goods are, the ... price is.
- a) worst, lowest b) worse, lower c) worst, lower
- 16. People choose planes because they travel ... than trains.
- a) more fast b) faster c) the fastest
- 17. Are your friends ... there?
- a) yet b) still c) almost
- 18. Who is that boy ... the book?
- a) read b) to read c) reading
- 19. Books ... in the childhood seem like old friends.
- a) to read b) reading c) read
- 20. I wish I ... Paul's number.
- a) knew b) know c) would know
- 21. If you ... live so far away, we ... see you more often.
- a) will, don't b) didn't, would c) hadn't, would
- 22. Could you tell me where ... ?
- a) tourist is the office b) is the tourist office c) the tourist office is
- 23. I would ... read than watch.
- a) rather b) better c) like
- 24. When I came late in the evening my parents
- a) had already had dinner b) have already had dinner c) had already dinner
- 25. Alex was sure that he ... exams successfully.
- a) will pass b) would pass c) passes
- 26. You ... your answers in ink.
- a) can to write b) to write c) must write

- 27. I ... work every day from 9:00 to 5:30.
- a) must b) have to c) can
- 28. ... mind if I use your pen?
- a) do b) can c) must
- 29. I have a big TV set. It's
- a) my b) your c) mine
- 30. ... you like something to eat?
- a) will b) would c) could
- 31. She ... at the bus stop when a young man took her bag and ran away.
- a) is waiting b) has been waiting c) was waiting
- 32. I ... an essay by 6 o'clock yesterday.
- a) have written b) had written c) wrote
- 33. The ... you pay, the ... services you get.
- a) more, less b) less, more c) less, fewer
- 34. The exam was ... than we expected.
- a) much easy b) a lot easier c) more easier
- 35. ... books are impossible to translate perfectly.
- a) some b) no c) any
- 36. I think the left picture isn't ... beautiful ... the right one.
- a) so, so b) more, then c) as, as
- 37. She was going to invite a lot of guests for the party, so she had to buy three ... glasses.
- a) dozen b) dozens c) dozen of
- 38. She made her daughter ... the room.
- a) clean b) to clean c) cleaning
- 39. They ... translate this article yesterday.
- a) must b) will c) had to
- 40. When mother ... home, I
- a) came, was reading b) come, is reading c) will come, is reading

- 41. The book ... much to be desired.
- a) leaved b) is left c) leaves
- 42. Stop! You ... me hungry.
- a) make b) made c) are making
- 43. ... Volga flows into ... Caspian Sea.
- a) the, the b) the, c) —,-
- 44. The Browns bought their house 2 years ago. It cost them forty ... dollars.
- a) hundred b) hundreds c) hundred of
- 45. Don't make me ... the truth.
- a) tell b) to tell c) telling
- 46. Ring her up, she ... be at home.
- a) had to b) must c) is
- 47. We ... chess the whole evening.
- a) played b) playing c) were playing
- 48. The boy had many toys ... with.
- a) to play b) play c) played
- 49. What ... it? Tell me.
- a) was b) is c) could
- 50. The things he said ... disgusting.
- a) very b) was c) were

- 1. Will there be ... shows at the club next month?
- a) any b) no c) some
- 2. You have eaten too much and now you feel sick. I wish I ... so much.
- a) hadn't eaten b) wouldn't eat c) wouldn't have eaten
- 3. John was out of breath because he ... fast.
- a) had run b) had been running c) was running
- 4. First I ... the phone, and then I read your letter.
- a) answered b) had answered c) was answering
- 5. She saw him ... in the garden.
- a) read b) to read c) reading
- 6. He is supposed ... a very good film actor.
- a) be b) had been c) to be
- 7. These games ... by children.
- a) enjoy b) enjoyed c) are enjoyed
- 8. Paul said: "I am feeling ill".
- a) Paul said that he was feeling ill.
- b) Paul said that he felt ill.
- c) Paul said that he is feeling ill.
- 9. Your mom is a good
- a) cooker b) cook c) cookie
- 10. I wish I ... to work tomorrow, but unfortunately I do.
- a) didn't have b) don't have c) wouldn't have
- 11. What ... pity, they haven't come.
- a) a b) the c) —
- 12. The pupil wasn't able to translate because he ... some special terms.
- a) had known b) didn't know c) doesn't know

- 13. ... Heathrow airport is the biggest in the UK.
- a) a b) the c) —
- 14. When we arrived at the cinema ... a long queue outside.
- a) it was b) there was c) there is
- 15. I like modern dance ... than I like ballet.
- a) some b) more c) greater
- 16. The child must have two ... pulled out.
- a) tooth b) tooths c) teeth
- 17. Mary's answer is ... than yours.
- a) the most correct b) more correct c) the more correct
- 18. Many towns ... by the earthquake in Japan last year.
- a) were destroyed b) destroyed c) were being destroyed
- 19. She said: "I am going to learn to drive".
- a) She said that she is going to learn to drive.
- b) She said that she will be going to learn to drive.
- c) She said that she was going to learn to drive.
- 20. Here are ... books you like. Take ... book you like.
- a) any, any b) some, any c) no, some
- 21. child ...
- a) childs b) children c) childrens
- 22. Mike, glad to see you. Where ... ?
- a) were you b) are you c) have you been
- 23. Sam was upset because Judy
- a) hasn't come b) hadn't come c) came
- 24. She heard people ... in the corridor.
- a) to walk b) walking c) walked
- 25. He was said ... 6 languages.
- a) knew b) know c) to know
- 26. Oil ... by Russia to many countries.
- a) exports b) exported c) is exported

- 27. Jenny said: "I can't come to the party on Friday".
- a) Jenny said she couldn't come to the party on Friday.
- b) Jenny said she shouldn't come to the party on Friday.
- c) Jenny said that she isn't able to come to the party on Friday.
- 28. Can I ... a pen from you?
- a) lend b) give c) borrow
- 29. ... Volga flows into ... Caspian Sea.
- a) the, b) the, the c) —,-
- 30. Ann hasn't been informed that the lecture ... on Friday.
- a) hasn't taken place b) wouldn't take place c) won't take place
- 31. ... no place like home.
- a) It is b) that is c) There is
- 32. I'm sorry. I broke your TV.
- a) Don't worry about it. B) It's all the same. C) You are welcome.
- 33. He showed me a lot of ... of his country house.
- a) photos b) photo c) photos
- 34. The boy is as \dots as his father.
- a) the tallest b) taller c) tall
- 35. I am sure the work \dots by the time you return.
- a) complete b) will complete c) will have been completed
- 36. I'll have dinner ... by 7 o'clock.
- a) preparing b) prepared c) prepare
- 37. ... home, I met my friend.
- a) went b) gone c) going
- 38. He said: "My sister has had a baby".
- a) He said that his sister had had a baby.
- b) He said that his sister has a baby.
- c) He said that his sister has had a baby.
- 39. They ... to go to the cinema.
- a) were allowed b) can c) allowed

- 40. I don't want ... to drink. I'm not thirsty.
- a) nothing b) anything c) something
- 41. She speaks English
- a) perfect b) no perfect c) perfectly
- 42. It was warm, so I took ... my jacket.
- a) off b) on c) out
- 43. I've lost my keys. Can you help me to ... them.
- a) look after b) look for c) look into
- 44. Your writing is terrible. I can ... read it.
- a) hardly b) hard c) very hard
- 45. Everybody
- a) arrives b) have arrived c) has arrived
- 46. You ... acquainted with him for a long time.
- a) must b) must be c) have to
- 47. The meeting was very ... organized.
- a) badly b) bad c) the worst
- 48. We ran ... of petrol on the motorway.
- a) off b) out c) away
- 49. He isn't ... the theatre.
- a) interested on b) interested in c) interesting
- 50. I saw him ... along the street.
- a) to go b) went c) going

- 1. ... needs little luck.
- a) everybody b) somebody c) anybody
- 2. I ... over the phone when they brought me the letter.
- a) was speaking b) spoke c) speaks
- 3. How long ... for him?
- a) you have been waiting b) have been waiting c) have you been waiting
- 4. He was the first
- a) come b) to come c) came
- 5. ... a good film is a pleasure.
- a) Seeing b) Saw c) See
- 6. She was fond of
- a) read b) to read c) reading
- 7. I read ... book.
- a) the whole b) all c) —
- 8. He is sure
- a) came b) to come c) come
- 9. If he were in the country, he ... to the wood.
- a) would go b) will go c) go
- 10. The lecture ... at 9:00.
- a) is to began b) is to begin c) to be
- 11. I ... today yet.
- a) don't eat b) haven't eaten c) didn't eat
- 12. "Hamlet" ... by Shakespeare.
- a) wrote b) writes c) has been written
- 13. The book isn't Is it ... ?
- a) her, yours b) mine, hers c) your, hers
- 14. "If I had any instructions, I would know what to do," said Mag.
- a) Mag said that if she had had any instructions, she would have

known what to do.

- b) Mag said that if she had any instructions, she would know what to do.
- c) Mag said that if she has any instructions, she will know what to do.
- 15. Fred goes to church ... Christmas and Easter.
- a) by b) in c) at
- 16. We wouldn't have money if we ... work.
- a) didn't b) wouldn't c) don't
- 17. The actor ... much about.
- a) spoke b) is spoken c) speaks
- 18. I don't mind ... the window.
- a) open b) is opening c) opening
- 19. Drive ...!
- a) Carefully b) careful c) careless
- 20. I have got a lot of books but I haven't read ... of them.
- a) some b) any c) none
- 21. My sister ... the result of her exam on economy in 3 days.
- a) will know b) will have known c) will be knowing
- 22. Will you be here next weekend?
- a) No, I won't. b) No, I don't. c) No, I am not.
- 23. I'm glad to ... the news.
- a) have told b) told c) to have been told
- 24. It goes without
- a) saying b) to say c) said
- 25. I want the work
- a) do b) is doing c) to be done
- 26. He is said ... all about it.
- a) to know b) know c) knew
- 27. If he is free tomorrow, he ... to our party.
- a) goes b) will go c) would go

- 28. I ... to go there.
- a) don't have b) haven't had c) hasn't had
- 29. She ... her homework since morning.
- a) is doing b) have been doing c) has been doing
- 30. Take ... feet off the table. ... legs aren't strong.
- a) your, its b) our, her c) your, his
- 31. You look ... 18 years old.
- a) more b) above c) over
- 32. Jenny said: "I'll phone you when I get back".
- a) Jenny said that she would phone me when she got back.
- b) Jenny said to me that she will phone me when she gets back.
- c) Jenny said to me that she would have phoned me when she got back.
- 33. I knew that Mercury ... the closest planet to the sun, but I didn't feel like answering tis question.
- a) was b) is c) had been
- 34. We ... have attend Many Halloween parties.
- a) have attend b) have attended c) has attended
- 35. I'd go out if it ... so cold.
- a) weren't b) was c) be
- 36. The flowers ... in the evening.
- a) water b) are watered c) watered
- 37. She insisted on ... to go home.
- a) being allowed b) be allowed c) allowed
- 38. You ... not do it.
- a) must to b) have to c) need
- 39. It ... be cold outside.
- a) must b) have to c) need
- 40. You should switch ... TV and go for a walk.
- a) over b) on c) off

- 41. Do you write to many ... ?
- a) people b) person c) peoples
- 42. If it ..., we ... to the country.
- a) Will rain, will go b) rains, will go c) is raining, will go
- 43. a) We both learnt to live with each other very well.
- b) With each other we both very well learnt.
- c) To live with each other very well we learnt.
- 44. The woman ... lives next door is a doctor.
- a) which b) what c) who
- 45. You will go to dance with me, ...?
- a) please b) won't you c) can you not
- 46. Where is the cheese ... was in the fridge?
- a) which b) who c) whose
- 47. Our ... is more important than my marriage.
- a) friends b) friendship c) friendships
- 48. a) They met they were friends from the first day.
- b) From the first they day met they were friends.
- c) They were friends from the first day they met.
- 49. I ... what to give my brother for his birthday.
- a) don't know b) am not knowing c) not know
- 50. I have two ... pen-friends.
- a) Canada b) Canadian c) from Canada

- 1. Would you like ... ice-cream?
- a) an b) a c) the
- 2. It was very nice ... your uncle to give you ... money.
- a) of, much b) from, many c) for, a lot
- 3. My head ... always full of ideas.
- a) has b) does c) is
- 4. ... I have a long summer vacation.
- a) Luck b) Luckily c) Lucky
- 5. He has a flat-mate. ... name is Mr. Baker.
- a) his b) her c) your
- 6. ... so much housework to do!
- a) Is b) There are There is
- 7. a) The school is near the bus station?
- b) Is the school near the bus station?
- c) The school is near the bus station?
- 8. I see, but that isn't
- a) law b) legal c) on law
- 9. Wow, was it really ... ?
- a) cold b) to cold c) most cold
- 10. ... obvious.
- a) That's b) He's c) You're
- 11. The daughter of my father is the ... of his parents.
- a) step-daughter b) niece c) granddaughter
- 12. If you were my friend you would ... me your new coat.
- a) borrow b) lend c) give to
- 13. When I first came to London I wasn't used ... the left.
- a) to drive b) driving c) drive
- 14. The teacher made me ... the rule again.
- a) to repeat b) repeat c) must repeat

- 15. We tried ... the fire out but we were unsuccessful.
- a) putting b) to put c) put
- 16. Was your suitcase very heavy? Yes, but I ... carry it by myself.
- a) was able to b) can't c) ought
- 17. He is sure
- a) to come b) coming c) came
- 18. Will you be angry if we
- a) didn't come b) won't come c) don't come
- 19. We ... many interesting things by the professor.
- a) were told b) told c) tell
- 20. "If I were you, I'd stop smoking," Jeff said.
- a) Jeff said that if he were him he would have stopped smoking.
- b) Jeff said if he had been him he would have stop smoking.
- c) Jeff advised him to stop smoking.
- 21. Will you go out ...me?
- a) by b) to c) with
- 22. I don't exactly know ... he gets ... money from.
- a) why, those b) where, his c) how, much
- 23. I always feel ... when I see you.
- a) am happy b) happily c) happy
- 24. What are you doing ... your vacation?
- a) when b) inside c) during
- 25. Holidays are
- a) relaxing b) relaxful c) relax
- 26. I wish I had nothing
- a) to do b) do c) does
- 27. I ...
- a) very like to clean b) like to very clean c) like to clean very much
- 28. Whose car is that? It's
- a) your b) he's c) mine

- 29. Where was the ... place you travelled to?
- a) colder b) the coldest c) more cold
- 30. Both cars are
- a) the same b) the different c) same
- 31. Well, ...!
- a) good lucking b) good luck c) good eating
- 32. Spring is always ... than autumn.
- a) more pretty b) more prettier c) prettier
- 33. They divided the loaf of bread between
- a) themselves b) ourselves c) yourselves
- 34. First I ... the phone, and then I read your letter.
- a) answered b) had answered c) was answering
- 35. I have never heard
- a) her to sing b) her sing c) she sings
- 36. The jacket is rather dirty. It needs
- a) be cleaned b) to clean c) cleaning
- 37. I felt
- a) him tremble b) him to tremble c) he trembling
- 38. If I ... you yesterday, you .. me about it.
- a) had met, had told b) had met, would have told c) would meet, had told
- 39. Composition ... by the students tomorrow.
- a) is being written b) will be being written c) will write
- 40. Steve said: "I don't know what Frank is doing".
- a) Steve said that he doesn't know what Frank was doing.
- b) Steve said that he didn't know what Frank is doing.
- c) Steve said that he didn't know what Frank was doing.
- 41. Mike hoped that his friend ... him with his bike.
- a) would help b) helped will help
- 42. Andrew has got ... money than we do.
- a) last b) least c) less

- 43. She works ... than me.
- a) more hardly b) much harder c) much hard
- 44. Do you think it ... to rain tonight?
- a) is going b) will c) could
- 45. Do you want smoking .. non-smoking?
- a) and b) or c) with
- 46. We didn't know the score, but we were sure their team ... the game.
- a) had lost b) lost c) has lost
- 47. You must try and get to the lesson
- a) more early b) the earlier c) earlier
- 48. The ... book was found at last.
- a) losing b) to lose c) lost
- 49. When ... the express train leave for Paris?
- a) does b) do c) is
- 50. Do you have ... ticket?
- a) my b) Mike c) mine

- 1. Put the ... back when you have finished with them.
- a) scissors b) scissor c) scissores
- 2. If you work in a grocery, you spend your life filling shelves with
- a) groceryes b) groceries c) grocery
- 3. The sun ... with different degrees of heating power in different parts of the world.
- a) is shining b) shine c) shines
- 4. In spite of her age our granny ... very well.
- a) hears b) is hearing c) do hear
- 5. a) I very much liked the novel.
- b) I liked very much the novel.
- c) I liked the novel very much.
- 6. Ann said ... she was going to be.
- a) what b) that c) why
- 7. Don't you remember ... me at your aunt's place?
- a) meet b) to meet c) meeting
- 8. She looked so funny, we couldn't help \dots .
- a) to laugh b) laughing c) of laughing
- 9. ... I borrow your pen? Mine doesn't work.
- a) needn't b) can c) ought
- 10. I ... go to the bank. I haven't got any money.
- a) may b) mustn't c) must
- 11. Shakespeare's sonnets ... among the poet's friends in 1608.
- a) were being circulated b) circulated c) will circulate
- 12. The first theatre in Stratford ... by Bernard Show.
- a) described b) has been described c) was described
- 13. ... is a teacher. ... name is Elena Petrovna.
- a) he, my b) I, his c) she, her

- 14. ... is a cat. ... tail is short.
- a) It, its b) He, our c) We, her
- 15. What is Ann? ... is a typist.
- a) he b) she c) I
- 16. ... men are miners.
- a) this b) that c) these
- 17. ... watch is smaller than
- a) our, theirs b) ours, their c) their, our
- 18.... children are older than
- a) my, hers b) mine, her c) hers, my
- 19. Joan said: "I'm sorry to disturb you, Ann".
- a) Joan asked that he was sorry to disturb Ann.
- b) Joan told Ann he was sorry to disturb her.
- c) Joan said to Ann that he had been very sorry to disturb her.
- 20. I'd like ... tennis today.
- a) Playing b) play c) played
- 21. I knew that Mercury ... the closest planet to the sun, but I didn't feel like answering the question.
- a) was b) is c) had been
- 22. Mike hoped that his friend ... him with his car.
- a) helped b) will help c) would help
- 23. Those are ... great jeans! How much are they?
- a) a b) the c) —
- 24. The house hasn't got ... garden but it looks nice anyway.
- a) the b) a c) —
- 25. Could you speak ... ?
- a) distinctlier b) more distinctly c) more distinct
- 26. Will you repeat this ... again?
- a) one more b) more c) once
- 27. Yesterday we had dinner in ... very nice restaurant.
- a) a b) c) the

- 28. Could you close ... door, please?
- a) b) a c) the
- 29. You must try and get to the lesson
- a) earlier b) more earlier c) more early
- 30. She works ... than me.
- a) more hard b) more hardly c) much harder
- 31. I ... James for ages.
- a) didn't see b) don't see c) haven't seen
- 32. When did you discover that your car ...?
- a) was disappeared b) had disappeared c) disappear
- 33. Name some places ... by you last year.
- a) vising b) to visit c) visited
- 34. If he ... so much, he ... English literature so well.
- a) didn't read, wouldn't know b) won't read, knows c) doesn't read, won't know
- 35. I've lost my watch. Have you seen it anywhere? No, but if I ... it, I ... you.
- a) find, I'll tell b) I'll find, I'll tell c) I'll find, tell
- 36. I don't really want to go to the party, but I'll probably go. They \dots upset, If I \dots go.
- a) will be, don't b) would be, didn't c) would be, wouldn't
- 37. The skirt is rather dirty. It needs
- a) be cleaned b) to clean c) cleaning
- 38. When we heard the end of this story we couldn't help
- a) to laugh b) laughing c) of laughing
- 39. I like ... the floor every day because my little son can't walk yet, he only goes on his hands and knees.
- a) to wash b) wash c) washing
- 40. The more you do now, ... will be left for tomorrow.
- a) the more b) the less c) much

- 41. This is ... winter for 100 years.
- a) Bad b) worse c) the worst
- 42. We listen to the girl ... Russian folk song.
- a) singing b) to sing c) sung
- 43. You'd better
- a) stop worrying b) stop to worry c) to stop worrying
- 44. He said: "Where is Jill going?"
- a) He asked where Jill was going.
- b) He asked where Jill went.
- c) He asked where was Jill going.
- 45. Everybody
- a) arrived b) have arrived c) has arrived
- 46. A fish ... out of the water cannot live.
- a) taken b) taking c) having been taken
- 47. I have ... friends and we meet very often.
- a) Few b) a few c) a little
- 48. What is the reason ... her absence?
- a) of b) by c) for
- 49. The girl ... on the blackboard is our best pupil.
- a) to write b) written c) writing
- 50. Children must learn this poem ... heart.
- a) on b) by c) in

KEYS TO THE TESTS

№/	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
variant	1					0		0	
1	b	b	b	b	a	a	a	a	a
2	a	b	a	b	b	a	a	a	b
3	С	С	С	a	a	b	С	С	С
4	С	С	С	b	b	a	b	b	a
5	С	b	С	С	a	С	a	a	С
6	a	ь	b	b	a	С	С	С	a
7	b	С	a	С	С	С	a	b	С
8	a	a	b	a	a	a	b	b	b
9	b	b	С	b	b	b	a	a	b
10	С	a	С	b	a	a	b	a	С
11	a	b	a	b	С	a	b	С	a
12	b	С	С	С	С	b	С	a	С
13	a	b	a	С	a	С	b	a	С
14	b	a	С	a	a	b	a	b	a
15	С	b	С	b	b	b	С	b	ь
16	a	С	a	С	b	С	a	a	С
17	b	b	b	b	b	b	b	a	a
18	a	b	b	С	С	a	С	С	a
19	С	a	С	С	С	С	a	a	b
20	С	С	С	С	a	b	a	С	a
21	b	ь	a	С	b	b	a	С	b
22	b	a	a	a	С	С	a	a	с
23	b	a	a	С	b	b	a	С	С
24	С	ь	ь	b	a	b	a	С	Ь
25	С	С	С	С	b	С	С	a	b
26	С	b	С	b	С	С	a	a	С
27	a	a	a	a	b	a	b	С	a
28	b	b	b	b	a	С	a	С	С
29	a	b	ь	С	С	b	С	ь	a
30	a	a	b	b	b	С	a	a	С
31	a	b	ь	a	С	С	С	ь	С
32	С	a	С	С	b	a	a	С	Ь
33	b	a	a	a	a	С	b	a	С
34	a	С	a	С	b	С	b	a	a
35	С	a	b	b	a	С	a	b	a

№/ variant	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
36	b	С	b	a	С	b	b	С	a
37	a	ь	a	b	a	С	a	a	С
38	a	a	b	a	a	a	С	b	ь
39	a	С	С	b	С	a	a	a	С
40	С	b	С	С	a	b	С	С	b
41	a	a	b	b	b	С	a	a	С
42	a	a	a	a	a	a	b	С	a
43	С	b	a	a	a	b	С	b	a
44	a	a	b	a	a	a	С	a	a
45	b	С	b	С	a	С	b	b	С
46	a	С	a	С	b	b	a	a	a
47	a	С	a	С	С	a	b	С	b
48	a	b	b	b	a	a	С	С	a
49	a	a	a	a	b	b	a	a	С
50	b	a	a	b	С	С	b	a	b

ЛИТЕРАТУРА

- 1. Raymond Murphy *English Grammar in Use* III edition Cambridge University Press, 2006
- 2. Hewings M. *Advanced Grammar in Use* Cambridge University Press, 2003
- 3. *Dictionary of Contemporary English* Longman 2008
- 4. И.А. Гивенталь *Как это сказать по-английски* Флинта-Наука, 2006
- 5. Ю. Голицинский *Грамматика* Каро, 2010
- 6. М.А. Беликова *General English for Business* Всероссийская Академия Внешней торговли М, 2016
- 7. И.М. Бергман *Грамматика английского языка* Высшая школа, М, 1994

Учебно-методическое пособие

Н.В. Пакулова

ПРАКТИКУМ ПО ГРАММАТИКЕ АНГЛИЙСКОГО ЯЗЫКА

Компьютерная верстка *Балабашина 3.С.*

Дата выпуска 15.03.2022 г. Формат 60х90 1/16 Усл. печ. л. 13

